
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Date: 16/09/10 Telephone Enquiries  01752 307815 Fax 01752 304819 

Please ask for Katey Johns, Democratic 
Support Officer e-mail katey.johns@plymouth.gov.uk 

 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
DATE: 
TIME: 
PLACE: 

FRIDAY 24 SEPTEMBER 2010 
10.00 AM 
COUNCIL HOUSE, PLYMOUTH (NEXT TO THE CIVIC 
CENTRE) 

 
Members – 
Councillor Berrow, Chair. 
Councillor Evans, Vice-Chair. 
Councillors Murphy, Stark and Thompson. 
 
Independent Members – 
 Mr. Clarke, Ms. Myles and Mr. Stewart. 
 
Substitutes -  
Any Members other than a Member of the Cabinet may act as a substitute 
member provided that they do not have a personal and prejudicial interest in the 
matter under review. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of 
business overleaf 
 
Members and Officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the 
meeting. 
 

 
 

BARRY KEEL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

BARRY KEEL 
Chief Executive 
Floor 1 - Civic Centre 
Plymouth 
PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Public Document Pack



 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

PART I (PUBLIC COMMITTEE) 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on 

this agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 14) 
  
 To confirm the minutes of the meetings held on 28 June and 23 July, 2010.  
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be 

brought forward for urgent consideration. 
  
5. EXTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 

(ISA 260)   
(Pages 15 - 46) 

  
 The City Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit the Annual 

Governance Report (ISA 260) highlighting the key issues arising from the audit of 
the Council’s financial statements for the year ending 31 March, 2010. 

  
6. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2009/10   (Pages 47 - 60) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Support will submit for re-approval the Statement of 

Accounts for 2009/10. 
  
7. EXTERNAL AUDIT - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

ARRANGEMENTS   
(Pages 61 - 72) 

  
 The City Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report on 

Performance Management Arrangements. 
  
8. REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 

(RIPA) - ANNUAL REPORT ON COVERT 
SURVEILLANCE ACTIVITY   

(Pages 73 - 80) 

  
 The Director for Corporate Support will submit a report regarding the Regulation of 

Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA). 
  
9. OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT - DEVELOPMENT 

AND REGENERATION   
(Verbal) 

  
 A representative from the Development and Regeneration Directorate will be in 

attendance to report on how the Directorate is managing risk. 



 

  
10. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER - MONITORING REPORT   (Pages 81 - 96) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Support will submit a report summarising the latest 

formal monitoring exercise completed for the Strategic Risk Register for the period 
March 2010 to August 2010. 

  
11. EXTERNAL AUDIT - REVIEW OF ARRANGEMENTS FOR 

COMPLYING WITH AGE RELATED EQUALITIES 
LEGISLATION   

(Pages 97 - 106) 

  
 The City Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a Review of 

Arrangements for Complying with Age Related Equalities Legislation. 
  
12. EXTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT   (Pages 107 - 108) 
  
 The City Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report outlining 

progress against its work programme. 
  
13. EXTERNAL AUDIT - VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION 

REPORT   
(Pages 109 - 132) 

  
 The City Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit its Value For 

Money Conclusion report. 
  
14. AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   (Pages 133 - 138) 
  
 The Assistant Head of Devon Audit Partnership will submit the Audit Committee’s 

Work Programme for September 2010 to June 2011. 
  
15. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) 
of business on the grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph            of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II  (PRIVATE COMMITTEE) 

 
AGENDA 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private. 
Members of the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are 
discussed. 
 
NIL 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



��������		���

�������������
������

��������		���

�
�
������������
������
�
���������
�
����������	
�����	��	���	������	
����������	�����	�����������	
�����������	������	�����	���	���������	
	
�����������	��� ���!	���	�����	���	���	��������			
	
"����#���	$��	� �����!	���	������	�����������	��� ���			
	
"���	 ��	����������!	 	 	����������	
�����	�� ����	��� ��	 $��	%������	&�������	&�����	
���	 '���������	 "���	 
�����	 (�������	 $��	 ���������	 �������	 ���	 '�����	 "��������	
����$	�)�������	*����	&���	����	%����	&��+���	����#��	(����	,������	-���	�$	%������	
����	 -�����#	 -���	 �$	 ���������	 .���	 ���	 ���������	 ���	 /����	 "��������	 -���	 �$	
(����	"����	&����������	������	'����	-���	�$	(����	"����	&����������	������	/�����	
"��������	 -���	 �$	 %������	 0���������	 "����������1	 2���	 �������	 &��+���	 ����#��	

�����	������	���	3�����	/��������	'����	���������	
	
���	������#	�������	��	45�55	����	���	$�������	��	4�46	����	
	
���
�����������
�	

��������
���		���

������������
����
�������������
�
������	����
���
�����
��	���
���� 
����������
!��"�
�
���
�#���
�	����
���������	

��������������	�
��
��
����
�
�	����
���$
��

��	
��
�!�
	

4�	 ������������������������� ���!��������
	
"#����	��	�������	����������	
�����	��	�����	���	����������	�����	��	����������	$��	���	
���������	����	754587544�	
	

7�	 ���"�����������������������
	
���	$�������#	�����������	�$	��������	���	����	��	����������	����	���	��� ���9	����	�$	
�������	:	
	
�	
� �����
���#� �
$��� ���
%
$��
����������	������	 ;	:	���������	�$		

"�������	
��������	�$	�����	/���	
&� ���	���������	��$��������	
3���	

&�������	

����������	�����	 44	:	&�������		
���� ��	.�����	

%�����	(�������	�$	���� ��	 &�������	

	
<�	 ���&������

	
"#����	���	�������	�$	���	������#	����	��	7=	�����	7545�	
	
	

Agenda Item 3Page 1



��������		���

�������������
������

>�	 �����'��&�(����)&���������
	
�%�
%��*�)�$��
$$�
	
���	�����	��������	����	���	��	���	�� ��������	������	�$	 �������	��	���	�#����	��	�����	
 �	 �����������	 ��	 ����������	 ���	 �����	 ��	  �	 ����������	 �����	 ���	 ���	 ��������#	 �����	
�����	 �	��$�����	��	�	�������	������#	��	����	�����	��	���	���	�$	2���	7545�	
	
"#����	����	���	$�������#	�����	 �	�����������	$��	�������������	:	
	

•	 ��������	"����	"�����	.�����	755?845	
•	 "�����	'���������	���������	755?845	
•	 ��������	����#�����	"�����	.�����	755?845	
•	 ���������	�$	"�������	755?845	
•	 �)������	"����	�������	"����	.�����	755?845	
•	 �)������	"����	&��#����	.�����	
•	 �)������	"����	&�������	���� ��	.�����		
•	 "����	���������	/���	&��#�����	

	
0��	����������	����	�������	4550
10>10 1	�$	���	3����	'���������	"��	4?@7	���	�����	
 ���#��	$������	���	� ���	����	�$	 �������	 ������	�$	���	����	��	�������	��� ���1�	

	
6�	 �������"��&�������&�"�����������+,�����

	
���	 "��������	 -���	 �$	 (����	 "����	 &����������	 ���������	 ���	 ��������	 "����	 "�����	
.�����	755?845	�����	:	
	

•	 ����������	���	����	����������	 �	(����	"����	&����������	�����#	���	����	
•	 ��������	���	���$�������	���	�$$����������	�$	���	��������	"����	�������	
•	 ��������	��	�����	�������	��	���	���A����	�$	��������	��������	
•	 ���	 �$	 ����������	 ���������	 ��	 �����������	 �$	 ���	 "��������9�	 "�����	 '���������	

���������	
	
B��	 �$	 ���	 ��#��$�����	 ������	 ��#���#����	 ������	 ���	 ������	 �������	 ��	 ���	 $�����#�	 �$	 ���	
"����	�������	$�������#	�	������	��	B��� ��	755?	�$	C$����������	����������9	������	���	
����%����	�������		��� ���	����	�������	����	 �����	$�����#�	���	 ���	��������	 �	���	
����%����	&��#�����	
����	�������	 �	���	"��������	����$	�)�������	���	���������	���	
�����	 ���	���������	��	�������	�����	�����������		"	������	�����	 $��������	������	���	
$����	 ��#��$�����	 ������������	 �����	 ���	 ����#��	 ���	 �������	 �����	 �������	 $���	
C$����������	����������9	��	C������������	��A�����9�		��	����������	��	�������	���	������	
��	 �������	 �$	 ����	 ����������	������	 ���	 �������	 ��	 A��������	 ����	 ���	 "��������	 ����$	
�)�������	���	����%����	&��+���	����#���	
	
��	��������	��	A��������	������	���	���������	���	�������	����	:	
	

0�1	 	 �	��������	��	�������	��	���	���	�������	�����	 �	������#	���	���$�������	
����������	$�������#	��������	����	 �	���	���	���������	#���������		���	
���	���	 ���	�����		-������	��	�����	 �	��$$�����	��	������	���	���	�������	
���	���$�����#	�������	 ����	���	 ��	���	 ������	 ����	�����	 �	����	������#�	
���	��������	��	�������	#���������D	

Page 2



��������		���

�������������
������

0 1	 	 ���	 ��������#�	 �$	 ���$$	 ��������	 ���	 ��#���	 ����	 ���#��	  ��	 ����	 �����	  �	
����� ����	��	�	��� ��	�$	�������	������	:	
	

•	 ������	����������	
•	 ����������	
•	 ��$�	����#��	
	

0�1	 	 �����	���	 ���	��� ����	��	#�����#	���	��$$�����	��������	�������	$���	���	
��$$�����	 �����������	 ������	 ���	 &����������	 ��	 ����	 ��	 ����	 ������	 ���	 $����	
��������	 ������$���	 ���	 ���	  ���	 ������� ��	 ���	 ��	 '���������	 �������	
 �������	�������	����	���	 ���	��#���#	��	�������	���	���������	���	��	���	
������#��	����	���	��� ���	�����	����	 �	��������D	
	

0�1	 	 �	 ����	 �$	 ���	 
���$���	 .����������	 .�����	 ��	 ���	 (����	 "����	 &����������	
���������	�����	 �	����������	��	��� ���	$��	�����	��$��������D	
	

0�1	 	 ����	��#���	��	���	����%����	���+���	�������	�������	�����	 �	������	������	
���	�������D	
	

0$1	 	 ����	"����������9	"����	&���	������	���	&����������	���	���	��#�����	����#	��	
�����	�����	����������	�����	�����	����#	����	�����	$������	����	�������	
�$	 ����������	 �������9�	 ����	 ��#�����	 ��������	 	 &��������	 �����	 �������	 ����	
����� ����	 ����������	 ����	������	���	����	 ����	 ������	 ��	�������	���$�	 �����
�����������	 �����	 �����	 $��	 ����	 ����������	 	 �����	 ���$�	 �����	 �����	 ����	
���������	 ����	 ������	 ����#�����	 �����	 ��	 ���	 ��������	 �������	 ���	
��������	 ��	 ����	 ����	 ������ ��	 ����������	 	 ���	 ����	 ��������	 $��	 ���	 ����	
�����	 �	��������	��	�	��#����	 ����	���	�����	 �	����#��	�$	���������D	
	

0#1	 	 ���	�$	���	 ���$���	�$	���	&����������	���	���	������#	�$	���$$	�)�������	���	
�������#�	 ��	 �)�����	 �$	 ����	 ���	 ����	 ���$$	 ��	 &�������	 ����	 ���������	
������#	�	������	�����#	�����	��	��� ��	���	��	�����	�)��������	�$	3����	"���	
"#���������	

	
"#����	����	:	
	

041	 	 ���	������	 �	�����D	
	

071	 	 ���	���A����	���	�$$����������	�$	&�������9�	������	�$	��������	�����	$��	���	
����	�����	<4	�����	7545	 �	���������	

	
=�	 ���&�"�(� ���������������������+,�����

	
���	-���	�$	���������	.���	���	���������	���������	���	"�����	'���������	���������	
$��	755?845�		
	
�������	���	�)�������	����	�������	��	�������	��#��$�����	�����$���	 ��	���	$�����#	�$	 ���	
�������9�	�������	$���	���	�������	���	������#��	���������	����	��������	 �	�����#	���	
���� ��	�������	��$����	��	���	
	
"#����	����	:	

Page 3



��������		���

�������������
������

	
041	 	 ���	 ���������	 $��	 ���	 ����������	 �$	 ���	 755?845	 "�����	 '���������	

���������	 �	�����D	
	

071	 	 ���	���A����	���	�$$����������	�$	���	������	�$	��������	�����	 �	��������D	
	

0<1	 	 ���	 "�����	 '���������	 ���������	  �	 ��������	 �����	 ��	 ��#������	  �	 ���	
3�����	����$	�)�������	���	(�������	$��	���������	��������	

	
@�	 �����&�-�����(���������&�"�����������+,�����

	
��	 ����������	 ����	 ���	 ����	 �$	 &�������	 $��	 ��������	 ����#�����	 ���	 (�������	 $��	
���������	�������	�� ������	�	������	�����	:	
	

•	 ���������	�������	�$	�������	$�������#	 �������#	�� �	�����������#	���	����������	
������������	

•	 ���������	��	���	����	������������	�$	��������	���������	���	������������	
•	 #���	 �������	 �$	 ���	 �������	 ��������	 ��	 ��������	 ����#�����	 ������������	 ��	

755?845	
•	 ���$�����	����������	����	��������	������	���	&���������	����������	

��	��������	��	A��������	�����	���������	��� ���	����	$������	�������	����	:	
	

0�1	 	 ���	 �������9�	 �������	 �� �	 ����$����	 ���	 �	 ��#��$�����	 ����������	 �$	 ������	
�����	�����	����	����	��	��	3B
B9�	���	�����	���	 �	������	�����D				
	

0 1	 	 ���	(���������	�$	�����������	���	3����	'���������	���	������	���	-."	
����������	�$	 ���	�������9�	&� ���	/����	3���	
����	�� �	 ��������#	E?4�<@�	
��	 ����	 �$	 ���	 -�����#	 �����	 �����$��	 ��#�����	 ����	 ���	 �����	 ����������	
�������	�$	E76�?>�D	
		

0�1	 	 �������	 �����	���	 ���	�	���������	 ��	 �������#	�$	E4<@�@=4�	�����	4	"����	
755?	��$������#	���	�������9�	������	��	������	�� �D	
	

0�1	 	 ���	�������	���	���	����������	���	���	���#	����	 �������#	�����#	���	����	
 ��	 ���	 �������	 �����	 �������#�	 �$	 ���	 ����	 �����	 ����	 �����	 ���	 ��������	
 �������	��	�������	�������#	�����	���	����	�������	$�������#	���	����	$���	
��A����������	

	
"#����	����	:	
	

041	 	 "����	���������	����	���	��������	����#�����	.�����	$��	755?845D	
	

071	 	 ���	 ������	  �	 ��$�����	 ��	 $���	 �������	 ��	 ��A�����	  �	 ���	 ��&%"	 ��������	
����#�����	����	�$	&�������	0��&	����1D	
	

0<1	 	 �������	  �	 ��A������	 ��	 �������	 ���	 $����	 �������	 .������	 &��������	
0�.&1	&�����	$��	755?845	��	��������	��	����#����	@�<	�$	���	�������	

	
	

Page 4



��������		���

�������������
������

;�	 �����������������&�������+,�����
	
���	"��������	-���	�$	%������	0���������	"����������1	���������	���	(��$�	���������	�$	
"�������	$��	755?845�		"	�������	�$	���	����#��	�����	���	 ���	����	��	���	������	��	�	
������	�$	���	F������	�������	.�����	���	�� ���	���	��� ���9	���������	���	�����	��	���	
������9�	���	�����#��	$��	755?845	�������#	��		:	
	

•	 "��������#	$��	&%�	���	�������	�������	
•	 "��������#	$��	�����	��)��	����	�������	��)	���	,,(.	
•	 %��������	3�� �������	
•	 .������	�$	(���������	,����	
•	 B$$����	.�����������	
•	 -�����#	�����	�����$��		
•	 ����	�$	���� ��	
•	 &�������	(�$����	
•	 
������	�����	&�������	

	
��	��������	��	A��������	������	��	���	$������	��������	����	:	
	

0�1	 	 ���	 �)���	 ������	 ��	  �	 ���������	 $���	 ���	 ���������	
���	 ������	���	 �����	
�������	 �������	 ���	 �������	 ���	  ���	 �������$��	 ��	 �������#	 $��	 �� �	
��������������	 $�����#	 �$	 E6�@�	 $���	 ���	 (���������	 �$	 �����������	 ���	
3����	'���������	0(�3'1�	"�����#�	���	�������	���	���	��A�����	��	�����	�$$	
���	����������	��	755?845	���	�������	���	�������	��	���	���	��������������	
(��������	 ��	 $���	 ���	  ����	 ��	 ���	 ������	 $�����	 �������������	 $���	 ���	
���������	
����	 ���������9	 �$	 ���	 ������	 �����	 �$	 ����������	 ���	�������	 �$$	 �	
�����	 ����������	 �$	 E6�?�	 ��	 755?845	  ���#	 E6�@�	 $���	 ���	 ��������������	
(��������	 ���	 E5�7�	 $���	 ���	 ���������	 
���	 ��������	 -������	 �$$�����	
����������	 ����	 ���	 ����������	 ����#�	 ��A�����	 $��	 ���������#	 ��������	
������	 ��	 ��	 ���	  �	 �����	 ��	 ������	 ����	 ����	  �	 ���	 $����	 ��������	 ���	
�������	 ������#	 ����	 ���	 3'"	 ���	 
����	 
������	 ��������	 ���������	 ��	
��)������#	 ���	 ��������	 �$	 ���	 �����������	 ���	 ��	 ��+�������	 ��	 ���	
����������	���	 �	����	��	$�����	�����D�
�

0 1	 	 ���	��������������	(��������	�����	 �	$�����	$���	�����	����	 �������#	��	 �	
���	��	���	$����	��������	$���	���	���������	
���	�������D	
	

0�1	 	 �����	���	 ���	�	����#�	 ��	���������#	 ��A���������	 �������#	 ��	�������	 ��)	
�����#������	 ���	 ���	 ����	 ���	 ��������	 ������	 &�������9�	 	 ���������	 �$	
"��������	 	��������	����	���	��A�����	 ��	����	��$����	 ���	������	�$	�����	
����	��	����	��������	����	���	����������	���	��A�����	��	����	�����	��� �����	
��	�����	���	��������D	
	

0�1	 	 ���	�����$���	�����������	��	�������	�$	�������������	$����	���	���	 ���	��	 �#	
��	�)�������	

	
"	��� ��	�$	 A��������	����	 ������	 �������#	�����$������	 ��	 ���	����	�$	���� ��	 ��	 ��	���	
��##�����	 ��	�����	 �	����	�����������	 $��	 �����	A��������	 ��	 �	����������	�����	 ���	
�)������	�������9�	������	��	���	C&�������	���� ��	.�����9	0���	������	441�	
	

Page 5



��������		���

�������������
������

"#����	���	���������	�$	"�������	$��	755?845�	
	

0����������	������	��������	�	��������	��������	��	�������	�$	���	� ���	����1�	
	

?�	 �.�����"��&����!����������&��������������+,�����
	
���	����	�������9�	�)������	�������	'����	��������	�� ������	 ���	�������	"����	 ������	 $��	
755?845	�����	�����	��������	:	
	

•	 �������	"�������	"����	
•	 �����	$��	�����	0�%�1	����������	
•	 .�����	�$	�"�	�����#������	

	
���	������	����	��������	��	������	��	���#����	����	�#�����	755;85?	����������������	
	
��� ���	����	�������	����	����	��#���	��	�%�	����	��	���������#	���	�������9�	���	�$	
���������	 ���	 ������	 �����	 ���	 ��	 ����������	 ����	 ������������	 $���	 ���	 "����	
�����������		/�����	���	�������	�$	���	����	����������	��	����	����	���	���������	��	 �	
������	����	���	�������	#���	���#����	���	 ���	����	�#�����	���	�$	���	������$���	������		
��	���	 ���	�#����	����	���	(�������	$��	���������	�������	����	�	$�����	������	��#���#����#	
���	�����	������$���	$��	�����������	���	��#���#����#	���������	��������	��	����	�����	 �	
�� ������	��	�	������#	�$	����	��������	
	
�������	���	�)�������	��	���	$���	����	�	������	���	 ���	��������	��������#	���	����	�$	
&�������	���� ��	 �$���	���	��������	������#	������	���	�����������	���	 ���	��������	
 �	 ���	 �)������	 ��������	 	 -������	 ���������	 ���	 ��������	 ����	 ���	 �������	 �$	 ���	
���� ��	 ������	 ���	  ���	 ��	 �)�����	 ���	 �������	 �$	 ���	 ��������	 ��	 �����	 ��	 ���� ����	
�������	�����������	�����#������	����	��	�����	���	����	����	���	 ���	��������	��������	
	
"��	$������	A��������	 ��	����	��#���	�����	 �	��������	$��	 ���	��������	�#����	����	0���	
������	441�	
	

45�	 �.�����"��&����!����(��������������
	
���	 ����	 �������9�	 �)������	 �������	 '����	 ��������	 �� ������	 ���	 "����	 &���	 &��#����	
.�����	 $��	 ���+����	 ����������	 ��	 755?845�	 	��� ���	����	 �������	 ����	����	 ��#���	 ��	
���#����	 ��	 ���	 G��	 �$	 .��������	 ������	 #�������	 ���	 �������	 $���	 ���	 "����	
����������	��	��#��	�$	���	���	���������	#���������9�	�����	��	���$�������	���#���	���	
���������#�	
	
���	���������	�����	���	�������	
	

44�	 �.�����"��&����!��"-��&������-)&���� ��/���
	
���	 ����	 �������9�	 �)������	 �������	 '����	 ��������	 ���������	 ���	 $�����#�	 �$	 ���	
&�������	���� ��	.������		��� ���	����	�������	����	:	
	

0�1	 	 ��	���	����	��	������	��	���	����	���	�����#����	���	��������	�$	���	���+���	
���	 �)������	 �������	 ���	  ���	 ����	 $����	 ��$�����	 �$	 ���#����	  �	  ���	 ���	
(�������	$��	���������	�������	���	���	���+���	����#��D	

Page 6



��������		���

�������������
������

0 1	 	 ���	 �)������	 �������	 ���	 �����$���	 ����	 ���A����	 �����#������	 ���	  ���	
����������	�����#����	���	�������D	
	

0�1	 	 ������	���	��������	��	����	���� ��	���	����	 ���	�������������	��	���	���	���	
����	�$	���	�)������	�������	��	�������	��	�������	���	��������	���	��#��	��	
����#	 ��	������	��	:	
	

•	 ���� ����	 �������	 �����������	 �����#������	 ����	 ��	 �����	 ���	 ����	
����	���	 ���	��������	�������	

•	 ������$�	���	�$$������	���	�������	���+���	����#�����	���	 ���	
•	 ������$�	�����	�����	�������	�����	 �	������	$��	$�����	���+����	
•	 ����#����	���	��������	�$	 ���	��������	

	
0�1	 	 ��	������	����	���	 ���	��������	����#	 ���	 ���������������	������#	 $���	

���	�������	
	
����������	 �����	 ������	 �	 ��� ��	 �$	 A��������	 ���	 ��������	 ���	 ����#����	 ����	 ���	
�)������	�������9�	����	����	���	�������	���	 ���	���A�����		-�	����	�)�������	�������	
� ���	 ���	������	����	���	���	 ��	�����	 �	����������	 	B����	��� ���	 ���������	 ����	
����	���	�����������	 ����	 ���	���+���	���	 ���	��$$�����	 ��	����	����	#����	 ���	�����������	
������	���	�����������	��������#	�������	���	������	���	�������	���	����	�����	��	���	
����	 �$	 �������	 ���	 �������	 ����������	 �����	 ����	  ���	 �������	 ��$$�������	 ���	 ��#��	
��������	 ���	 ����������	  ���	�����	 	 ���	�����	 ������	 ����	 ��	�����	  �	 �����	 ��	����	
����������	����	����������	�����	��	�������	���	��������	��	���	�������	
	
"#����	����	���	������	 �	������	
	

0����������	�����	��������	�	��������	��������	��	�������	�$	���	� ���	����1�	
	

47�	 �&��������������/��0����(��������
	
���	"��������	-���	�$	(����	"����	&����������	�� ������	���	���������9�	����	����	$��	
2���	7545	��	2���	7544�		��� ���	����	�������	����	:	
	

0�1	 	 ��	������	������	��	���	.�#�������	�$	�������#�����	&�����	"��	0.�&"1	�����	
����	��	 �	�����	��	���	����	����D	
	

0 1	 	 ���	 (���������	 �������	 B$$����	 �����	 ������	 ��� ���9	 ������ �����	 $��	 ��	
����������	������#	��	2���	��	��������	���	��$�����	�����D	
	

0�1	 	 ��##�������	 $��	 ������	 ��	  �	 ��������	 ��	 ���	 ���������9�	 "�����	 .�����	
������	 �	������	�����#�	���	�����	��	���	$����	���������	

	
����������	�����	������	��������	��#�����#	�	�����$��	��#���������	��������#	 �������	����	
�����$�		��	���	��##�����	����	��	�����	���	��������	��	���	��	����	��#���	����	���	"��������	
-���	�$	(����	"����	&����������	�������	�$	���	������#�	
	
"#����	���	���������	��	���	����	����	��	��������	��	0�1�0�1	� ����	
	
	

Page 7



��������		���

�������������
������

4<�	 ��(������������� ����!���� ������"� ��-��� ��/���
	
(�$�����	��	�������	������#	��	 �	����	��	2����	
	

4>�	 ���0�����(������!����&�"����������
	
(�$�����	��	�������	������#	��	 �	����	��	2����	
	

46�	 ����������"����0�����(������&��������
	
(�$�����	��	�������	������#	��	 �	����	��	2����	
	

4=�	 �.�����"��&����!�����������������(�����������(���������
	
(�$�����	��	�������	������#	��	 �	����	��	2����	
	

4@�	 �.�����"� �&���� !� �� ��/� ��� �����(������� ���� ����"-��(� /���� �(��
��"������1&�"������"�(��"��������
	
(�$�����	��	�������	������#	��	 �	����	��	2����	
	

4;�	 �� ��/����/����"�)"�/��(���"��-���
	
(�$�����	��	�������	������#	��	 �	����	��	2����	
	

4?�	 �� ��� �&���� ������������ !� �"-��&��'�� �������"� �&���� ������(-� ����
����������
	
(�$�����	��	�������	������#	��	 �	����	��	2����	
	

75�	 �.�����)&���������
	
�����	����	��	�����	�$	�)����	 ��������	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 8



��������		���

��������������������

��������		���

�
�
�������������������
�
���������
�
����������	
�����	��	���	������	
����������	�����	�����������	
�����������	������	�����	���	���������	
	
�����������	��� ���!	���	������	���	���	��������	
	
"����#���	$��	� �����!	���	�����	�����������	��� ���	
	
"���	 ��	 ����������!	 	 ���	 %����	 "��������	 &�������	 $��	 '���������	 ���	 &��������	
(����	 )���	 ��������������	 *�#������	 +����	 +�����	 '������	 *�#�����	 ,$$���	 ����	
%�����#	 %���	 �$	 ���������	 *���	 ���	 ���������	 -����	 %�����	 *���	 ����#�����	 ���	
���������	 ���	 )����	 "��������	 %���	 �$	 &����	 "����	 +����������	 ������	 )�����	
"��������	 %���	 �$	 .������	 /���������	 "����������0	 ���	 1�����	 )��������	 "����	
����#��	'����	���������	
	
���	������#	�������	��	23�33	����	���	$�������	��	24�35	����	
	
���
�����������
�	

��������
���		���

������������
����
�������������
�
������	����
���
�����
��	���
���� 
����������
!��"�
�
���
�#���
�	����
���������	

��������������	�
��
��
����
�
�	����
���$
��

��	
��
�!�
	

42�	 ���������������������������
	
���	$�������#	�����������	�$	 ��������	���	����	��	����������	����	���	��� ���6	����	�$	
�������	7	
	
�	
�  �!��
���"� �
#�!� �!�
�
#��
����������	��������	 48	7	,����������	*���	

����#�����	9�����	
������	'�������		 +�������	

	
44�	 �$���%��&�'����(&���������

	
�����	����	��	�����	�$	�����6�	��#���	 ��������	
	

4:�	 ������������ � (������
	
"#����	��	���$���	���	������	���	�����	���	���	�������	��	�����������	��� ���	�$	���	
"����	���������	$��	���	���������	����	4323;4322�	
	

4<�	 ��'�������������)����*����)��������)��+���)��,���
	
���	 "��������	 &�������	 $��	 '���������	 ���	 &��������	 ���	 ����6�	 ��������������	
*�#������	 ���	 �	 ��������������	 $���	 ���	 '������	 *�#�����	 ,$$���	 ����	 ��	 ����������	 ��	

Page 9



��������		���

��������������������

�������	 ���	 �������	 �$	 ���	 �������	 ��������	 ������	 ����������	 ��	 .� �����	 4323�	 	 ��	
�������	���	������	�		
	

/�0	 	 �������	 ����	 ���	 �������	 ����������	 �$	 ���	 �������	 ���	 #���	 ���	 �$	 �	
���������	�����#	�$	�=�������	#���	$���	��	����>	
	

/ 0	 	 ��#���#����	���	���	�����#���	���	�����������	�$	���	�������>	
	

/�0	 	 ���������	��	���#����	����	�#�����	�����	������$���	$��	 �����������	��	
���	����	������	�����	���	����������	��	-���	433?>	
	

/�0	 	 ���	���	���	���	���������������	������#	$���	����	������	���	�������	����	
��	������	����	���	 ���	�������	��	�������	�����	����������������	

	
��	��������	��	@��������	������	���	���������	���	�������	����	7	
	

/�0	 	 �����	���	�	���������	�����������	�������	�$	���	*�#�����	,$$���	$��	�� ���	
���	���	���������	�����	����	���	���	�$$���	�����	�$	���������>	
	

/$0	 	 ������#�	�	���$�	������	����	���	 ���	��������	��	���	���	���	 ���	������	
����	���	'������	*�#�����	,$$����		���	���������	�����	����	��	����	��	����	�$	
���	������	��	��=	������6	����>	
	

/#0	
	
	 ���	���������	����	 ��	 ��#�����	������	������	5	����	���	��$$�����	 ��	�������	

�����������	 	 A�������������	 ��	 +�������	 ���	  ���#	 ���������	 ��	 ���	 ��	
���� ����	����	���	����������	��� ����	����>		
	

/�0	
	
	 ������	 �����	 ����	 �����#������	 ��	 �����	 ����	 �����	 $������	 ���������	 ��	

�������	 �	 *�#������	 ����	 ���	 �$$���	 ���	 ������	 ��	 ���	 �����	 ����	 ���	
*�#�����	,$$���	����������	�����	 �	������	��	��	���	�������6�	���	�$	�����	
�������	 ������	 ���	 ��=�	 24	 �������	 	 %������	 ������	 ����	 ���	 ����	 ��	
$�������	�	 ���	��	����	���	��	�����>	
	

/�0	 	 ���	 *�#���������	 �������	 ��	 +�������	 ���	 �	 �����	 $��	 ���	 ����	 9�	 ,���	
������	 ���	 ������������	 �$	 �����	 ���	  ���	 �����������	 �������	
$�������#	���	������	����#�	��	#���������>	
	

/B0	 	 ��	���	����� ��	����	���	'���	+�������	'����	���	 �	��������	��	�	������	�$	
���	����#�	��	#���������	���	��	���	���	�����	���	���$�������	�����	 �	
��������	��	$������		

	
���	 ���������	 ��������	 ���	 ������	 ���	 �����	 ����	 ���	 ���#�����������	 ���	 ������	  �	
������	 ���	��	���	*�#�����	,$$����	���$$	��	��������#	�	C#���6	����������	�������	
		
"#����	����	�	����	�$	���	���$�	������	����	 �	����������	��	���������	��� ���	$��	�����	
��$���������	
	
	
	
	

Page 10



��������		���

��������������������

45�	 ���-� ���'� ����*����&������������
	
���	&�������	 $��	���������	�������	 �� ������	 ���	*���	����#�����	"�����	*������	 	 ��	
����������	���	���	%���	�$	���������	*���	���	���������	���	�������	����	���	������	7	
	

/�0	 	 ����������	 ���	����	 �������	���	�����#	433D;23	 ��	�������	 ���	�������6�	
��������	��	����	����#�����	���	�������	7	
	
E	���������	���	,����������	*���	����#�����	'�����	
E	*���	*�#������	
E	+��$�������	����#�����	���	
�������	+������#	
E	
����������#	
E	���������	��	��������	�������;"�����	'���������	���������	
E	9��	�$	*��������	"���������	
E	*���	����#�����	���	���	����������	.��������	
E	+�����������	'���������	
E	��������	*���	����#�����	'�������	
	

/ 0	 	 ��������	��$��������	��	���	$����	�$	��������	����	����#�����	��������	$��	
���	��=�	24	�������	

	
��	��������	��	@��������	������	���	���������	���	�������	����	7	
	

/�0	 	 ���	 ��=����	 �����	 �$	 $�����#	 ������ ��	 ��	 ���B����	 $���	 ���	 *���	
����#�����	.���	���	F?533>	
		

/�0	 	 ��	�����	��	 �	����������	���B����	���	��	����	�	���	��������	���	$���	������	
���	*���	����#�����	.���6�	�����	�$	��$������	����	����	����	������	��	
��	�����	�$	���������	 	
���	 $��	���B����	������#	��	�	 ������	�$	�	����������6�	
$������	 ��	 ���	 ���	 �����������	 ���	 ������	  ��#��	 �������������	 �����	  �	
��B�����	���	 ����	����������	�����	 �	�=������	 ��	 �����	 ����	 ����	 �����#�	
���	�������	�������#	���	����	��#������>	
	

/�0	 	 ���	 *���	����#�����	 .���	 ���	 ���������	 F53333	 ���	 �����	 �������	
�����	���	 ���	�	�����	����	�$	F2:333	$���	���	��������	�����	

	
���	���������	�����	���	������	����	�������	
	
"#����	����	7	
	

/20	 	 ���	��=�	������	������	�����	�������	��	�������	�=���������	�����>	
	

/40	 	 ��	�=���������	�������#	��	���	������������	�$	�	�������$�	��	�������#	%����	�����	
 �	����������	���	���	&���������	�������	,$$����	$�������#	���	������#�	

	
48�	 ���������������-� ���'� ����&��������

	
���	&�������	 $��	 ���������	 �������	 �� ������	 ��	 ������	 ��	 �������	 �$	,����������	 *���	
����#������		��	����������	���	���	%���	�$	���������	*���	���	���������	���	�������	
����	���	������	7	

Page 11



��������		���

��������������������

	
/�0	 	 ��������	���	���������#	���#����	 ���#	����	������	��������	��	

���������#	,����������	*���	*�#������>	
	

/ 0	 	 ��#���#����	����	�����	����	���	�	�����	�$	225	�����������	�����	���������#	
���	��#�	/���0	����	8G	������	/�� ��0	�����	���	<8	���	/#����0	�����>	
	

/�0	 	 ��������	�	����������	��	 ���	��#�	����	�����	���	��������	�������	�$	���	
�������	�������;����#�����	��	������	

	
��	��������	��	@��������	������	���	���������	���	�������	����	7	
	

/�0	
	
	 ���	����	 ��	��������	$���	���$$��	������	�������#	��	���	 ������#	������	������	

����	 ���	������	��	 �	���	����������	���	��������	��	���	��#�����>	
	

/�0	 	 �	 ��������	��	���	��� ��	�$	�����	�����#	��	��	���	�$$	���	��#�����	����	
���	����	��=	������	�����	 �	����������	��	��� ���	$��	�����	��$��������	���	
�	����	��������	���	������#$��	 �� ��	�$	 ����	�����	 �	 ��������	������	 ���	
��=�	�������	

	
"#����	����	7	
	

/20	 	 ���	�������	��������	��	����	����#�����	 �	��������>	
	

/40	 	 �	��������	���������	��	���	����	��	��������	$���	���$$��	������		�������#	��	���	
������#	������	 �	��������	��	���	��=�	������	��	����������	

	
*����������	����	7	
	

/:0	 	 ���	 ,�������	 ���	 ��������	 ����#�����	 
����	 ��$��	 ���	 ���	 ����	 ����	
��#�����#	���	 C��� �����	�$	����$����	 ��	����	 �������	��@���������	 ��	�����	
�$	 ����#��	 ��	 �������	 ���������6	 ��	 ���	 ��������	 ���	 H���#	 +�����6�	
,�������	���	��������	+�����	

	
/����������	��������	��������	�	��������	��������	��	�������	�$	���	� ���	����0�	

	
4?�	 �.��������&����*������� ����� ���'� ���������'� �������

	
���	 �������6�	 �=������	 �������	 '����	 ��������	 �� ������	 �	 ������	 ���������#	 ��	
+�������	 ����	 �������6�	 ���$�������	 ����#�����	 ���	 ��������#	 �����#�������	 	 "	
��� ��	 �$	 �����	 $��	 �����������	 ���	  ���	 ������$���	 ���	 ��	 ������	 ����	 �������	 ��	
�������	���#����	�#�����	����	�$	���	������6�	����������������			
	
��� ���	�=�������	�	��� ��	�$	��������	�������#	��	����	������	������	7	
	

•	 ����	���	������	����	$�����	��	������$�	���	�������� ��	�$$����	�#�����	���	 ��	���	�$	���	
���������������	���	$�����	��	������$�	���	�$	���	��������	��������������	�����	

•	 ����	 '����	 ��������	 ���	 ���	 �������	  ���	 � ��	 ��	 $���	 433D;23	  ���������	
���$�������	�������	

Page 12



��������		���

��������������������

•	 ���	 ����#�	 ��	 $��@�����	 �$	 ���	 B����	 $������	 ���	 ���$�������	���������#	 �������	
$���	 ���������	��	@��������		

•	 �$$����������	�$	�����$���	
	
��� ���	 ����	 �������	 ����	 $�����	 ��������#	 �$	 ���	 B����	 $������	 ���	 ���$�������	
���������#	������	�����	���	����	�����	��	�	@��������	 ����	��	�����	��	�������	����������		
&�������	����������	�����	�������	 �	�� ������	��	���������	����#�����	����	��	�	
�������	 ����	���	 ���	��=�	�������������	 B����	 ������	�����	 �	�� ������	 ��	�� ����	 ��	
"�#����	
	
"#����	 ����	�������������	�$	 ���	 ������	 �	��$�����	 ��	 ���	��=�	������#	����	 ���	������	
����	 �����	  �	����	 $����	 ���������	 ��	 �������	 �������	 �$	 �������� ��	 �$$�����	 �������	 �$	
���#����	����	���	��������������	������	
	

4G�	 �.������� �&���� *� ��)��,� ��� �����'� ����� ���� �� ��+��'� ,��$� �'��
���������/&����������'�����������
	
���	�������6�	�=������	"������	'����	��������	 �� ������	 ���	 �������	�$	 �	 ������	�����	
���	 ���	����������	��	���� ����	7		
	

•	 ����	 �����	 �����#������	 ���	  ���	 ���	 ��	 �����	 ��	 ���$���	 ��	 ���	 "#�	 *������	
�@��������	1�#��������	

•	 ���	���	����	�������	���	���#��	��	��������	���	����������	����	
•	 ����	�����������	��������	�������	�����#������	����	��	�����	

	
�������	���	�=�������	��	�������	 ���	������	���	 ���#	�������	������������	������	 ���	
����������	
	
"#����	����	��	���	� �����	�$	��	�����������	��������������	 ���#	��	����������	$���	%*	
�������������	�$	���	������	 �	��$�����	��	���	��=�	������#�	
	

4D�	 ��)��,����,$�����(��,��'������+���
	
���	 "��������	 %���	 �$	 &����	 "����	 +����������	 �� ������	 ���	 9������	)������ �����#	
+�����	 �������#	 ����	 ���	 ��������	 ���	 �����#���	 �	 ���#��	 ��$����	 ����	 ���	 ���	 ���	
��������	���	��B��	��	��#��$�����	����#���	
	
��	��������	��	@��������	������	���	���������	�����	����	7	
	

/�0	 	 �������	�$	 ���	��� ��	�$	������� �����#	�����	�������#����	�����#	���	����	
���	 ���	��������	 ���	 ��	 ���	��=������	�����	 ���#����	 ������	���	 ��	 ���	
������	������>	
	

/ 0	 	 �����	���	 ���	�	�� ��������	�� ������	������#�	 ��	���	��� ��	�$	��������	
������� �����#	������	��������	����	

	
"	��� ��	�$	@��������	����	������	��	��#���	��	7	
	

•	 ���	�����	���$$	����	�$	���	������� �����#	������	
•	 �������	���$$	$���	���$�����	��	���	���	������� �����#	������	

Page 13



��������		���

��������������������

•	 ���	�����$���	���$$	����	����	���	������	�����#	����	���	������� �����#	������	
	
��	 �����	 ��	 ���	 ���	 �������	 �����	 @��������	 ���	 "��������	 %���	 �$	 &����	 "����	
+����������	 ��������	 ����	 ���	�����	#���	�������������	 ��	���	 ����	 ��$��������	�����	 �	
� ������	���	 ���#	�	��������	 ���	��	�	$�����	������#	�$	���	����������	
	
"#����	���	�������	)������ �����#	+������	
	

:3�	 ��)��� �&���� ��������$��� *� ��+ �&�$%�� ��������� �&���� ������'+� ����
�$��������
	
���	 "��������	 %���	 �$	 &����	 "����	 +����������	 �� ������	 +�������6�	 ��������	 "����	
������#�	���	��������	 	��� ���	����	�������	 ����	 ���	 �������	������#�	���	�������	���	
��������	 ���	�������	 �	&����	���	��� ���	
	
"#����	���	�������	��������	"����	������#�	���	��������	"����	��������	
	

:2�	 �.� ���(&���������
	
�����	����	��	�����	�$	�=����	 ��������	
	
	
	
	

Page 14



��������	
���	
�����	

Audit of Accounts 2009-10 
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 

���������	�
������

����

�
�

Agenda Item 5Page 15



� ��������	�������	 �

� ��������	��������	 �
�

�

���������	

� ���������	�� ���������	�!	"��	�#$	 �%

& ��'��������	��	���	!�������	����������	 �(


 �������	�!	����'�����	��!!������	 �)

� �����	����	 �$
�

���������

Page 16



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

���������	�
��������
�

��� �����
���
������	�����
���
�����
�����	���������������������	��������
�������
��������
  !���������"������������������!�#���������#���������$�����������%���������
�������������

���
����������&���&�������'�#���������
����&��
���������������������������(������������
�������������
�����#��
������&����)�
���������

��� �����
���
�������������������
#�
�*��
����������+���
���������������
�����"������&��,��
$+�"��,�%����
���
������������������������������(���������
&��������&�-�
�����(.�����&������
�������"���������������������
�*��
����������+�"�,�.��������������-��������
&�������.�
�
���������������
������������"������/�"��

��� ���������������
�������	�����
������
���
������������������������������������
���
������
����������������������������)�
�������.���������������������/�������
����
�����#��
������
��������0���
��
�������	�����
�����
��'��&��������������
���
���&�������
.������
��������.�
�����������1������������������������
���������
����������
�-��������������������������������

��2 ����
�����"���������������1����������"�����!
�����������
�������
�*��
������
�������
��
������������������������
�������������������������������
���
��

��&��������������
��
������#.����������#������������-��������������������
����
�������

���
�������������

��������	����������	*������	

��3 �������������
������������
�������45�����������������-���������������6������������������
�����
��������������������"�������������������7���6����������"������
�-�����#��
�.�����
��
'��&�����
����
���������&��������
�.��������������������������������
�*��
��������������#�
���������������
����
����
��
�#��
�����������
������
��
����������������������&�������������
��
���
�-��������������
-������

��, �������������������������������������8224�2�������������������
������������������/������&���
��&������������
����������������
�	������
�������������&������
��������
�-���.������������	��
����
��'�����
��&�����5����0����-������������������	�
�����
�������
��������������
��������
�������������������������	��������������������-��
������������
�������
������
����������������
��&���������
��

��&����������������#��������-������������������������
��������
����
������������.�����
����������������������������
�*��
���������������9:!���

��; 0��������������
�-����&������*�������������������������������1����������������������.�
��������&����
�-�������������������	#�����"�������������������2�������	�
�������

��7 �
���
�����������������������������
�����������������������������
��&�-������������������
����"������/�<�������$��=������������������������������������%���

+����	!��	,����	
��������	�

��4 +���
�-����&���
������������������������������������.�����
��
�*��
������
������������������
����������*���#���������������(���

��&���������
�����
��&�������#.����������#�����

� >/�����-�������
#�

+�"����,��
�*��
���
����������������?�
• 
������������������
��-����	��
��&����
�����������������
���������������
��
��������
�	=����-��#��������
��&�&�����������

• ����
������������
���������������
'�

• ������
�����

���
����/��������

Page 17



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

�������-��������������������
����
����$����@�������
�)���#�����������%��0���
�������������

���
�����������
��������������������*���������@�������
�)���#��������������

���� ����'�#������&����
����&��
�����
�
�-������������������(���

��&��������
���
�-����������
�
����
���.�(@)�����������(�
���
���

���� �
���
�����
���������������������������
�@�������
�)���#�������������������������������
�����

��������	������

���� )����
���
����&��
��������������������������������@�������
�)���#���������-��	����
�������������������A�
����
���
���
��
���������
���0����-������������	�
����

��������������.��������
��������������������������������"������/�A�����������	����
���������������&
�������������A�
����
���
���
��
���������
���������������
���������������

�����	�
���������
�

���� �����
���
������	�����
���
��������#���
�����	#����������������������
&����
�
�������	��������
����
�+�"�,�.����������������	���������
���#�����
���
�������0������������
�������	����#�
�����#�����
���
�����������
���
���������	��
����������=������������������������������
:�������	�����������������������(�� ����
����:��
������������

�������������
��

���2 0����������'�����
���
����
����
�����������
����������������������5���
�������
�-�����������
��
��&���
�������	#������������1���������

	

-����	.�������	/0	11�	

���������	�
������

Page 18



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

��
����
����

��� ��������������
�-������������
#����������&���
����&��
�����
������������������������
���������������@�������
�)���#�$@)%����������

�����������
�
����
�����
�

������	�!	���	�����	

��� 0����

����������
��������������
�����������������������������������"�����!�����
��������
�������"�������������������,�)�
����������9�
������������	���������#���������.���	=�������
������������&���������������
�����
��?�

• 
�-������������������
������������.������������
�-�����&�����
����������
�������
�/��
����������
�����������������������������&
������
����
�B�

• 
�-����������������
#���������������������B�
• 
�-�����������������-�
��������������������������������B�
• �	������&�����
�-�����&������������(�� ����
����:��
���������������
• �������&���
������	��������������-�����
�-���.������������������&���&�����

����������
�

0��	���2�	

��� 9�
����45�����������������������"�����!����������������'�#�
��'��
������&�����������������
���������������������������"����
�������
�����
��������.����������������
'���������	�
����
�
��������������
�����������
��'�����������������
���
������
�������&�������
�+���
���"�����
:���
���9�
���
'�����������������	���������������������������	�
����'�#�
��'��
�����"����
��
�����
���������������������.����
�-����������
�������&�������
��'��������-�������������
>/��	���9��.������������������
'������������9�
�
�-�����������
��'�������&�������������
���������������������#������������
��'��
�����

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

� A�������������&��

Page 19



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

����3��	*��4	�$$)5�$	0��	�����	���2�	
0��	�����	���2� 
��������		

��"	������������	

��������������

����#���������!+��&
�������
����
�-�����������������������������0������&��
������������&������������
���
�������<����!�����
����<�
���<�
������������4��9:!�
�*��
���
�����������
���������������
�*��
���������
�
���������&���
�!+���������������
�������������
�����+���
������������������:���
���&�
������
�������������������������+:+�����
���������	
�����	
�����
����
��������������������
��-�
�����(�����45������������:���
���&�
)������$:�)%��

0��
�-���������������������
'��&�����
��
�����
���&��������������&��
����������
������
!+����������������
�����������������������

���&���������������������������������������
����
�����������+:+��������������9:!��
�
��������������-���������
�������
�
�������C����
����������������!+��������#�	��
���������	#�+:+�������0����-��
�����������
������������

��&��������
����
���
�
��
��&����������������-���
�-�������������
���������������&&��������
'��
�&
����������
���#�����������������������������������
���
����
��
�&
��������3�5����;��

"������	&��2�	

����������������8�������-�������������
+�������������������������������	��'������������
���9���	�
����7���������������������	��
����
�����#�
�&�
���&����������������������	��

���-�
������
��������������������������+��
��
������
.��
���
��������
�����
����������������
	����&�-������������&�-�
��������������
��	#�
�����������+�������������������������������������
���	���&��������&�������������
�����
������������
����
������������������������
&������������	����
����#�
����������
��'�������&���&���������
����
�������������������&��������-��
�

��&���������
�����&��&���-�������������
�
����
#�����&�������
��������������-��	����&
�����������������������
��
�����������
�������
��'�����������������������
��������
���&�����������
��
�������-������
�����
���������������45������������������������
�
���������������������������
���������������
�
��������������
�����������������
����
��
�����#��

"

��&���������
�����&��&���-�������������
�
����
#�����&��������-��	������
��&�������
��������&�����+���������	��'��&��
�	������
�

��&��������
�����������������������
������� ""!�	��������
&��������������������
����������������������
+���������<��'���������	#��+!"���
����������������������������
�����	#�����
�������������
���
�������&���������������	#�
�+!"�����
� ""!�7��$�����������)�#�����%���
���������/�������������������������D�������3����
��������������
0����-��
�-�����������������(����
'��&�����
��
��������
������
������
���������������������
�
�������������������������
������	���������������
����
��
���-�
������
�

�*���$$)	

�������4��9:!��������
������������	�
����
����&�������������������&���
��������������
���������
�������������������/���������������(��
����������������������+������
�*��
���������
�����
�������������������
��
�����������������
�&���#�	�������������������������#���������������
�������
�������	��
�������
�����
���������
���������������������#�����������������
�����
������������
����	�������	�����������������&�����
���������&������#����
��������������������/�
	���������������������������75�4�	�������������
��������	��
���������

���
�������
��'���������������������������
��

����#�����������
�����������&����
�

"����
�����������������������
����=���������
�����������������9:!���-��	������

����#�

����������������������������������������

Page 20



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

 �
&������'�@������
#��
�����
� �

9�����D�-��	�
����4.���������
���������
����&��������������������(��������(��������
�
�����

������!�#��������������#�E����.���

�&����
����������������
���������
�����
������
��-������&������������������������������������
���
�������
��'���������������������������
��

����#�����������
������
�����
���������
�
�
�����
�
��������
������������

0����-��
�-������������
'��&�����
����������
���������&����
���������
���������������������
�
�����
������

����#����������������������������
�

��������!�#���������#	���� �

������������������������
�������&����!�#������
���#	��.����������������F���	�����
#��������
"����
��#.������A����	�
����4��"��������&�
��
��������
��'��&����������������	������	�����
#�
����	��������/�����
�������
��'������������������
�����������

����#�����������
�����������������
�������	�����
#��������
���������������������
&
��������������

0����-��
�-���������������������
'��&�
����
�������
���&��������������&����
��������
��������
������������������������������������
��
��������������������������������	��������������
��
���

����#���
0����-������������������������	�
�����
����
���
��������������
���������	��������	��
���������������
�-���������
��#�����
�
�����
���#���������
�������������������
������������
���
������
�&
���������5����2��

�
�������������� �

���������������
�*��
�������
���
���
����
"���������+�����75�4���������
��
�#��
�.�����
��	�����
���(�������������������������������
��
��&������������������������
���������������
�&
����������	���������
������������������
�	���
������������&���������	���&�����
��'���	#�
�����
���������������
������������������������
��	�����
�����������
������������������(���
����
�����������
����&���������������
�*��
���
��������������
�-����
�5����

����.���������
�
�������"�������������������
����������������
����(��	�����
������������(��������	�����������
����&������������
�������
��"���������������
������&��

��������������-�������������������
�
��	�����
����������

����#������&����������������
��-��	���������������	#�������	�������
�
�
���
������
�����������	�����	�������
��
��&����
�������������������/��
����������
��
�����������
������������������������
����������
��&������������������-��	����������������

�����
�9�����
�:�����
������5���������
��������
����

�

����"������������"�����$"���������D����B�
>�&����%�:�&������������4�	
��&�������
���������
������������-��������������
�����
�����
�
&�-�
������	������������������������
�����
������
�*��
����������
�-�������������������
����
��
������
������#��������
�������
��'������

�����
��������������
����
������������������
��������������

D����
����&������������	�����������	#�
�+!"�������
��#�������������
�������������
�������0����-��
�-��������

�����������
	��������+!"���������A�-��������
���������&�&
������������
���������������������
��

��������������������
�������������������
���������������������
���������������

�&����������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 21



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

>��
&��&�
��'������������������
�����
���
���
��
���������������
������������
�������������&��
����������
��#���������������
���
������
��������������
��������������/���
������������	#�����������������������������������
�����������
��#.������	����
�����#��������
���
$��&������������������
�����������%���

���������������������	�
�������������������
�
���������������������#��
���
������&���������
����	��������������0�������
�-���������������(��
�����������������������������������
�����������
��	������������������
�����������������������������
�-�

����������
�������������������������������
���������$:��3%��

0����-��
�-���������������������������(��
�

��&���������
����������������
����
���������0���
�����������������������������������
�������

����&���������

��
��
����#����� �
+���
����"�������-�������������������������
���'������������������
��
��������������.�����
�����
�
���
������������������
����������������
+��
�-���������-��	�������������������
�
�&�����
�-��������+���
����"������
����������&�
�������
��'��������������
�-��������������
�
����
���+������������������������������������
����������������������
����������
���&��������
&
�����������
������#�����������
�
��������������
�
�&�������
���������#������0�������������������
�������������������������������

��&�������
���#���-������������������&�����&����������
��'����
������
�����
����������������
�������	���&�
�����
�������
���
���������������������

0����������������������+���
����"�������������
��������������������
���������������������
���'�������������������������+"�
�-����
�������
�������&�������������
�������
����
������
������
��#�����������������&�����
�������
������������#�������
"�����#�������
���
����������
��&������
�
�����
���#�������������
���������������������
����������-�����
��
���������
�������������
�-�
������
�����
���#������

�

��3 ����"���������������������������
��������������������
�������#����������������
����
��'�
�
���������&������������.���������&���&����������
����
��'���

,������	�������	!���	���	!�������	����������	�����	

��, 0����
���
������������������
�����������������������������7���6��������.������-������������
�������
#����������������6�������������������
���&���
'��&�����
����
��������
�-��������
����
����������������&
����������	�����
�������������-�
����*�����#���������������(����
'��&�
����
����
�������&����������
���������������
�������������������#������
�������*��
������

��; :�&���
���������������&����
�������	��������������������������'�#���������������
���
��
����
�����
���
��������������
�������������������
��&����������������������
'����������	������
�#�

����������������
&��&�����������������������'�����������������
����
������������������
������
����-��-������������
����������������������������
�������������������
�������

��7 )����
���
����&��
�����������������������������������
����������	�������0��
�����
��
����.����
��-�������
�����������������
����
�-�����.��������������������&
���������������.����
"������/�A����

��������	5	��!�����	���3�������6	

��4 >����#��������������������
�����	�
��������������������
�������������������B�	�������
�������
�-������������	��������������	�
�?�

Page 22



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

• ����������
��!��������������$�!�%.����������
���	#�����A���
��������
������
��.�
��������������������$A��%B�����

• ���� �������-�
������!���������������$ �!�%.����������
���	#�A�-��������#�
���������

���� D�����	����������
�����
����#���������	������������
�����������
������������������
��

���&��������������������1��<������������.�E���-�
���������������#���'������
������
#�
���
������
���
������	���������
��������������-����'�����
�#�
���
���������������#�������
��
������������
�������������
�����������������	����
�����
&�����
�������
�-�����������
�������	�����$�����������#�����%��"��������
����������
�������������������#��������.�����
��
���	����#���
���������#�������
�����������������������������1���-�
����������������	����#���

���� ���������:���
���&�������
��$:�%��;�:���
������<��������
�*��
�������������
����-����������
	#����
�����������#�*��������������
#����	���	�����������������	���������������
-���������/������&�
��
���#��
���E���-�
�����������
��������������	����#����������������-��	���������
�-���������
���)�
������2����

���� +��
�������������
�
�*����.������������������	�������������������
����-�����������
�����
���������������
�(�������������������������)�
������������������
���
������-������������
8�7�,�.���
������������8��,,����
��������
�-�����-�������������������������������������
�
��������������������������������������������&
�������������
�����#��

���� +����������.�D�����,�5�:���
������	�������.���������������(���������������������������������
����������
�-�����������#���������������������	��������	��������������������
����&��
���
��������������
�������#����������$������
�(���������%�������������������
�������#��
���
��#�
�������$ �!�%�������*�����#.������������(����������
����
�������������
���������������
:��;�$
�-����%.������������	#������9:!���4��

���2 0��
����������������������������
�-����������
�:��;���������
������������������
��������
����
������
�����
��������#�����������
������������������������	����������������������

�*��
���������������9:!��

���3 0�������
�����������
�������
�������&��
��������
�-������������������������������
��&�����
����
��

��&����������������#��������-��������������������������������
������	��������������
�����������(������������
������#�����������.�����
����������������������������
�*��
����������
�����9:!��

�������	��������4	�����	��	
�"	!���	��"	

���, ��������������������������
��������������������������
�������
��	���������������
�����
�
���������������������-�
������������������������-���������&������������
�!
����+���/�
$�!+%�������������
������
����������������
���	���������
����������
���"�
�����������
���������������:������!
����+���/�$:!+%.������������

����#����������������&������������������
-����������������������������	���������

���; +��
�������������
�
�*����.���������������-�����&������������������������������������������
����-��������������������������������	�������������
������������������&������������
������-��
�������������������
�������������
�������
����'��#����	����3F������������
�-�����#��
�=�������
�����*�����#.�������
���������
�-�����D���!����������	����#����82���3�.������
��������7�,F��

���7 ��������������-���&
��������������������������������=�����&������	��������������-������������
��������������������

Page 23



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

��������	�!	��������	
���	&��6	

���4 ������������������������
�������&����!�#���������#	��.����������������F���	�����
#��������
"����
��#.������A����	�
����4��������������
������
����-�����
�������������������
�
��=�������������8����;�����������������������
��������������������������D�-��	�
����4���
"���
���=�����&���
�����������&��
��������������������������
����������8�7�;,�����������
�������������D����2��������������������

��������	���������	��	���	
�����7�	"8�	�����6	
���� �����������(��������������/�������
������������
�����#��
������&����)�
����������

����#�

����������&����������������������#<������8�;�3�.�
��
�������&����������������
���������
8�7�;,������������������������
�&��������
�������&����8����������������

����#����������
�����������
���������0��
��������������������������	����������������
����#�������&�����
G&�����������������������	�����
#�G��������������������+H>������������

��������	���������	��	���	
�����7�	-����	"8�	�����6	
���� �����
���(��+H>�����������
�����#��
������&����)�
����������

����#�����������
����������

������	�����
#������������������������������������&
����&�����
����&�������������������0����-��

�-������������������������������������=���������
�*��
�������
���
��&�����&
�������������
��������
�����������������������&�
������!�#���������#	��(���������������	��
�������������
�������������������&
��������������

� � 	
���� ����&
����&�������������������������	�����
#������

����#���������������������
���������0��

��-��
����������������������������	������
����#������������������������������&
����+H>�
���������
�
������	��������	������������	

���� �����9:!����4����������������
�*��
�������������������
�!+���������
�������
�����
�����
�������
�����������+:+�������
-����������������

��&���������

���2 "���/������.������������(��!+�����������������������������������������+:+����.�����������
���������-��	����������������
���������������(��	��������������E���-�
.�����
�������
�
�

��&���������#������	������������������+:+�������������&?�

• ����&����������	������������
��������
�������
����������
���������
���-��	������&�B�
• �
�-���������
�������������
�.�������&���
-������
������
����
-����B��
�
• �������������������
������
�
������
��������.��������������������'�����
-���������������#������������

��&��������������#�
������������������
�*��
�������������	�������
�����������
�-�������	������
��'�����
��&�
�����5����"�����
-�����
�����������������
����
�����������

��&�����������������

���3 0����������������
��������

��&��������������������
�*��
������.����
��������������
���#��������	����
��&���������
���
�	#��
�-����&�������������
�����&���������������������.���
�
�/�����.��
���
������������&��������.���
���������&�����-����������
������&����������������������
����
���
����0����-���
�-��������������������������������/�������������
'��
�&
��������
�����������������
��������

��3�����	�����������	

���, "���
�-���-���������������������
�������
�����
�����
������������������������+"���4�C�:���,�
�����������
������������������&����
����
������?�

Page 24



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

• �����-���������&������
�������������������&���������������������
����
���.�����������
����
�������
���.���������#��
���.���
��&���/����&��
���.�����/�����
������
�
����.��
�����

����&��
��
���������/.��
�����
�-�
��	��.��
�-�������������������������5����������-�
��	���
���������-�
��	��������������������������
�#������������
����$���������������������
I����
�#��&1%B�

• ���
�*��
��������������������-���������
������������������-����������������������
������
������	��
�*��
�����
�����
��#�����������
����������������	���/������������-����������
�

���������������&��������
'��������
�B�����

• �����������������������
��������

���; �����������(���

��&���������
�
�-�����&��/�����&�������������
�������
���	������
��
�-���-����������	����
��&���������
���
�	#��
�-����&�������������
�����&����������������
���5����������������������������-����������
������&���������������
����
��������


�����	.��	��3����	

���7 A�	��
�	�������������������������/��#������
����	=����������
���5���������#������������	��
�
���������&�
��������
������	����������	����E���-�
.�����&�����������	��
�	����������82�;�������
����������������������/��#�������
�������
�����44�542�����4445���������������
�-�������
�
����������+���������������������
�����������	�������������	���
����������������������������������(��
�����#�����
����&�������	����

�������	�������	

���4 ���������������
�*��
�������������������
�����
����������������
���������
�����5�	�������
�
����-��������������-�����������������������
����
������������������������
����	������
�������
�
�����������	#��������������

���� )��	�
�������������������-����
��������
����-�
������������(�������������������
����&�
����������������
���
������������
�������������#�����
��'�����������������
���������
�������
��
�#��
�������������-�����	�
����������
��������������������������
�������

���� ���������������������
��&������

��&��������������
��������������	�
������
���-����
������
����'������
�*��
���������������
��������������#������������
���������
��������
�
�������������������
����������-�
��#����������������
�����&����
�*��
����
�
���������
�#�
�
������������/�����

*����	������	������	�������	

���� +�����������������������
��
�������	�-�.����
����
�������	�
��������
�����
��
�������������
����&���������
������
��&��������
��������
�������������������-��	�����������������������
��������������������������������-��	���������������
�����������������&����
������	��
���
��������������
��#��
�����

��'�����	�������������	

���� 9�
�������������������������������������
��
�*��
����������
�������������������&������!+�
�
���:!+���������
������
�������������
��������������
���-���������.�(���
��
����������
&
����������������/�������
��
���
-�(�������������&
����������������/�������
�����������
���������	�����
��������	#�����&�������

Page 25



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

���2 ������=����������������������������������"������/�<�����
����������������5��=�����&������
	��������������-������������
�������	���&���������������������������������������
���������
&
��������������
�����#��
��������������������&
����������������/�������
���������������
��=������������������������������������(��&���
��������
���
-���

/���'�����	�������������	

���3 9�
���������
'����������������
������������������������������������8��,,�������������
����	�����
��������	#�����&�������������&
�������������
�����#���������=��������
�������
�������
�-���������������
����-����������������������������	���������������������
�(���������
��������������=������������������������������������(��
���
���������������������=������
����������������������������"������/����

���, ����"������������������������������#������������������
��
�������������������
�������'���	#�
����&���������������=�������������������������������������������

��������	����������	*������	

���; 0��������������
�-����&������*�������������������������������1����������������������.�
��������&����
�-�������������������	#�����"�������������������2�������	�
�������

�������������	��������

���7 �������������������������������
�-������-�
���������8�������&������������
�-�����	��&������
8�4,�3��������'�#�
���������
�������-�
������
��������������������"��������������
��$
����&�
���	�
�����������/��#���������%����������
��(����
-�����$�����������
���

������������&���&��
�
������������������45��%���

���4 �������������������������-�
��������
��&����������&?�

• ��������@"��G�����&G�
���#�������
���E):�����8�����B�
• �������������	��&�����E�����&�!������&�A���-�
#��
�������8���;��B�����
• �������������	��&����� "<�+�������&����8�������
�
�����
����������������������������-��&�����
��������8��3����������������-�
����
���
-��
	����������8���3�;��$3�;F������������
�-�����	��&�����
�����5��%.���
�����#��
������&����
)�
���������
�

��2� ������

����������������������������������&����������
����
�����������	���������
�����������
&�-�
�����������
������
.����&���
������������������������
�����������
�������
����
�����+��

����������������������
��
����)���&����������������
'��&�����������������(����	�����
���	�
�������-��������
�����
�������������&���
�&
���������������&���
�&
����������
���������
����������
�(��-���������-�(���������-������������	�������������������5�����

������
�����	��������
�����

��2� 0����-������
��'����������������
'����'�#���������������
������
�������
������������&���&�
��
��
�&
����������
'���
���������������������������������9�
��-�����������������������(��
'�#���������������
����#���������������������#���#�����
����������������
������������
����
��'�
�����������
��#��������������������������������

��2� E���-�
.������-�������������������������
�-����

������
'��&��
����������
���������&�
=��
����.��������
�	���	������

Page 26



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

9�������	

��2� ��������������-��������������
�����
��������������
���������&�=��
����������������������
���
�������������������������
���
������������������G=��
������
'��&��
������G��9�����
���
��
����������
�&������������.������
�������#.���#��-�������$������.���
'��&�����
������%����
�����
������=��
��������#��������

��22 +���
���������������
�����
�"������&�
�*��
��������
(������������
��
��������������������
���������������������$+�"��2�%���)���
��������������������������
������������-��-������
������������������������������
���
���&��
������	#�
���
���&������
��
������
��������
�����
=��
�������
������
��&���������#��
��������������
�������������������#������
�*��
�����.����
�������������������������������������3�=��
�������
�������������

��23 9�
�������&������������������������������������
���&�����=��
�����������������#�����������
�������=��
���.�������
���������������&�������������#�����	������&����������
���&�
���������������

��2, 0�������������������������
-���������������
�	������#�������������
����=��
������0����
������������
�&�����
.��������
����������
���
�������
���&�����
��
'����������������������
����������
�=��
������

��2; 0��
����������������������
���
��������
���������&�=��
����������������	#�������
-�����
��
����������������������������
���
��
���������������
�*��
���������������������
���&�
���������������������=��
�����

".	������	�����������	

��27 0����
��
��������&����-���
�-�����������&���
���+������
�����-�
������������
���������
�-�
����
�-���������������
��������
����#���������������������������
����
���������
����
���'������������������+���

��&��������������������-�
���#�������������
��������������
��������.�	������������
�
�����������������
�������������������������
����������������
�
����
���
���
���

.��	"�������	�����	!������	

��24 0����-��
�-������������
'��������
������������������������������������������������������
����
������������
'��������
��
���������
�-�������*���������
�������������������-��
���
�������������
��������
���
�.�����
���	��������'������
������
���������
'��������
����
�����������
��-����������������
�����

��3� �������&�������
��������������A�-���"�����!�
���
�����$A"!%��
��������
�-���������
����
�������������������!�#�����.���
	�#�����A�-��������#���������.�����"����������������
��������
��'��������������
�-����������������
&��������������������������������������
�������
�
��������
�-����������	������������
���������
��������������&�����A"!���������������
�*��
��
�����/��
����������
���������������������
�	�������������
��'������
�-�����E���-�
.�����
�-��������	�������	#�����"����������������
����������#����������A"!������������
��	�����
��.���������
���'���
'���
.�A�-��������#���������������*�����#.�������������������������
����
��'����
��������������
�-�����������A"!��

��&���������
�����!�#���������#���������
����
������

��3� 0������
���'��������������������������
������������
-�����
�-��������!�#���������#�
���������&�����������+!"���������!
���������
�+���
����"�������� �������-�
����������
��
�
�����-���������
���������.�����������������
�������
-�����&�����?�

Page 27



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

�� ���������+���
����"�����
�� +������������
�� >��������
�+���
����"�����
��
2� "����������������
3� :����������������������&�����.�����
�������
����������
�
�-����	������
,� �������&.��
�����&�������-���������
;� "�������
���&#�����!������&�
7� ����
��'��&���������
'�
4� A����
�������������
��
��� :���
���&�
��� !�
��
�����.�J�����#�����>������-�������

�

��3� 
�����
�
�-���.��������������������������+���
����"�������
-����������	���������#����������
��������������������-�������������������	�
�������
�-���������
��&�����#��
.����
��
������
B�

• "��+���
����"�������
���&#��������
��
���
�A"!�����	�������
�-���	#�����"�����
�����������

• �������
'��&�����
�����������#������
������������&�����
���
��������-������������
��
'����
�-������
�	����#��

• >��������
���
����
�-��������"���������������)��	�
��	#���������&��
�������
������-�������

• :���
����
�������
�����������!�
�����������������&.����
�-��&��������������
�
�����
���#��

• 0�
'��&����������"��������������.���������&����������
���������������������
���
��������&�&�������������������
��������"����������������

• +��
������������'�#���
��
��������������
���
• �������
���������������
����������	�������������������
�-������	��'��
• �����������������	������
'��&����
����
�����&�������+!"�	������
'����	.�

�����������������
������������������
�-�������
�

��3� ���
���
�������	�
�����
�������
�����	����-������������

��&�������������	�����
�-���
��
���
��������
�����������+���
����"�������
-��������#�������������������������+����
������
?�

• +��
�����&��������	�
���������������������&���������������
��������"�����
������������������
�)��	�
�.����
�����
��
������

• ��

����#.����#�������
���
����������G��&������������'������G�������������
��
�
�����������������������������"���������������������������
#����������������
�

���
����
�-��������)��	�
���������/�������#�	������0��
����������������
���
�
����
�����������
�-������������"��������������.��������
��
�&���
�	�����������
������������
�������
�����������������
�����
&��&���
��/���������������'����.�
���'������
�����������������.�����������
��
�����
�������.���������������
�����&��
�
��������
�-���������
'��������������	����&���&����������
�&���
�����������������
"����������������

• ����
���
����������"�������������������������������������������#������������
#�
��
'���

�������������
�������������D��������
����+�������-���������&��/�
����.����
��������������������
���������
���#��
�-������������+���
����"����(��"������
���
���

• +��
�-��������-����������
�������
���
������������"���������������������	���
)��	�
�����������
���������-�
#���������&
����+���
����"�����!����������������
��������	����#����
�����
���
������
��
����
�������!����������������#?�
• �����������������������&��������������������������+���
������������
-�������

!�#���������#��������B�

Page 28



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

• �/��������������������'�#�������������������!�������������������-�
#�����������
��
��&���������#��
B�����

• �
�-������	
��'��������������������������������������
������*��
��
�����
���
��
����
�&
������&����
����������/���������������#�������&���������������&����&�
���������
��	���&���'��.����
���������
#��

• +��
����������������������������
��������
����
�����+���
����"����������������
�����
���������������������������-������
������-�
�����&
��#.��	=����-��#�����
��������������#��

• +��
���������
�
�-�������
���������������������#���#��
�������
�������������������	��
���
�-����
����
�����
����#�	����������
���
����������������-�
#��

• +��
����������
���������#���
������������
����������������
���������������������
��'��
�����������������
������
�����#���-���������
�-��������
��������
�����

�

������	-��������	���������	

��32 0����-���/������������������(���

��&������������
����������
���������&�����"������
��-�
����������������$"��%��+����������.����
��������"�������������
�������
�����
��������������������
�������������
�'������&�������������������

��33 0����-���������������������������������&�����

��&�������������������������������"���
�����
�-��������
��&��������
������
�����������>/�����-������ ����
������&������������������

�
����

��3, 0����-��
������#�������������+:����
-�#���
�����������������&�-�������	�
������������
�����
�&�
���������"���������������(���������������
�
�����������0��
���&��������������
����������������
��'�������&���������������������
'������
�&�
������
���
������	������#�
��-��#������
�����������
����45���������&�	����������

��3; 0��
���������������������45��������
���-����
��
������������
�+:�����������
������
����
�����#������������.�����/��
����������
�.�����
��'����
�#�����
�������
'����������
	������������������#���������������������
��

�
����#�	��
����-�����
�#������������������
��
�����������������
�����������
��'�����
���
����������5���������������������
���-����������
�����������
#�������������

 �����	���!�����

��37 ����"���������������(����������"�����!
�������
�*��
����������������������
�������������
������������������
���
��

��&��������������
��������#.����������#������������-�������������
�������
����
�����+��������
&��&������
�������	����#.�����
��
�*��
������
�-�������.����
��
���
��
����.��/�������-���������������
���-������������������(����
��
������
��
������
����&������������������������&�������

��&��������

��34 9�
������@�������
�)���#����������������	��������
����	#���
'���

������������������
:����
������������������	���������������
������-��"
���"���������.���������
�������
��'�
	�������
'���

���������������
�������������
����45���"�����!������

��,� 9������	��������������
'����������.�����
��������������������*���������@�������
�)���#�
�������������

Page 29



Plymouth City Council  
Annual Report to those Charged with Governance 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

"�#
��
����

��,� ����"������������������
�*��
���������
�-�����������������������������
�����#��
�������
���45�����+����
���&������������������������������(����������������
�������������=���������
������������������������
�*��
��� ����
����:��
�������������

��

Page 30



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9-
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

"
:�
��

�
��
&�

�
*�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
+�
"
��
,�
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
���
�

��
��
��
���
��
�+�
"
��
,�
�
�
��

�
���
?�

��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
���
��
�

��
��
��
�&
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
���
��

�
��
��
��-
��

�
��
��
��	
���
���
���
���
��
��
��
���

��
��
���
��
��
��
�

&�
��
�
���
�&
�-
�

��
��
��
�

��
���
�

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
�

&�
��
�
���
�&
�-
�

��
��
��
��
���
���
��
�
�

�
��
��
��-
��

�
��
��
��	
���
���
���

��
��

�
-�
��
���
���
��
��
��
�

&�
��
�
���
�&
�-
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�-
��
�	
��

-
��
��
��
��

��
��
&�
�

��

���
��
��
��
���

�
��
��
��

�
�

"�
�
�#
$	

��
��
��
��
�	

��
 �

��
��

��
�	

0
��
	�
��
��
��
�	

"�
��
��
��
��
�
	

0
��
�

��
�	
��
���
��
��
��

�
��
�

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
	=
��
��-
��#
��
���
��
���

�
��
��
��

�
�
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
���
�
��
&�
��
��
��
?�

� •
0
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��#
��
��
��
��
��
�	
#�
��
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
��
��

•
��
��
��

�
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
#�
��
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
��
��
��
��

��
#�
�&
��
���
���
��

�*
��

�
��
*�
��
��#
���
��
��

�
���

•
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
���
��
���

-
��
��
�
��
�&
�

��

�
���
	=
��
���
��

�
��
���
��
��
���
��
��
���
���
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
�(
��

�*
��

�
�
��
��
��

•
0
��
��
�
��
#�
�
���
���
��
"
��
���
�&
�!

�
��
��
��
�<
��

�
1��
>
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��

•
0
��
��
-�
��
��
��

�
-�
��
��
��
#�
��
��
��
��
���
�

-�
��
���
��
��
�4
5�
��
��9

�

���
��
��
�

&�
��
��

��
��
��
��
45
��
��
��
���
��
�8
��
4.
22
��
���
��
���
��
��
���
��
�

�

���
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
���
��
���
��
��
��+
��
��
��
���
�.
��
��
��
-�
��
��

&
��
�8
�4
.�
77
���
�
�
��
��
���
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
�
�

'�
�

���
�&
��

��

���
��
���
��

�
-�
��
���

��
��
��
��
-�
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&

�
��
��
���
��
��
�&
��

��
���
��
�
�
��

��
��
��
���
��
"
��
���
��
�
�
���
��
��

�

Page 31



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9-
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

"�
�
�#
$	

��
��
��
��
�	

��
 �

��
��

��
�	

0
��
	�
��
��
��
�	

�
��

��	
�
��

��
�
�	

9
�

��
��

�
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
���

��
���
���
��
���
��
�

��
��
45
��
��
��
���
��
��
��0

��
��
-�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
���
��
��
���
�&
���
��
��

�
���
��
�

��
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
�1
���

��
��
��
�"
��
���
!

��
���
��
�9
��
�

�'
�#
���
��
�

���
��
��
&�
��&
��
���
��
��
�?
�

� •
0
��
��
��
��
�

���
��
�
��
�

��
���
#�
��
���
��

���
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
���
��
��
�

�
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
���
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�#
�

�


�

�
��

•
0
��
��
-�
�	
��
��
�	
��
���
��
��
��
��
��

�
�

��
��
�
�
���
��
��
��
���
��
'�
#�
��
��
��
���
&�
�#
��
��

���
��

�
���
&�
��
���
��
�
��
��
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
���
��
���

��

�
��
��
���

•
+�
��
��
45
��
��
��
��
-�
�	
��
��
�	
��
���
���
'�
��
��
�

��
��
��

��

���
��
�
�

'�
��
���
��

�
��
��
��
���
��
�
�
��
��
���
���
��
�'
�#
��
��
��
��
��
&�
�#
��
��

���

�

��
��
��
�	

�
��
�
��
�	

��
��
�
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��

�
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
���
�-
�

��
�	
#�
��

��
��
���
&�
�"
��
��
��
��
&�
��
���
��
���

�
���
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
���
�

��
��
��
:!

��
��
4�
��
��
��
/�
��
���
��
���
���
���
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
���
���

�
��
�
��
���
���
��
��
��
��
���
	�
���
��
���
�

���
��
��
��
��

�
�!
��
���
��
��
��
�
��
�

�� ��
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��

�
���
��
���
���
���
���
���
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
&�
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��

�
���
��
�
��
���
��

�
�

��
��
.��
��

�*
��

�
��
	#
�+"

��
7�
��

� 0
��
��
-�
��
��
���
�

��
���
��
�
��
��
��1
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�

���
��
��

�
�

��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��
&�
��
��
�

��

	�
���
��

,
��
��
��
�	�

��
2�
	

��
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��

�
���
��
���
���
��
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
�#
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

��
��

��'
��

�
��
���
��
�&
���
��
�
��
��
��.
���
��
��
��
&�
��&
��
���
��
��

�

��
��

��
'�
��

� 0
��
��
-�
�
�
*�
��
��
��
�

��

���
��
�
��
��
���
��
 �
���

��
��:

��

�
��
��
��
��
�.
���
���
��
��
��
��
���
�

��
�

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

��
��

��'
���
��
��
/�
��
�

��
��
���
���
2�

��
��
��

	�

��
��
�.
��
��
��
���
��
��
�	
��

�
���
��
��
���
���
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
��

� 0
��
�
���
��
���
��
�

��

�
��
�

��
�
��
��
��
���

�
��
��

�
���
��
��
��

�
���
��
��
���
��&
��
���
��
��

��'
���
��
��
/�
��
�

��
���
���
��
�
��
��
���
��
-�
�	
��
��

�
��
&�
���
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
���
2�
��
��
��

	�

��
��
��
�0
��
�
���
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
&�
�

�-
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
�
���

�
��
��
��
&�
�-
�

���
��
��
/�
��
��
�
��
��
���

Page 32



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9-
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

"�
�
�#
$	

��
��
��
��
�	

��
 �

��
��

��
�	

0
��
	�
��
��
��
�	

�
��

��	
�
�'
��
��

��
��
	

0
��
��
-�
��
���
��
��
��
�
���
��
��
�&
��

��
���
��
��
�=
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
.��

��

�

��#
���
���

�

�-
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
���
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
.��
���

��
���
���
��
��
��

��#
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

� ��
���
��
=�
��
�
��
���
���
��

�
�

���
��
��
�"
��
��
��
/�
<�
�

/
��
�'
��
��
�	

�
��
��
�	

	

0
��
��
-�
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
=�
��
��
��



�

���
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��8

��
,,
��

��
��
��
�
�
*�
�
�
��

��
�

���
&�
��
���
��
��
��
�

&�
��
�
���
�&
�-
�

��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
=�
��
��
��



�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��

�
-�
��
��
��
���
��
��
�

��
��-
��
��
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
���
�	
���
���
���
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
(��
��
���
��
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
��
��
��
���
���
���
�#
���
��
���
��
���
��
��
�

��

��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
'�
��
	#
��
��
�&
��

��
���
��
���
��
�=
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
�

��
��
���
��
��

��
���
��
=�
��
�
��
���
���
��

�
�

���
��
��
�"
��
��
��
/�
�
��

*
��
��
	,

��
��
��
	

0
��
��
-�
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
���
��
���
�
�
��
��
���
���
��

��
�

��
���
�

���

�

�-
��

��
���
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�

��
��:
��
��

�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
&

��
��
��
���
��
�

��

���
��
��
��
���
��
"
��
��
��
!�
��
��
��"

��
��
��
/�
A
���
�

� � � � �

Page 33



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9-
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 B

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

<
"
�=
��
��
��
��
���
���
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
	�
��
	�
��
�
���
��
���
���
��&
��
���
��
���
��
���
��
=�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�-
��
	�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
&

��
��
�
���
���
��
A
�
�
��
�

���

��

�

��

�
��
��
��
��

�
�	

�

$�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

,
��
��
��
��

��
��5
�"
��
��
�&
��
��
���
��
-�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
���
���
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
��



��
��
�!�
�
���

��
5��

��
��
�-
��

��
���
���
�	
��
��
��
��

��

��
��
���
��
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
��
5�"

��
��
�&
��
��
���
��
�
�#
���
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
�

��

�
��
��
��
���
��
��
�/
��
��
��
�

#�
��
��
���

� �
�'
��
��

��
�	�
��
�	

:
$$
$	

�

��
��
�	
3�
��
�
�	

"�
��
�
	�
�	
!��

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
	

A
���
��
��

�
��
��
#�

�
�7
�

!�
��
��
��
���
	�
���
#�

D
��
5�
�=
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
���
��
���
-�
��
��
���
��
��

�
��
��
��

��
��
��
	

A
���
��
��

�
��
��
#�

5��
D
��
��
�,
�5�

�
��

��

��
��	
��
��
���
���

�

�
��

��
��
�#
���
��
���
��
���
��
�
��
���
	�
���
��
��	
��
�
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
���

��
��
&�
�

��

���
��
��
��
�
��
���
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�
��
���
��
��

�
���
��
��
��

A
���
��
��

�
��
��
#�

47
�3
�

:
��

�-
��
��
���
��
��
��

�
�

��
���
��
��
�&

�
��
���
��
�
��
��
��

�/
��
��
���

�
�
�
��

-
��
���
��
��
���
��
�

�
��
�+�
��
�
��
��
��

>
/�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��

A
��
��
���
��
���
��
&

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�/
��
��
���

�
��
��
��
��
��

� D
���
�-
�

��
���
��
��
���
���
��
��
	�
-�
��
���
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
#�
��

Page 34



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9-
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

�
��
�
�
�

#�
��
��
��
�=
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��

� �
�'
��
��

��
�	�
��
�	

:
$$
$	

�

��
��
�	
3�
��
�
�	

"�
��
�
	�
�	
!��

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
	

�
���
��
��
�
��
��

�,
,�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
	�
���
#�

A
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
	�
���
#�
	#
�8
�.
,,
�'
�5�
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��

"
��
��

��
��$
&�
��
�%
C�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
�

���
	�
���
��
��	
#�
8�
.,
,�
'�
5��
�:

�
 	

� D
���
�-
�

��
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
�
��
��
��(
��

��
�

��
��
��
���
���
�

�

Page 35



A
n

yw
h

er
e 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9/
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

�
�
6	

;
�6
	

�
��
�	

�
�!
	

�
�
��

�
��
��
���

�	
�
��
��
���
	

<
=,

=1
	



��
�
��	
��
��
��
��
	

"�
��
��

��
��
���

�	
��
��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
3�
���
�	

��
��
�2
�

0
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
��
���

�
-�
��
��
���
��

�

:
��
;�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

�

��
��
�

��
���
��
�#
���
��
���
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
���
�	
��

��
��
���
��
���

���
���
��

�
*�
�
�
�
��
��
��
���
��
��
9
:!

��

�

E
�&
��

"
&

��
��
���
�	
��
��
��
��
���
�D
��
��
�,
��
���
���
��
�
�

��

�
��
��
��
���
��
��
�
��
��
���
���
��

���
��
��
��
#�
���
��
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�	
���
�#
���
���
�	
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
���
�

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

�
�

��

�
��
�

"
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
)
��
�&
�

�

� ��

&
��
��
��
�?
��

�
��

��
��
��

�

��
��
�3
�

0
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
���

��
��
�
��
&�
�
�
��
��
��
�


�
-�
��
.��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
���

�
�&
��
��
���
��

�

�


�
�&
��

��
��
���
���
���
�#
���
��

��
�-
��
���
��
���
��
��

��
��
���
��
�

��
��
��
��

�
���
��
	�
���
��
��
��
���
���
��
�
��
��
��(
���
��
��
��
���

�
�

��
���
��
��
�.
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
���

���
���
��


�
*�
�
�
�
��
��
��
���
��
��
9
:!

��

�

E
�&
��

A
�-
��
��
��
��
#�
�
��
��
���
��
�
��
���
�

���
��
 �

!�
�

!�
��
��
��
�
��
���

��
���
�
��

	�

�	
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
�

��
��
��

�
��
���
��
�
�

�
�
���
���
��
��
��

�
���
��
��
�

��
��
��
��


�
-�
��
�.�
��
��
��
�
:
��
;�

�
��

��
.��
��
���

�
�
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

#�
���
��
��
��#
��
��
��
���
��
���

�
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
���

�
��
&#
.��
��
���
��
��
�-
��
#�
��

�
��
�&
���
��

��
���
��
��
��
�A
�-
��
5�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

'�
�&
�&

�
��
�

�
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
&�
���
��
�

���
��
&�
���
�'
���
��
��
�

��

��
���
��
�

�	
��
�

#�
��
��
�

���
��
��

�
��
�
�

��
��
���
��

��
��
�

���
��
��
���
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��

�
���
��
�

��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�

���
��
���
�	
��
��
���
���
��
��
��
���
��

��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

�
���
	�
��
�

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

�
�

��

�
��
�

"
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
)
��
�&
�

�

� � ��

&
��
��
��
�?
��

0
�

'&

�
��
���
�	
��

��
��
	�
���
��
�9
��
�	
�

�

��
��
�

Page 36



A
n

yw
h

er
e 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9/
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

��
��
�3
�

0
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
��
��(
���



��
&�
�
��
��
���

�

��
��
���
#�
�&
��
��
�

��
��
���
��
��
�#
���
���
�
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�

+
:
+�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��

�
�&
��
��
�	
#�
�

�-
��
��
&�
��
��
���
��
��

�

��
��
�&
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�.�
��

��
/�
�
��
�.
��

�
��

�
�
��
��

��
��
��
&�
���
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
���
&�
��
��
-�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

�&
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
���
���
���

��
�

��
��

)
��
��
�
�

"
&

��
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
�
���
�	
��
��
��

�
�'
��
&�
��

��
�

�

�
�

'�
��
���
��
���
#�
��
��
��
��
���
�

-�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�


�
�&
��

��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
�

��#
��
���
�

���
��
�

�

��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�+�
��

�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��:
��
�

���
&�
��
��
��

�
��$
+
:
�%
���
�

��
��
C�
��
���

� 0
�

'�
��
�
�
���
��
�
�

��
��
���
��
��

�
-�
��
��

��
��
�&
�

��
���
�
�
��
#�
	�
��
��

�
&

��
��
��
-�
��
��
��
��
��
#�
�

�
�

'�
��
��
��
�"
�&
��
�.�
��
��
���
��
��
�	
#�
!�

�
��
��
��
�

��
-�

�
��
��

-
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
���

��
���
���
��
��
���
��
�

&

��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
���
�

��

�

��

�!

�
��

�
�
��
���
��
��
�

��

�
��
�!

�
��

�
#�
��
�

�
��
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
��
��
���

�
��
���

��
�

��
�

��
��
�#
���
���

� ��
��
��
/�
���
��
���
���
��
�

'�
�
���
�A
��
�

��
��
��
��

)
��
�&
��

��
���
��
�
���
��

�
-�
��
��
���
��
��

�
��
���
�"
�#
�

�


�
�&
��

��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
���
&�
��
��
�

���

��
�

�
���
��
�+

:+
�
��
��
���
�	
��
��
�

��

��
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��
�

��

��

���
��
���
��
��
��
C�
��
��
��
��

��
���
��"

��
��
��
���

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

�
�

��

�
��
�

"
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
)
��
�&
�

�

� ��

&
��
��
��
�?
�

� )
�

��
��
��
��
�

2�
��
�;
�

0
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
��
��(
���



��
&�
�
��
��
���

�


�
-�
��
��
&�
�/
���
��
&�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

��
��
���

��
�
	�
��
��
�

��

�-
��
�-
��
���
��
��
�	
��
��

�
�&
��
��
��
���

��
�

�	
#�
�

�-
��
��
&�

��
��
���
��
���

�
��
��
&�
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�5
���
��
��
���
��
���
��

��
��
��
���
��
-�
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
&�
��
��
���
��

�
*�
���
��
�

��
�

��
��

��
���
���

)
��
��
�
�

"
&

��
��
��"

&�
��
���

��
�

��
�

'�
�
���
�	
��
��
��

�
�'
��
�

��
���
���
���
��
��
�

��
&�
��
��
C�
��
��
��
�

���
��
�

�

��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�+

:
��
��"

�#
��
��
�&
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
�

��
��
��
���
��
��
��

#
��
���

��
��
���

�

'�

�
���
�	
��
��
��

�
�

��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
C�
��

��
��
��

��
���
��"

��
��
��
���

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

�
�

��

�
��
�

"
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
)
��
�&
�

�

� � ��

&
��
��
��
�?
��

)
�

��
��
��
��
�

Page 37



A
n

yw
h

er
e 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9/
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

3�
��
�7
�

"
���
&�
���
��
��
��
�	
��

�	
��
��
��
��
��8

2�
;�
�
���
���
��
��
��
���
��

�
��
��
���
��
/�
�#
��
��

���

��
��
��
�

��
��
�4
4�
54
2�
��
��
44
45

��
��
��
��
��
���
��

�
-�
��
��
��

��
��
��
���
��+
���
��
���
���
��
�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
���
���
��
��
�	
��
�

��
��
��
��
���
��
���
��

�
���
���
��
�
��
��
��(
���
��
��
#�
��
��

��
��
&�
��
���
�	
��
��

)
��
��
�
�

��
���
	�
��
��
��
�
���
�	
��

�
-�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��

�
�

���
��

�

��
��
��
��
���
�

��
&�
��
��
C�
��
�

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

E
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
.�

"
��
��
���
��
�

>
��
��
��
��
��
��

� ��

&
��
��
��
�?
�

� )
�

��
��
��
��
�

,�
��
��
�

��
��
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
���

�
�&
��
��
��



��
&�
�
��
��
���
��
��
�

��

��
��
��
���
�
��

	�

�
��
��
�
�
��
-�
��
��
��
��
�

���

��
��
��
��

�
*�
�
�
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�
���
��
��
��
���
�#
���
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��


�
��
��
���

��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�-
�

��#
���
�

��
��
���
��
���

�
��
��
&�
���

�
*�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
��

�
#�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
/�
��
��

)
��
��
�
�

"
&

��
��
��+
���
���

�
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
�C
��
���
��
���
�

	�
��
��
��
��
��

#
�
�
*�
�
�
�
��
���
�

�)
��

	�

�
��
��
�


�
��
-�
��
�9
��
��
�

���
��
��
	�

���
��
��

�:

��
��
��
�!
�

�#
�

:
��
�

��
��+
��
�

��

��
��
��
��
�

���
��
��

�*
��

�
�
��
�.�

�


�
�&
��

��
��
���
���
���
�

��
��
���
�	
��
��

�
�&
��
��
��
�	
#�

�

�-
��
��
&�
�

��
��
�&
��
��
�&
��
��
��
�.
��
��
��
��
��#
���
�

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
4C
��
��
��
�

��
��

��
&�
��
��
���
�

��
���
�
�

��
-�
&�

�
��
���
���
�
5�
��

��
���
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�	
�
���

�
��

�
��	
#�

��
��
��
��
���
��
���

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

�
�

��

�
��
�

"
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
)
��
�&
�

�

� ��

&
��
��
��
�?
��

� )
�

��
��
��
��
�

Page 38



A
n

yw
h

er
e 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9/
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

;�
��
2;
�

0
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��

�
��

�
��
��
���

��
��
��
���
&�

=�
�

��
���
���
��
��
��
��
	#
��
���
��

-
��
��
��
�

��
���
��
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
��
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��

�
*�
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

���
&�
��
��
�
��
��
���
��
��
���
��
=�
�

��
���

�

)
��
��
�
�

��
�

��
���
��
=�
�

��
���
�

'�
�&
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

�

��
��
���
�&
�=�
�

��
���
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
��
��

�
�

���

��
�
�
*�
�
�
��
��
��
9
��
��
�

���

�
��
��
��

�
&�
��
��
�

��
��
��
���
��
�

���
&�
�-
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��#
�

�
��

�
-�

��
��
��	
��
���
��

�
�

���
��

�
-�
��
��
�

�

��
��
�

��
���
��
���
�

��
���
�

�� ��
��
�
�

'�
�&
��

�
��
��
��
���

�
-�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��#
���
�

��
��

�
���
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
-�
��
��
��
�9
��
��
�

��

�

��

�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
-�
��
��
��
&�

��
��

��

�

'�
��
���
���
�

��
���
�

� �
���
�
��
&�
��
��

�
-�
��
��
��=
��

�
��
��
-�
��
��
��

��
��

�
�'
��
�	
#�
��
��
�/
��

�
��
��
��
���

��
���
�

���
���
��
��

#�
�

1��
��
��
�.�
9
��
��
�

���

���
�
�
���
���
��
�

��
���
��
���
��
��

�

��
�	
#�
�

�-
��
��
&�
��

��
�

�&
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�&
�

�
��

�
��
��
��
��

#
�-
��
� 
��
&�

��

�
��
��
&.
���
��
��

	

��
���
&�
.��
��
���

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

�
�

��

�
��
�

"
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
)
��
�&
�

�

� � ��

&
��
��
��
�?
��

D
�-
��

	�

��
��
��
�

Page 39



A
n

yw
h

er
e 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9/
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

7�
��
3�
�

"�
��
��
��
	�
��
��	
��
��
�>

	
� ��

+�
�

��
��
���
��
��
�
	�

��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
&�
�

�
���
���
��
�
��
�
�
��
���
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
��
��
�

��
��

�)

��
	�

�
.��
��

�
��
��

�
�

��
��
��

� � �
��

0
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���

�
��

��
��
�

�
��
��
��
	�
�

�

�-
��
��
���
���
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
.��
��
��
�
�

��


�
&�
��

�	
��
��.
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
���

�
��
��
��

�
�

��
�
�
��
���
��

��
��

�
��
�
�

&�
�&
��

� � � � � � �
��

��
��

�
��

��
���
���
��
"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
���
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
�#
���
��
��
�
��
��

#
��
�

'�

��



��
��
��
���
���
�
�
��
���
��
���
��
D
��
��
��
��

�
��
�

+�
���
��
�-
��
�
��
��
��
&�
�/
�

��
��
��

� � �

)
��
��
�
�

�
�

��
"
&

��
��
�

� � � � � ��
"
&

��
�.
��
��

�
��
��

�
�

��
��
���
+�
���
��
��
��
�

��
�
�
��
���
��

��
��
���

��
'�
��
���
�-
��
	�
��
�

��
&�
��&
��
��
���
�"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
��
�&
���
��
'�
��
�

	�
���
��
���
��
���
��
�#
��
��
���
&�
��
#�

�


�
�&
��

��
��
.��
��
��
*�
��
��#
��
��
���
:
��
��
��#
.�

��
�
�-
�

.��
��

�
��
�-
��
	�
��
��
��
#�

��
�

�-
��

��
��
��
�

��
��!

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

	�
��
��
��
��
��

#
���
��
��

�
��
���
��
��
���
��
�#
��
��

��
#�
�

��
���
��
��
��
�


�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
���

��
��

�
�#
.��
��

�-
�

.�

�-
�

��
���
���
�
�
��
��
��
.��
���
�.
�

��
��
���
��
���
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
���
�	
��
�

�-
��
��
���
�

"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
���

� ��
"
&

��
��
���
��
���

���
�	
��
�


�
�&
��
���
�

� � :
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

"
��
���
��
��E

��
��
��
�

!�

�
��

�
��
�.
�A
"
!�

��

&
��
��
��
�?
��
��

��
��
��

� � :
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

"
��
���
��
��E

��
��
��
�

!�

�
��

�
��
�.
�A
"
!�

��

&
��
��
��
�?
�9
�&
��
�&
�

� � � � � � :
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

"
��
���
��
��E

��
��
��
�

!�

�
��

�
��
�.
�A
"
!�

��

&
��
��
��
�?
�

��
C�
C�
��
��

�

Page 40



A
n

yw
h

er
e 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9/
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

7�
��
3�
�

�
2�

��
��
��
-�
���
���
��
�

�
��
��
��

�
��

�
��
���
��
��
��
"
��
���

�
��

�
���
��
���
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�-
��
.��
��
��
�	
��
�

)
��

	�

�
���
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�-
�

#�
��
���
��
�&

�
��
�

+�
��

�
��
�"
��
���
!�
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
	�
���
#�
�
��

�
���
�#
��

�
��
��
�

��

�
���

�
�
�

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
���
��
�#
?�

�5�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
&�
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
+�
��

�
��
�"
��
���
��

-
��
��
��
�!
�#
�
��
��
��
��#
�

�
��
��
��B
�

5��
/�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��'
�#
��
�
��
��

��
��
���
���
��

!�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��-
�

#�
��
��
��
���
�

��

�
�&
��
��
���
��
#�
�

B��
��
�

5��

�
-�
��
��
�	

�
�'
��
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
*�
�

��

��
��
�
�
��

��
��
�

�

�&

�
��
���
&�
��
�

��
���
��
��
�/
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�#
�

���
��
�&
��
��
��
�
��
���

���
&�
���
&�
��
���
��
��

�
�

	�
��
&�
��
'�
��
�

� �
	

�
2�
���
��
��
��
�
�
��
�	
��
�
��
��
!�

�
��
��
���
��
��
��

�

A
"
!�
!�

��
�

�"
��
��

��
��
���
���
��
��
��
���
��

�&

�
��
���
��
��
&�
�


�
�&
��

��
��
���
!�

�
1��

��
�	
�

�	
��
��
��
��
��
	�
�*
��
��
��
��
�+"

1��

�
��

�
��

��
�"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
���
�!
�#
�
��
��
��
���
���
�

� �
�
�#
��
�
��
��

��
��
���
���
��
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
#�

��
��
���
��
��
�
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�+"

�

�
��

��
���
E
��

�-
�

��
��
�

�&

�
��
��
���
�	
��

��
��

�
�

��
��
���
��
���
��
�
��
��

�
��

�
���
�

��
&�
��&
��
��
�#
��
��
��
���
���
�&
��
�-
��
��
��
��
���
��
�

��
��
&�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�-
��
��
�A
"
!1
��

��
��

�
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
��
���
���

� "
&

��
��
��
��
�"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
���
��
��
�	
��

��
�

��
��
��
��
��
�#
���
&�
���
��
��
���
��
��
&�
���
��
�

��
���
��
�	
��
�&
���
'�
��
��
��
�


�
��
���
��
���
��
���
��
K�

��
��
��
���
���
��

�
��
#�
	�
��
&�
�

�-
��
��
���
"
���
�

���
��

A
"
!1
���
��
�

��
��
��
��
�&
��

�
��
��
��
��
�
���
���
�'
�

��
�
�

��
�*
��

�
�

�#
���
��
��
���
&�
��
��
��
���

�
-�
��
��

��
���

�
��

��
��
��
��
���
��

�
��
��
��
�

�-
��
��
���
�

"
��
���
�
��

�
���
��
���
�

�
�

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

�?�

A
�
�
��
�

���

�

�
�

��

�
��
��
��
��

�
�H
�

"
��
���
��
��E

��
��
��
�

!�

�
��

�
��
�.
�A
"
!�
�

��

&
��
��
��
�?
��

D
�-
��

	�

��
��
��

� :
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

"
��
���
��
��E

��
��
��
�

!�

�
��

�
��
�.
�A
"
!�
�

��

&
��
��
��
�?
�

D
�-
��

	�

��
��
��

� � � :
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

"
��
���
��
��E

��
��
��
�

!�

�
��

�
��
�.
�A
"
!�
�

��

&
��
��
��
�?
�)
�

��
�

��
��
��

� �

Page 41



A
n

yw
h

er
e 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9/
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

7�
��
3�
�

3�
���
+�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��

�
���
��
��

�
���

�

��
��+
��
�

��
��"

��
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
���
�-
��
��
��

�
��
��
�-
�

���
��
&

��#
.�

�	
=�
��
�-
��#
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
���
#�
�

� � � � � �
�

� ,�
���
+�
�
�
��
��
��
��

�

�-
��
�
���
�

��
���
��
���
���
���
��
���
#�

��
#�
�

��
���

��

�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�-
��
��

�

�
��

�
���
�

��
�
�#
�	
��
��
��
��
��

��

�

��
��
���
��
��
�

��
��-
�

#�
�

� � � ;�
���
+�
�
�
��
��
��
���

�
��
��
��
��
#�
��

��
��
���
�
��
��

��
��
��
��
�

��
��
���

�
��
��
��
���
�
��
���
��
��
�

��
'�
��
��
��
��
���
���
��

�

��
��
��

�
���
�#
��
�-
��
��
��
��
�

�-
��
��
��
��

�
���
��
��


�
��
��

�

�
3�
���
"
���
A
"
!�
��
��
��

�
��
�


�
��
�#
���
&�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
���
��

�
��
���
��
��
�
��
�.�
��
��
��
���
��

��

��
-�

#
��
��
���
��
��

��
'�
�.
��
��
��
��
�-
�

��

�	
=�
��
�-
��#
���
A
"
!�
�
��
�&
��

��
���

���
��
��
���
�

�


�
��
��
��
&�
��
���
�


�
�&
��

��
���

���
��
��
�

��

��
�
�

��
��
��-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
���
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�#
���
��
���
��
��
��

�
��
�

��
���
��
�

!�

�
��

�
��
��
�A
"
!�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
>
/�
�

��
��

"
��
���
��
�

��
&�
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��

��

�
��
��
���
�A
"
!�
���
��
��
�	
��
���
�

�
,�
��"

���
��
��
���
��
�&
��

��
��
��

�
�
�
-�
��
��
�	
#�
��
��
��
�

�

�
��

	�

��
���
��
��
���
E
��

�-
�

.��
��
���
�

��
��
��

�
���
�	
��
&�
-�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
���
��

�
-�
��
��

�
��
��
�

��
���
���

�
��

��

��

�
	#
��
��
���
�
��
�&
�

���

��
��
�

��



#�
��
���
��

�

�-
��
�
���
��
��
��

��
��
��
	�
���
���
�

�
� ;�
���
��
���
��

�
��
#�
��
��
��
���
��
�

��
���
��
	�
���

���
�	
��

��
��
��
�

��
�	
#�
A
"
!�
�
��
�&
��

��
���
�

���

�
��
�

��
�

��
��
���
��
��

�
��
���
��
!�

��
�

��
��
��

�

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

�?�

A
"
!�
)
��
�&
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

&
��
��
��
�?
�6�
��
��
��
��

� � � � � � � :
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

�?�

A
"
!�
)
��
�&
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

&
��
��
��
�?
�6�
��
��
��
�

� � � :
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

�?�

A
"
!�
)
��
�&
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

&
��
��
��
�?
�6�
��
��
��
�

Page 42



A
n

yw
h

er
e 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 2
00

9/
10

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

4�
��
3;
�

0
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
�4
5�
��
��
�
��

�
��-
��
��

�
�


�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�+

:
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
���
��
�

��
��
�#
��
��
���
��
�

�
�.
��
���
/�
�

��
���
��
���

�
.��
��
�

��
'�
��
�

�#
��
��
�

��
��
��
�

'�

��
���
��
��
	�
��
��
��
���
���
��
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

�

�


�

�
��
�#
�	
��

�
��
�-
��
��
�

�#
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��

�
���
��
���
��

�
��
��
���

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�'
���
��

�
��

�
���
��
��
��
5�
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��

�
��-
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

#�
��
��
���
�� �

E
�&
��

"
&

��
��
���
��
�+

:
��
�

�=
��
���
��
��
��
��'
�#
�

�
���
��
��
��
�	
��
���
��
���
��

�
�

���
�
�
��
��
��
��
�-
�

��
��

�	
=�
��
�-
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
�+

:
��
��
��
��
��
�	
#�
��
�6�
��
�

��
��
���
0
�

'�
���
��



��
��#
�	
��
�&
��
��
�

��
'�
��
��
�


�
��
��
��
	�
��
���
��
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
��
&�
	�
��
��
��
���

�

��
�4
C�
��
��
���
��
��
��

��

�
��-
��
��
��
���
��

�
��

�
��

�
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
A
��
��

	�

��
��
��
��

��
��
�
��
��
���
�
���
��
��
�

��
��
��
���
��
�/
��

�
��
��
��
���

�

���
��
��
��
#�
��
-�
�-
��
���
��

�
��

�
���
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
'�
���
��
�

��
��
��
�

'�
��
�

��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��

�
�

���
��
-�
��
�

��
��
��
��
���
���
�

��
�

��
��
��
���
��
�

��
��
���

:
��
��
��
�	
��
�9
��
��
�

?�

�
�

��

�
��
�

"
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
)
��
�&
�

�

� � ��

&
��
��
��
�?
�

A
��
��

	�

��
��
��
�

Page 43



©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
 

Page 44



�

�

�
�

� ���%����
&
����
��%��%���
� L�������
�������
��������  !��"���
�&����
���
-����

 

G�
�������
����G��������
�������
��������  !.��������������	����#���
���
������
�

�
�������
��������  !���������	�
���
����������
�������
�����+���
��������� ���$(�
�������
�����
+���
��������(%���
�������
�����+���
��������������������	�
���
����
����������
���������
���
�������
��
-������
������-�
���	#��������	�
���
���������������#��
 

D��
�������	����#�����	�����������	#������
����������������������#���
���������&��
�
��
�����&��
���
�����&������
�����������#�����
��������������	���������

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

Subject: Statement of Accounts 2009/10 

Committee: Audit Committee 

Date: 24 September 2010 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Bowyer  

Author: Sandra Wilson 

Contact: Tel:  01752 (30)4942 
e-mail: Sandra.Wilson@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref: ACCT/SW 

Part: 1

Executive Summary: 

The draft Statement of Accounts was approved by Audit Committee at its 
meeting on 28 June 2010. The accounts have now been audited and the Audit 
Governance Report outlining the auditor’s findings is being presented to this 
meeting.

Following the audit, there have been a few minor amendments to the 
statements and disclosure notes and there is now a requirement for Audit 
Committee to re-approve the accounts prior to the statutory deadline of 30 
September 2010. The changes act to strengthen the disclosure of information 
only, and do not change the reported position.

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

The Council’s expenditure forms the basis on which the Corporate Plan can be 
delivered. 

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications: 
Including Finance, Human IT and Land: 

The 2009/10 final accounts will have implications on the Medium Term 
Financial Plan.  The level of Working Balance and reserves will affect the level 
of funding available in future years and variations in Service Expenditure will 
also need to be reviewed to assess the effects on future years.

Agenda Item 6Page 47



Other Implications:  e.g.  Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety 
etc:

N/A

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 

1.  Audit Committee note the amendments made to the Statement of Accounts 
for 2009/10 as outlined in this report. 

2. Audit Committee approve the action by Officers to not adjust the accounts 
for the reduction in the teachers unfunded pension liability of £1.661m as 
outlined in the report. 

3. The Statement of Accounts for 2009/10 as now presented be formally re-
approved.

4. The letter of representation attached at Appendix C is authorised and 
submitted to the auditor. 

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 

None – Statutory requirement to produce and approve the Statement of 
Accounts

Background papers: 

Final Accounts Working Papers 2009/10 
Budget Papers 2009/10 
Statement of Recommended Practice 2009 (SORP) 
Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2009 (BVACoP) 
Outturn Report to Cabinet 8 June 2010 
Report to Audit Committee 28 June 2010 re draft Statement of Accounts 

Sign off:

 Fin MC1011.
005

Leg DS9668 HR N/A AM N/A IT N/A Strat
Proc

N/A

Originating SMT Member: Malcolm Coe, AD Finance, Assets and Efficiencies 

Page 48



1.      INTRODUCTION 

1.1    The draft Statement of Accounts was approved by Audit Committee at its 
meeting of 28 June 2010.The formal audit commenced on 6 July 2010 
and has been ongoing until now. The External Auditor’s Governance 
Report, including the findings on the annual accounts audit, is being 
presented to this meeting.

1.2 Some minor changes have been made to the Statements following 
discussions with the auditor and therefore the Accounts need to be re-
approved by Audit Committee. The changes act to strengthen the 
disclosure of information only, and do not change the reported position.

1.3 The Council is also required to identify and report on any post balance 
sheet events that have occurred since the date of the original approval. 
The Statement of Accounts therefore includes all post balance sheet 
events up to and including the 15 September 2010.

1.4 As part of the final audit requirement, and prior to the issue of the audit 
certificate, the Council is required to complete and sign a formal letter of 
representation and submit this to the auditor. In line with last year this 
letter may be signed by the Director of Corporate Support and the Chair 
of Audit Committee and is attached at Appendix C. 

1.5 Council Officers would like to express their thanks to the Audit staff for 
their help and assistance in producing and finalising the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts.

2. AMENDMENTS MADE TO THE ACCOUNTS 

2.1 Amendment to Statements

2.1.1 Following discussions with the Auditor, Council Officers have agreed to 
amend both the Single Entity and Group Accounts Income and 
Expenditure Statements to separate the ‘gain on sale of subsidiary’ 
(Citybus) from ‘other’ income. 

2.1.2 In addition, Officers have adjusted the Group Income and Expenditure 
Account to remove the line ‘Appropriation to group income and 
expenditure reserve’ and thus show the group deficit on the face of the 
group Income and Expenditure Account.

2.2 Disclosure Notes

2.2.1 Note 36 – Pensions Disclosures 

 In line with the recommendation of the auditor, Officers have 
strengthened the pensions disclosure note 36, by including a table at 
36.3 to show the analysis of the pensions liability between: 

Page 49



! LGPS – Funded liabilities 
! LGPS – Unfunded liabilities 
! Teachers Pensions – Unfunded Liabilities.  

2.3 The revised statements are included at Appendix A with the amended 
disclosure note attached at Appendix B.  

3.      AUDIT FINDINGS NOT ADJUSTED IN ACCOUNTS 

3.1 Unfunded Pensions Liabilities – Teachers

The Council has declared a pensions liability of £449.381m on its 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2010. This figure includes a sum of 
£38.799m in relation to unfunded liabilities of which £20.241m relates to 
unfunded teachers pension (TPS) liabilities (see amended note 36.3 as 
outlined Appendix B).  Whilst the LGPS unfunded liabilities had been 
revalued as at 31 March 2010, the TPS unfunded liabilities had not been 
formally revalued since 31 March 2004. This is not in accordance with 
Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 17 Retirement Benefits which 
requires full actuarial valuations by a professionally qualified actuary to 
be obtained for all liabilities at intervals not exceeding three years. 

Following discussions with the auditor, Council Officers have now 
obtained an updated valuation of the Teachers unfunded liabilities from 
the actuary. As a result, the total value of teachers unfunded liabilities 
has reduced by £1.661m to £18.580m, reducing the overall PCC 
pensions liability as at 31 March 2010 to £447.720m. Given the value of 
the adjustment compared to the overall liability, Council Officers have, 
with the agreement of the Auditor, decided not to adjust the accounts for 
this variance.

4.    POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 

4.1    Events happening after the 31 March 2010 and up until the date on 
which the accounts are authorised must be reflected in the accounts if 
they would have a material effect on the financial position.  There is a 
requirement that this date should be published in the accounts.  The 
relevant date is the date the accounts were re-authorised by the Director 
of Corporate Support following audit and for 2009/10 reporting purposes 
this is 15 September 2010. The Council has the following post balance 
sheet event to report: 

As part of the emergency budget announcements in June 2010, the 
new coalition Government announced that in future the pension 
increase order applied to public service pension schemes will be 
linked to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) rather than the Retail Price 
Index (RPI) from April 2011. It is expected that this will generate 
savings as the CPI will be lower than RPI in future. The Audit 
Commission has decided that this change represents a non-adjusting 
post balance sheet event.  

Page 50



Disclosure note 3 has been updated to include this change, as outlined 
in Appendix B.

4.2 The move to CPI will change the valuation of Pension Fund liabilities 
shown within the authority’s accounts. If the CPI had been used for 
2009/10 accounts, the Council’s pension fund liability as at 31 March 
2010 would have been £407.636m, a reduction of £40.084m. 

5.      RECOMMENDATIONS 

5.1 Audit Committee note the amendments made to the Statement of 
Accounts for 2009/10 as outlined in this report. 

5.2 Audit Committee approve the action by Officers to not adjust the 
accounts for the reduction in the teachers unfunded pensions liability of 
£1.661m as outlined in the report. 

5.3 The Statement of Accounts for 2009/10 as now presented be formally re-
approved.

5.4 The letter of representation attached at Appendix C is authorised and 
submitted to the auditor. 

Page 51



APPENDIX A 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010 

This account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing services 
and managing the Council during the last year. It includes all day-to-day expenses and related income 
on an accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of fixed assets actually consumed 
and the real projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the year. 

Note 2009/10 2009/10 2009/10 Restated
2008/09 Gross Gross Net

Exp. Inc. Exp.

£000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure on General Fund Services:

5,219 Central Services to the Public 1 26,877 (22,673) 4,204

57,437
Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory & 
Planning Services 85,523 (29,638) 55,885

67,918 Adult Social Care 91,646 (19,137) 72,509
75,488 Education and Children’s Services 328,084 (219,500) 108,584 
18,161 Highways & Transport Services 29,255 (12,122) 17,133

107,609  Housing-(Housing Revenue Account) 31,980 (30,448) 1,532
5,843 Other Housing Services 103,301 (100,582) 2,719
5,691 Corporate & Democratic Core 5,334 (106) 5,228
8,475 Non Distributable Costs 4,987 0 4,987

351,841   Net Cost of  Services 706,987  (434,206) 272,781 

Other Operating Income & Expenditure:

23,091 Loss/(gain) on Disposal of Fixed Assets 4 & 23.2 461,228 

(1,214) Other Income 6 (1,445) 

0 Other Income- Gain on sale of Subsidiary 6 (17,465) 
190 Precepts & Levies 193

209
(Surplus)/deficit on trading activities not 
included in Net Cost of Services 5.2 (108) 

21,983 Interest Payable and Similar Charges 9 21,855

             1,473  
Contribution to Devon County Council Pre-
Reorganisation Debt 30 1,414

962
Contribution of Housing Capital Receipts to 
Government Pool 7 564

(15,932) Interest & Investment Receivable (7,542) 

13,410
Pensions interest cost and expected return 
on pension assets 36 25,656

396,013   Net Operating Expenditure 757,131 

(88,640) Demand on the Collection Fund 17 (92,837) 
(30,086) General Government Grants 21.2 (38,269) 
(88,393) Non Domestic Rates Distribution (84,076) 

188,894   TOTAL DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 541,949 

Page 52



APPENDIX A 
GROUP INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010 

Restated
2008/09 Notes

2009/10
Gross

2009/10
Gross

2009/10
Net

Net Exp.   Exp. Inc. Exp.

£000   £000 £000 £000 

Expenditure on General Fund Services:    

5,219 Central Services to the Public 26,877 (22,673) 4,204

58,181
Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory & Planning 
Services 3 99,792 (44,050) 55,742 

67,918 Adult Social Care 91,646 (19,137) 72,509

75,488 Children’s and Education Services 328,084 (219,500) 108,584 

14,575 Highways & Transport Services 25,464 (12,105) 13,359

107,609 Housing - (Housing Revenue Account) 31,980 (30,448) 1,532

5,843 Housing Services - Other 103,301 (100,582) 2,719

5,691 Corporate & Democratic Core 5,334 (106) 5,228

8,475 Non Distributable Costs 4,987 0 4,987

348,999 Subtotal – Continuing operations 717,465 (448,601) 268,864 

2,486 Discontinued Operations 2 10,100 (6,578) 3,522

351,485 Subtotal 727,565 (455,179) 272,386 

(76) Share of Operating Result of Associates 5,412 (5,369) 43

2,309 Share of Operating Result of joint ventures 5,978 (3,717) 2,261

353,718 Net Cost of Services of Group c/f 738,955 (464,265) 274,690 

Page 53



APPENDIX A 

GROUP INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010 (CONT)

Restated
2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 2009/10 

Exp.   Exp. Inc. Exp. 
£000 £000 £000 £000

353,718 Net Cost of Services of Group b/f 738,955 (464,265) 274,690 

Other Operating Income & Expenditure:    

23,086 Loss/(gain) on Disposal of Fixed Assets 461,224 

(1,214) Other Income (1,446) 

0 Other Income – Gain on sale of Subsidiary (10,658) 

190 Precepts & Levies 193

209
Surplus)/deficit on trading activities not 
included in Net Cost of Services     (107) 

22,107 Interest Payable and Similar Charges 21,937

0 Share of interest payable of associates 6

866 Share of interest payable of joint ventures 850

1,473 Contribution to Devon County Council Pre-
Reorganisation Debt 1,414

962 Contribution of Housing Capital Receipts 
to Government Pool 564

(15,614) Interest & Investment Receivable (7,543) 

(7) Share of interest & investment income of 
associates  (1)

(92) Share of interest & investment income of 
joint ventures (7)

13,410 Pensions interest cost and expected 
return on pension assets 25,656

(35) 
Share of pensions interest cost and 
expected return on pensions assets of 
associates 

  127 

6
Share of pensions interest cost and 
expected return on pensions assets of 
joint ventures 

  96 

332 Taxation of group entities 0

23
Share of taxation of associates & joint 
ventures (39) 

399,420 Net Operating Expenditure 766,956 

(88,640) Demand on the Collection Fund   (92,837) 

(30,086) General Government Grants (38,269) 

(88,393) Non Domestic Rates Distribution (84,076) 

192,301 TOTAL DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 551,774 

Page 54



APPENDIX A 

RECONCILIATION OF THE SINGLE ENTITY SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR TO THE 
GROUP SURPLUS OR DEFICIT 

Restated
2008/09 2009/10

£000 £000

188,894 (Surplus) or deficit on single entity's I & E for the year 541,949 

366
Less: subsidiary & associate dividend income & any other distributions from 
group entities included in the single entity surplus or deficit on the I & E account –
discontinued operations 

0

Add:  (surplus) or deficit arising from other entities included in the group accounts 
analysed into the amounts attributable to: 

52 Subsidiaries 6,493

(100) Associates 132

3,089 Joint ventures 3,200

192,301 Group Account (surplus)/deficit for the year 551,774

Page 55



Appendix B

Amendment to Disclosure Notes 

Note 3 - Events After the Balance Sheet  

Although the Statement of Accounts shows the financial outturn position for 2009/10 and 
Balance Sheet position as at 31 March 2010, the Council is required to take into account 
items occurring after 31 March 2010 if they would have a material effect on the figures.  
The Council has one event to report as at 24 September 2010. As part of the emergency 
budget announcements in June 2010, the new coalition Government announced that in 
future the pension increase order applied to public service pension schemes will be 
linked to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) rather than the Retail Price Index (RPI) from 
April 2011. It is expected that this will generate savings as the CPI will be lower than RPI 
in future. The Audit Commission has decided that this change represents a non-
adjusting post balance sheet event.  

The move to CPI will therefore change the valuation of Pension Fund liabilities shown 
within the authority’s accounts. If the CPI had been used for 2009/10 accounts, the 
Council’s pension fund liability as at 31 March 2010 would have been £407.636m, a 
reduction of £40.084m from that shown in the Balance Sheet. 

Note 36- Pensions Disclosures 

36.3 Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Retirement Benefits 

Analysis of net pension liability in the balance sheet: 

Net Pension Asset as at
31 Mar 09 

£000
31 Mar 10 

£000
Present value of funded obligation (614,710) (795,452)

Fair value of Schemes assets (bid value) 320,870 384,870

Net Liability (293,840) (410,582)

Present value of unfunded obligation – LGPS (19,080) (18,558)

Present value of unfunded obligation – Teachers’ Pensions (17,610) (20,241)

Net Liability in Balance Sheet (330,530) (449,381)

Page 56



Appendix B

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances for scheme assets and liabilities:  

Changes to the present value of liabilities during the accounting 
period 2008/09 2009/10 

£000 £000

Opening present value of liabilities (592,560) (651,400)

Current Service Cost (15,930) (15,999)

Interest Cost (40,470) (43,037)

Actuarial gains / (losses) on liabilities (16,100) (188,649)

Gains (losses) on curtailments 0 (1,713)

Liabilities extinguished on settlements 8,570 51,908

Estimated benefits paid 14,840 19,935

Past Service Cost (4,140) 0

Contributions by scheme participants (7,430) (7,291)

Unfunded pension payments 1,820 1,995

Closing present value of liabilities (651,400) (834,251)

Changes to the present value of assets during the accounting 
period 2008/09 2009/10 

£000 £000

Opening present value of assets 395,210 320,870

Expected rate of return 27,160 17,381

Actuarial gains & (losses) (108,080) 87,445

Employer contributions 23,180 22,885

Contributions by scheme participants 7,430 7,291

Benefits paid (14,840) (19,935)

Settlements (9,190) (51,067)

Closing present value of assets 320,870 384,870

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected 
returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy.  Expected 
yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the 
balance sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates 
of return experienced in the respective markets.  

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £87.45m (2008/09: (£108.08m)). 

Page 57



Appendix C 

  A.Broome BSc CPFA - Director of Corporate Resources 

 !        "
        

   Tel: (01752) 304940

FINANCE SERVICES 
Corporate Resources Department 

Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth 
PL1 2AA 

   Tel: (01752) 304940
   Email: adam.broome@plymouth.gov.uk

www.plymouth.gov.uk

# $ Date: 24 September 2010 
       

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Hartwell House 
55-61 Victoria Street 
Bristol BS1 6FT 

When calling or telephoning please ask for: Adam Broome 

My Ref:   Your Ref:            

Dear Sirs 

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2010 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief that the following representations are made 
on the basis of appropriate enquiries of other officers, management and staff, with relevant 
knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, of inspection of supporting documentation) 
sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of the following representations to 
you in respect of your audit of the above financial statements. 

i We acknowledge our responsibilities for preparing financial statements which present fairly 
the financial position of this council and for making accurate representations to you. 

ii As far as we are aware: 
- there is no relevant audit information of which you are unaware; and 
- we have taken all steps that we ought to have taken to make ourselves aware of any 

relevant audit information and to establish that you are aware of that information. 

iii All the accounting records of the council have been made available to you for the purpose 
of your audit and all the transactions undertaken by the council have been properly 
recorded in the accounting records and reflected in the financial statements. 

iv All other records and related information, including minutes of all council and committee 
meetings, have been made available to you. 

v The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

vi We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control to 
prevent and detect error and fraud. 

vii We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

viii We have disclosed to you our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity 
involving: 

Page 58



Appendix C 

  A.Broome BSc CPFA - Director of Corporate Resources 

- management; 
- employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
- others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements;

ix We have disclosed to you our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the council's financial statements communicated by employees, former 
employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

x Except as stated in the accounts: 
- there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 
- none of the assets of the council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged 
- there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items 

requiring separate disclosure. 

xi All related parties have been identified to you and the transactions with related parties and 
details of controlling interests are disclosed in the financial statements as appropriate. 

xii There are no claims, legal proceedings or other matters which may lead to a loss falling on 
the council or which could result in the creation of an unrecorded asset, apart from those 
disclosed in the contingent liabilities section of the financial statements. 

xiii The council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.  There has been 
no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

xiv We are not aware of any instances of actual or possible non-compliance with laws and 
regulations which might affect the view given by the financial statements. 

xv We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification 
of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xvi There has been one significant event since the Balance Sheet date and this has been 
disclosed in a note to the Accounts. This event does not have an effect on the financial 
position of the council and does not necessitate revision of the figures included in the 
financial statements.

The financial statements have been fully explained to and discussed with us. 

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council at its Audit Committee 
meeting on 24 September 2010. 

Signed on behalf of Plymouth City Council 

Adam Broome     Cllr P Berrow  

Director of Corporate Support   Chair of Audit Committee 

Date    24  September 2010   Date 24  September 2010 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Performance Management Arrangements 

Plymouth City Council 
 
 
 
23 March 2010 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 61



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 
 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

 

 

 

Contents Page 

1 Introduction and background 1 

2 Key findings 2 

 

 

Appendices 

A Action Plan 

 

Page 62



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 1
 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

1 Introduction and background 

1.1 Sound performance management and reporting arrangements are integral to the 
proper management of a business and are an essential contribution to ensuring 
proper use of resources and the achievement of objectives.  Performance 
management information is fundamental to ensure that this informs decision making, 
business planning, budget setting, and strategic development within an organisation.  

1.2 Performance management may have a number of components, including monitoring 
progress against corporate objectives, budgetary control and the arrangements in 
place for managing the workforce. While the Council recognises that it is everyone's 
job to engage in performance management, it is for the Council's leadership to lead 
the way in driving improvements in the performance culture, and to ensure that the 
performance framework is applied at all levels.   

1.3 The Council has been engaged in a continuous development of its performance 
management arrangements over the last three to four years and previous reviews of 
local arrangements, including work undertaken by the Audit Commission, have 
identified that corporate arrangements for managing and reporting on key targets and 
priorities have been developing well and that performance management has now 
become much more a part of the corporate culture.  

1.4 We  recognise the significant input made across the Council into developing its 
performance management arrangements. Our review has focused on the 
development of the corporate performance and finance reporting arrangements and 
some of the processes that support that.  In completing our review, we have 
undertaken interviews with key senior staff , reviewed background documentation 
provided to us and also reviewed some of the data on the corporate management 
information system, ePerform.    

 

 

 

 

 

Page 63



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 2
 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

2 Key findings 

Introduction 

2.1 The Council's Corporate Plan 2009-12 is the focal point for its strategic direction 
and focuses on, amongst other issues, an assessment of its current performance and 
its three-year corporate priorities.  The Plan also highlights the processes by which 
the Council will monitor its progress, including project and programme 
management. 

2.2 The Council continues to develop its performance management arrangements, with 
a particular focus on the 14 corporate improvement priorities (CIPs) and the 
detailed indicators that underpin them, whilst recognising other key influences on 
performance, for example, the effect of the economic situation and the demands of 
the local health inequalities agenda. 

2.3 The CIPs are broad statements of intention (for example, CIP 4 is entitled 
"reducing inequalities between communities") and underpinning each CIP is one or 
more key improvement areas and, for each improvement area, one or more key 
performance measures (which may be either national or local indicators) as well as 
key actions and "milestones" (key delivery points within each project, and on which 
the success of each project is dependent) . The Plan also includes the Local Area 
Agreement (LAA) indicators. 

2.4 The CIPs are allocated across the service departments and each CIP is led by a head 
of service who has principal responsibility for its delivery. Currently, Children and 
Young People's Services has responsibility for three CIPs, Community Services has 
four, Development and Regeneration has three, Corporate Support has three and 
the Chief Executive's office has one. 

Corporate performance management arrangements 

2.5 The Council's performance management framework  defines the principle elements 
of local performance management, set against a number of key requirements 
including the need for clear accountabilities, regular and robust performance 
information, regular performance monitoring and active management of 
performance.   

2.6 The framework  sets out the leadership role that falls to the Assistant Chief 
Executive and Portfolio Holder, and supported by the Corporate Management 
Team (CMT), Cabinet and the Scrutiny arrangements.  It also recognises the 
important role played by  departmental directors and assistant directors and sets out 
the accountability framework in which assistant directors manage performance at 
directorate level (including developing and delivering business plans, approving 
targets and outturn data and leading the accountability process). Ensuring that there 
is good data quality is also identified as a key component. 

Page 64



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 3
 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

2.7 The Council's Policy and Performance Department (PPD) is part of the Chief 
Executive's office and is a key driver in ensuring that the corporate reporting 
timetable is adhered to, particularly the bi-monthly joint performance and finance 
report. Our interviews suggest that relationships between key senior departmental 
staff and the PPD are strong, despite a demanding data collection and reporting 
schedule which is in place for the bi-monthly reporting process.  

2.8 The PPD has a key role in ensuring that standards and requirements are clearly 
understood and acted upon by the departments so that local achievement of data 
quality becomes the norm.  Our review has found that, while there is a constructive 
approach which recognises the important contribution of departments in gathering 
data and acting on findings, there is also some tension between departments and the 
PPD because of a perceived lack of clarity about where responsibility for data 
quality lies, leading to potential duplication of roles..    

2.9 Locally, departments also have their own performance management arrangements, 
and performance management data is systematically fed into the corporate 
arrangements, with monthly data for the CMT, bi-monthly data to the corporate 
performance management team and quarterly updates for the LSP.  However, our 
interviews indicate that officers are still debating the issue of roles and 
responsibilities for performance management and there is recognition of the need to 
have a balance of expertise, whilst avoiding duplication, between service 
departments and the PPD.  

2.10 We recognise the significant effort that has been expended on developing 
arrangements to date.  In order to develop these further, we recommend that it is 
now time for the Council to undertake a review of the complementary, but 
different, roles, relationships and processes between the Policy and Performance 
Department and service departments to ensure they remain focused and effective in 
reporting and managing performance information and that any duplication is 
avoided. 

Corporate performance reporting 

2.11 Corporate financial and activity performance is reported within the bi-monthly Joint 
Performance and Finance Report, which is considered by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board , who provide management of strategic scrutiny of all 
the CIPs and which is the lead scrutiny body for the Corporate Plan.   

2.12 The bi-monthly report outlines the performance monitoring and financial position 
of the Council, and seeks to report on how the Council is delivering against its CIPs 
and key performance measures, using a "traffic light" scoring approach which is 
supplemented with narrative.  As we highlighted earlier, each CIP is assigned to a 
specific service department. The report has a strategic focus, and includes a one-
page scorecard, including a summary of progress for each department against the 
relevant CIPs. There is also an update of progress against  the LAA stretch targets 
as well as a separate section for each department's finance issues.      

2.13 We note that performance targets/indicators and finance (revenue and capital) are 
reported separately  within the bi-monthly performance monitoring reports, because 
the local approach to generating performance management reports appears to deal 
with them as separate issues.   

Page 65



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 4
 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

2.14 In our view, this arrangement should be reviewed, as there should be a much closer 
association between the two elements. Any changes to the financial investment may 
well have an effect on indicators (and vice versa) and the Council should, for 
example, be able to assess what effect an investment, or disinvestment, of money is 
having on local performance, as a basis for future monitoring. We note, for 
example, that in the January 2010 report, the section on performance indicates that 
Adult Social Services has performed well, though the finance section identifies a 
£2m overspend.   

2.15 Our review identified that the Council seeks to put additional funding where 
performance is demonstrated to be weaker.  However, since currently there is no 
clear link in the report between funding and performance, it is not clear how, at a 
corporate level,  the value for money of any additional investment can be assessed 
and monitored.  There is also an issue about rewarding better performers with a 
financial incentive which might also be more easily demonstrated through closer 
links between finance and performance. 

2.16 Our review has highlighted that the bi-monthly reporting process is proving very 
demanding on staff and, while we understand that the bi-monthly report is to be 
more strategic in its view, the question has been raised as to whether the bi-monthly 
timetable is now becoming too process-driven.  In particular, that producing the bi-
monthly reports is the main driver rather than a thorough evaluation of what the 
performance data is saying. This raises the issue of whether the Council has 
sufficient time, or the key performance/financial data, that it really needs to drive 
the business. We note that this issue has previously been raised in a CMT meeting 
(September 2009), where there was a recognition that performance management 
appeared to be driven by the system.  

2.17 We consider that it is fundamental that, once there is sufficient confidence in the 
quality and the timeliness of the performance information, the Council should be 
able to spend more time on managing  and addressing the issues indicated from the 
various sources of information, rather than the process of reporting.    

2.18 Consequently, we recommend that the Council now reviews, and reaffirms or 
otherwise, the appropriateness of its bi-monthly reports, and the processes that 
underpin it, to ensure that there is sufficient time and relevant information in order 
to run the business.  

2.19 We also recommend that the Council reviews the relationship between 
performance and finance information to ensure that there is a clearer understanding 
of the costs incurred for the performance achieved and whether investment 
decisions are having the desired effect on performance. 

2.20 In reviewing  the corporate joint finance and performance reports we note that, 
while the same general structure is maintained in 2008-09 and in 2009-10, (that is, 
executive summary, departmental business reports, revenue and capital spend 
details), the content of the section on departmental business reports has changed. 

2.21 In 2008-09, these departmental sections were quite informative in identifying, for 
each CIP, the individual indicators (national and local, and including those 
applicable to the LAA), and, for each indicator, current year performance data (with 
a traffic light assessment), comparative data for the two previous years and some 
supporting narrative. This was underpinned by departmental revenue and capital 

Page 66



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 5
 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

spending information.  Overall, we consider that this approach enabled members 
and officers to get a balanced and informative view of departmental performance. 

2.22 However, in 2009-10, we note that, while the joint finance and performance reports 
have maintained broadly the same structure, there are now some important 
differences in the way that performance information is laid out.  In particular, rather 
than displaying individual indicators, departmental business reports now summarise 
performance under the relevant CIPs for that department, with a traffic light 
assessment for "measures" and " milestones".  A red traffic light occurs if the 
average of all the measures, or all the milestones, is more than 15% off target. 

2.23  In this context, measures are being used in the report to describe indicators, and this 
is made clear in the opening section of the Executive Summary. However, we are 
unclear as to why the term "indicators" is not used consistently within the report, 
given that the term is referred to at the outset. 

2.24 With regard to the term "milestones", this term is used amongst project 
management specialists to describe points at which large scheduled events or series 
of events have been completed, and a new phase, or phases, are set to begin. 

2.25 In addition, we note that the LAA targets are now contained within a separate 
section of the report rather than contained within the departmental sections. 

2.26 We have reviewed, in more detail, the content of the Joint Finance and Performance 
Report for January 2010 in which, in Corporate Support, for example, there are 
three specific CIPs, covering a number of indicators, including CIP 1 (Improving 
Customer Service) and CIP 14 (Improving Value for Money).  The narrative for 
both CIPs appears quite positive, apart from a delay in replacing the complaints 
system (CIP 1) and progress against NI 179 (CIP 14). However, the overall 
assessment for both CIPs is a red "traffic light" for both "measures" and 
"milestones".  

2.27 The question arises as to whether the present "traffic light" assessment  represents a 
balanced and informative reflection of progress, taking account of what is critical to 
running the business. We consider that the Council needs to ensure that this 
approach to performance reporting remains the most appropriate way of reflecting 
performance (particularly given that the report is available to the public), and that 
merging performance into an overall indicator doesn't mask key messages (positive 
and negative) or risks, or overall trends.   

2.28 We therefore recommend that the Council ensures that, within the joint 
performance and finance reports, the "traffic light" assessment associated with each 
CIP properly reflects the supporting text.  

2.29 In addition, we recommend that the Council reassesses what information is critical 
to managing the business and ensures that this is available as part of its reporting on 
performance and finance. 

Performance management system 

2.30 Access to the detailed underlying performance information is through the Council's 
performance management system, ePerform, which is the central repository for 
recording and monitoring performance data.      

Page 67



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 6
 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

2.31 The Council uses ePerform to hold all its performance indicators and data is widely 
accessible across the organisation and with an audit trail from the corporate report 
back to any indicator.  

2.32 We have reviewed ePerform and identified that there are separate sections for: 

• the CIPs; 

• the Corporate Plan 2009-12; 

• the LAA; 

• the Corporate Performance Plan (though not a current version); 

• the Children's Trust Plan (though at the time of our review there didn't 
appear to be anything on the system); 

• individual service business plans (though some elements appear to be 
incomplete); and 

• the corporate Data Quality Policy (which is dated 2007). 

2.33 We noted that the 2008-09 bi-monthly performance reports are also included, 
though we couldn't readily find 2009-10 performance reports.  

2.34 For the purposes of the CIPs: CIP 1 (Improving Customer Service) and CIP 7 
(Keeping Children Safe). Our objective was to assess the completeness and 
relevance of the supporting data, in the context that ePerform is a central repository 
with widespread access arrangements and therefore should be as up-to-date and 
complete as possible, if it is to be used effectively as a management tool. 

2.35 The key issues arising from our review are that: 

• for each CIP there is a section that identifies any sub-elements of that CIP: 
for example, for CIP 1 (Improving Customer Service) there are six sub-
elements, each underpinned by a performance "speedometer" (to indicate 
current performance) and a comment on the status of the CIP; 

• there is also a comment on whether performance is improving or otherwise; 
• although there appear to be a range of actions which underpin the targets and 

milestones, not all data is complete within ePerform - some of the progress 
"traffic light/speedometer" indicators remain empty;   

• for CIP 1, though the supporting comments indicate that action plans are 
rolling out effectively, it is not clear how this is demonstrated by the 
supporting graphs; 

• For CIP 7, the direct relationship between the indicator ("strengthening 
preventative services to reduce the number of children looked after") and the 
action ("increasing gross expenditure on children in need but not looked 
after") is not obvious - whilst recognising that additional spend may have a 
benefit, we would have expected more detail on exactly how preventative 
services might be strengthened by increasing expenditure. 

 
 

Page 68



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 7
 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

2.36 It is not clear to us whether the absence of any key data is because of a compliance 
issue or some other reason.  However, we recommend that the Council ensures 
that its performance management system (ePerform) is fully populated so as to 
maximise the benefit of the system. 

2.37 A further issue that has arisen from our interviews is that, since ePerform is the 
adopted software product used across the organisation for performance data 
collection and reporting, there may be some benefit in upgrading it to a later 
version, which, we understand, would make it easier for users to share, and also to 
print, information.  

2.38 Whilst not having reviewed the detailed merits or otherwise of this argument, it 
seems to us that such enhancements, if they exist, would benefit users and the 
overall performance management process.  

2.39 We therefore recommend that the Council considers the benefits and challenges of 
upgrading ePerform to a more current version to ensure that the functionality 
available to users is the most appropriate to their needs. 

Overall conclusion 

2.40 We recognise that the Council has invested significant effort in implementing its 
performance management arrangements and that these continue to develop.  We 
have identified a number of positive aspects to local arrangements for monitoring 
and reporting against corporate priorities, but also some areas where improvements 
will add further value to the corporate arrangements.  

Page 69



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 1

 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

A Action Plan 

Recommendation Priority Management comment Officer responsible Implemented 
by: 

The Council reviews the roles, relationships and processes between 
the Policy and Performance Department and service departments to 
ensure they remain focused and effective in reporting and managing 
performance information and that any duplication is avoided. 

High Agree 

Review of Policy, Performance 
and Partnerships support across 
the Council will deliver improved 
co-ordination.  Arrangements 
within Community Services 
already in place 

Giles Perritt March 2011 

The Council now reviews, and reaffirms or otherwise, the 
appropriateness of its bi-monthly reports, and the processes that 
underpin it, to ensure that there is sufficient time and relevant 
information in order to run the business. 

High Agree 

The decision has now been taken, 
following a review that bi-monthly 
reporting will be replaced by 
Quarterly formal reporting with an 
increased focus on key 
performance and budgetary areas 
through monitoring of monthly 
scorecards 

Giles Perritt In place 

The Council reviews the relationship between performance and 
finance information to ensure that there is a clearer understanding 
of the costs incurred for the performance achieved and whether 
investment decisions are having the desired effect on performance. 

High Agreed 

See above comment 

In addition the introduction of 

Malcolm Coe and 

Giles Perritt 

As budget and 
performance 
timetable 

P
age 70



Plymouth City Council - Project Management Arrangements 2

 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

service and resource planning as 
part of the production for 11/12 
budget will ensure a clearer 
relationship between performance 
and resources. 

The Council ensures that, within the joint performance and finance 
report, the "traffic light" assessment associated with each CIP 
properly reflects the supporting text. 

Medium Agree – review of priorities under 
way. 

Malcolm Coe and Giles 
Perritt 

11 October 
2010 

The Council reassesses what information is truly critical to managing 
the business and ensures that this is available as part of its reporting 
on performance and finance. 

Medium Agree 

See comment re: replacement of 
bi-monthly reporting with a move 
to quarterly reporting and monthly 
monitoring through scorecards. 

SMT As above 

The Council ensures that its performance management system 
(ePerform) is fully populated so as to maximise the benefit of the 
system. 

Medium Revised performance management 
arrangements being developed. 

Giles Perritt March 2011 

The Council considers the benefits and challenges of upgrading 
ePerform to a more current version to ensure users have a version 
most appropriate to their needs. 

Medium As above. Giles Perritt March 2011 

 

 

P
age 71



 

 

 

 
 

 www.grant-thornton.co.uk 
 © 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership. 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton 
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.  
Services are delivered by the member firms independently. 
 

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss 
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication 

Page 72



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject: Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA)  
 Annual Report on covert surveillance activity 
 
Committee:    Audit Committee 
 
Date:    24 September 2010 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Bowyer 
 
CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Support – Adam Broome –  
    Senior Responsible officer for RIPA 
 
Author: Richard Woodfield - Corporate Information Manager 
Contact:    Tel:  (01752 (30) 4067 
    e-mail: richard.woodfield@plymouth.gcsx.gov.uk  
 
Ref:    RIPA Annual Report to Council 2010 
 
Part: I  
 
 
Executive Summary:  
 
There is a new requirement to prepare an annual report on the use of RIPA within the 
Council and to provide a quarterly report.  
 
This report provides an explanation of RIPA and the surveillance that has been undertaken 
within the Council and shows that the approach of the Council has been rated as ‘good’ at 
the last Inspection and that this Council compares favourably with other Local Authorities. 
The use of RIPA by the Council has decreased significantly but a fully compliant system 
needs to be maintained in order to assist staff to support community safety and to have a 
useful tool available to undertake criminal investigations which are the responsibility of the 
Council. 
 
 
Corporate Plan 2010-2013:   
 
Covert surveillance is currently available to support the Public Protection Service, the 
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Fraud Investigation Team and the Anti Social Behaviour 
Unit. These teams work jointly with other agencies to assist with developing a Safe and 
Strong City. 
 
 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Resource implications are: 

o specific training of senior managers and investigating officers 
o maintenance of surveillance equipment 
o developing the web site information 
o ongoing administration, the authorisation process  
o reporting and biannual inspections  

 

Agenda Item 8Page 73



There is no specific budget cost code and all costs are subsumed within service team 
budgets. 
 
 
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
 
The use of covert surveillance is a tool to assist with community safety and the enforcement 
of legislation.  
The risk to the Council of loss of reputation, through not undertaking surveillance in 
accordance with the requirements of legislation and good practice, is currently enhanced due 
to the exposure of the inappropriate use of covert surveillance by other Local Authorities. 
Inappropriate or non compliant use of RIPA makes it more likely that evidence for a 
prosecution will not be accepted in Court. 
 
 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
To accept this annual report to Council and the recommendation that the current identified 
Authorising Officers can continue to make their own individual assessment in line with the 
Code of Practice, whilst considering proportionality and necessity, as to the appropriateness 
of undertaking covert surveillance, for preventing or detecting crime, or preventing disorder. 
 
This option is recommended as this report demonstrates that Authorising Officers have 
previously behaved responsibly when choosing to use covert surveillance.  
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
The alternative option for the Council is to decide that Officers will not undertake covert 
investigations on behalf of the Council.   
 
This option is rejected as useage is kept to a minimum via Authorising Officers and in only 
certain situations to assist in protecting the community.   
 
Background papers:   
 
There are two oversight agencies that publish annual reports and have web sites. There is 
also information on the Plymouth City Council web site, including the last inspection by the 
Office of Surveillance Commissioners. 
Web site links: 
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/councilanddemocracy/information/investigatorypower
sact2000.htm  
http://www.lacors.gov.uk/lacors/ContentDetails.aspx?id=24169  
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin  Leg  HR  Corp 

Prop 
 IT  Strat 

Proc 
 

Originating SMT Member: Assistant Director for ICT – Neville Cannon 
 

Page 74



1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) was enacted to provide a 

framework to assist public authorities to implement Article 8 of the Human Rights Act 
2000 – “there shall be no interference with the right to respect for private and family life 
except as is necessary …” .  
RIPA provides a method for Government agencies and Local Authorities to assess 
and undertake activities which do interfere with Article 8. 
This legislation is not ‘anti terror legislation’ but a statutory method of working with 
situations where a suspected wrongdoer is not informed that they are under 
surveillance. 

 
1.2 The Council is restricted by the legislation, to applying RIPA to the prevention and 

detection of crime, so it is only those Council activities which have a prosecution 
element that use RIPA. 

 
The staff applying this legislation work in: 

• Public Protection Service which includes Trading Standards - within 
Environmental Services. 

• Housing Benefit and Council Tax Fraud Investigation Team of the Revenues 
and Benefits Service - within Finance Assets and Efficiencies. 

• Anti Social Behaviour Unit - within Strategic Housing. 
 
Other Council services may work with the Police or other law enforcement agencies, 
but the primary aim of their service is not to investigate crime, unlike these three 
teams.  
These teams also work with partner agencies and those statutory agencies such as 
the Police or the Department of Work and Pensions may initiate the surveillance rather 
than the Council. 

 
1.3 RIPA provides the Council with the ability to gain evidence through authorising:  
 

• Directed covert surveillance; which is an authorisation to observe a specific 
person without their knowledge or permission during their daily activities, but not 
to gain information from specific ‘confidential’ activities unless particularly 
authorised by the Chief Executive.  
 This surveillance enables Anti Social Behaviour, Benefit fraud investigators and 
Public Protection officers to establish the identity and whereabouts of suspects. 
 

• The obtaining of data relating to communications, but not to intercept 
communications i.e. to find out when and who was involved in passing a 
communication, but not to know the content.  
All these applications are checked by a specific Single Point of Contact officer 
who contacts the communications providers.  
This facility has only been used by Trading Standards officers to track down 
illegal sales. 
 

• A Covert Human Intelligence Source (CHIS), which is a person who agrees to 
establish a relationship with a suspect in order to report back their activities or 
contacts.  
This role has only been used by Trading Standards when undertaking “test 
purchases” from a trader. 

 
 

Page 75



1.4 If the provisions of RIPA are followed, they enable the Council to show to a Court that 
the Council has seriously considered how to mitigate any interference to the ‘right to 
privacy’ during its investigations and the product of the investigation is much more 
likely to be accepted as admissible evidence. 

 
1.5 Compliance with RIPA is enforced through an annual return to the two statutory 

oversight agencies; Office of the Surveillance Commissioner (OSC) & Interception of 
Communications Commissioner's Office (IOCCO) and a biannual inspection by the 
OSC.  
In addition, since April 2010 a Senior Responsible Officer has been required and 
Councillors have been given a formal scrutiny role in relation to RIPA, reviewing the 
authority's use of RIPA and considering internal reports on the use of RIPA.  
But Councilors are not to be involved in making decisions on specific surveillance 
activities. 
 

2.0 The RIPA process 
 
2.1  There are statutory Codes of Practice that the Council must follow and the internal 

staff guidance, list of Authorised Officers and approved forms are available in the 
Document Library, by using the search term ‘RIPA’ in the keyword search box. 

 
2.2 An investigating officer may consider that covert surveillance is required to establish 

the facts of a case. An application is made to a specific senior officer who has 
received training. This Authorising Officer then considers the necessity of the 
application and whether the interference with privacy is proportional to the expected 
product of covert surveillance. The Authorising Officer is responsible for specifying the 
surveillance that can be undertaken and for reviewing whether the authorised actions 
should continue. 

 
2.3 Any interference in the rights of citizens must be ‘necessary’ and ‘proportionate’.  

The RIPA process is designed to identify what activity will take place that will be an 
interference with the ‘right to privacy’; to then determine whether that activity is 
preventing or detecting crime, or preventing disorder and then to determine whether 
the proposed activity is proportionate in relation to the product that will be gained from 
covert surveillance. 

 
2.4 A central record is kept within Legal Services of all authorised investigations and a 

check is made that reviews of ongoing authorisations are undertaken.  
 
2.5 The Corporate Information Manager, who is also the Data Protection Officer, provides 

support and advice to the Authorising Officers and to the operation of the system. The 
following chart shows those involved: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



Lead Member Councillor Ian Bowyer 

Lead Director Adam Broome Director for Corporate Support and 
Senior Responsible Officer 

Lead Officer  Richard Woodfield Corporate Information Manager 
 

Authorising Officers Role 
Approval to Authorise 
Directed 
Surveillance 

Confidential 
Material 

Mr Barry Keel Chief Executive Yes Yes 
Mr Dave Shepperd Head of Legal Services Yes No 

Mr Stuart Palmer AD for Strategic 
Housing Yes No 

Mr John Drury Anti-Social Behaviour 
Manager Yes No 

Mr Malcolm Coe AD for Finance Assets 
and Efficiencies Yes No 

Ms Viv Carder Customer Services 
Team Leader Yes No 

Ms Jayne Donovan AD for Environmental 
Services Yes No 

Mr Robin Carton 
Assistant Head of 
Environmental 
Regulation Services 

Yes No 

Single Point Of Contact for communications data  Fair Trading 
Officer 

Trading 
Standards 
Service 

 
 
3.0 Extent of Authorisations 

Appendix 1 and 2 shows the number of RIPA authorisations by Plymouth City   
Council and other authorities from April 2008 to March 2010.  

 
3.2 The use of RIPA by this Council is a tool that has been deployed less frequently than 

comparison authorities. None of the Surveillance Commissioner inspections have 
identified inappropriate authorisations. 
A national survey was undertaken of the use of RIPA by local authorities for the 
period 2008 to the first quarter of this year and this authorities position in relation to 
other comparable Council’s are shown in Appendix 2. 

 
4.0 Role of the Lead Member and Senior Responsible Officer: 
 
4.1 Lead Member:  

Councillors in a local authority are required since April 2010 to review the authority's 
use of RIPA and set the policy at least once a year. They should also consider internal 
reports on the use of RIPA at least on a quarterly basis to ensure that it is being used 
consistently with the council's policy and that the policy remains fit for purpose. They 
should not, however, be involved in making decisions on specific authorisations. 
 
In order to implement this requirement, the portfolio member for Finance, Property, 
People and Governance, received reports from the Senior Responsible Officer on 14 
June 2010 and 03 August 2010.  
The Audit Committee are being asked to consider this annual report to the Council. 

 

Page 77



4.2 Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) - it is considered good practice for the SRO to be 
responsible for:  

• The integrity of the process in place within the public authority for the 
management of CHIS and Directed Surveillance;  

• Compliance with Part 2 of the Act and with the Codes;  
• Oversight of the reporting of errors to the relevant oversight Commissioner 

and the identification of both the cause(s) of errors and the implementation of 
processes to minimise repetition of errors;  

• Engagement with the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner inspectors 
when they conduct their inspections, and  

• Where necessary, oversight of the implementation of post-inspection action 
plans approved by the relevant oversight Commissioner.  

 
Within local authorities, the SRO should be a member of the corporate leadership 
team and should be responsible for ensuring that all Authorising Officers are of an 
appropriate standard in the light of any recommendations in the inspection reports 
prepared by the OSC. Where an inspection report highlights concerns about the 
standards of Authorising Officers, the SRO will be responsible for ensuring the 
concerns are addressed. 

 
4.3 RIPA Policy:  

 
The new statutory RIPA Orders and Codes of Practice came into force on 6th April 
2010 but previously the Council had its own working practices guide for Authorising 
Officers and for Investigating Officers. 

 
The national statutory revised Codes of Practice on Directed Surveillance and CHIS 
provide more guidance on key RIPA concepts such as necessity, proportionality and 
collateral intrusion. They also use real life examples to explain key points and are 
generally much more user friendly than the previous versions.  

 
However the Council has never had a separate Policy document for RIPA, but each 
previous biannual inspection has stated that the internal guidance documents are 
sufficient. 
 
This requirement to have a separate RIPA policy is as a consequence of certain 
authorities making authorisations that are not compliant with the Act.  
 
A policy document would state that the Council will only make use of the powers 
contained in RIPA in accordance with the Act. No authorisations within the Council 
have been outside the constraints of the Act and the current local working practices 
guides and the statutory Codes of Practice provide excellent direction for Officers. 
 
However, it is proposed to prepare a RIPA Policy for the next inspection due in May 
2011 and to recommend that policy as part of the next annual report to this committee, 
having had the benefit of the Inspectors comments on the draft policy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



5.0 Action Plan 
 

The last OSC Inspection Report (May 2009) recommended that the application form 
considered by the Authorising officer is revised, so as to assist the Council to move 
from good to excellent, the Authorising Officer to complete their authorisation in 
handwriting and that there are consequential amendments to the local Code of 
Practice. 
 
These recommendations and the introduction of a policy will be completed before the 
next inspection in May 2011, subject to a current government review of RIPA. This 
review will make recommendations as to whether Local Authorities should continue to 
have access to the provisions of RIPA, particularly as to investigating non serious 
crime.  

 
The following annual report will update the Committee on the next Inspection and 
present a RIPA Policy for acceptance. 
 

 
 

Page 79



Appendix 1 - Authorisations: for two years from April 2008 to March 2010 
 
Team Type Number 
   
Public Protection Service  Directed Surveillance 1 
Public Protection Service  Communications Data 8 
Public Protection Service  Covert Human Intelligence Source 0 
Housing & Council Tax Benefit Investigations  Directed Surveillance 4 
Anti Social Behaviour Unit  Directed Surveillance 9 

 Total Authorisations 22 
 
Appendix 2: - National comparison of RIPA authorisations for two years from April 
2008 to March 2010. 
 
Local Authority Total 

RIPA 
use 

2008/10 

Local Authority Total 
RIPA 
use 

2008/10 

Local Authority Total 
RIPA 
use 

2008/10 
Plymouth 22 Plymouth 22 Plymouth 22 
Comparators  Major Cities  South West 

Councils 
 

Bolton ?? Brighton & Hove 27 Devon 40 
Bristol 29 Bristol 29 N Devon 9 
Calderdale 3 Cardiff 72 Mid Devon 17 
Coventry 90 Derby 32 E Devon 1 
Darlington 65 Kingston upon Hull 85 Exeter 2 
Derby 32 Leicester 41 West Devon 12 
Gateshead 33 Milton Keynes 40 S Hams 2 
Kingston upon Hull 85 Nottingham City 61 Teignbridge 25 
North Tyneside 26 Portsmouth 11 Wiltshire 34 
Oldham 46 Southampton 59 Swindon 18 
Salford 149 Stoke on Trent 77 Gloucestershire 35 
Sandwell 135 Swansea 40 Gloucester 0 
Sheffield 57   S Gloucestershire 2 
Walsall 215   Cornwall 34 
Wolverhampton ??   Dorset 1 
    E Dorset 1 
    Weymouth 2 

?? indicates that did not respond to the survey  Bournemouth 17 
    Poole 5 
    N Dorset 2 
    Somerset 17 
    W Somerset 0 
    S Somerset 1 
    Bath & NE 

Somerset 
4 

    N Somerset 16 
    Taunton Deane 0 
    Bristol 29 
Derived from: http://www.bigbrotherwatch.org.uk/TheGrimRIPA.pdf  
 

Page 80



��
�

���������	�
�����
�
�
�������� � � � ��������	�
����
��������������������
������
�
����������� � � � ����������������
�
������ � � � � ��������������������
�
��������
������� � � �������� ���
� � � � � � � � � � �
�
��
������� � � !���	����"��������������������� �

�������� � � � �����#�	����$�#�����"�����������
��������
%������	�� �

� � � � � �
��������� � � � ����&��	����'�� �����&��(&���
� � � � � )��*���+,���-��./+� � � � �
�
����� � � � � �
�0�1#� � � �

������ � � � � %��
��
�
�
 !�����"�������#�� �
)��������������(������������� ��"������������"������������������2��	����	���������
"���������������	�
����
��������"�����������������	���������������������&�
�
)�����������������"���������	������������������������	���"����-,����-���������������������
�"�-�����������������������������"��&�
�
�������2��������������������(����������""�	������������� �������������	��������������
�"���	������$�������(���������������	�����	����������������(������������������������
�����2�������� �	�������� ���������� ��������"�����	������&��
�
�
�
�
�
���$�������%���&'(')(*�� �
)�����������	�
����
����������	�������������������������3���0�%3���4�	��(���5�
������������"�	��������	�����"�����������	������������"����	����������������������(�� ��"�
��������	��6��	������4�	��(��&��
�
����������
�
��$%�������+�����
�,�����������������%��%�����,���+��������$%�������+��
���%�,��-��������.������.������,�%��,��� �
7���������������	�"�	��� �"��������������������	����������������������"������������
����������	�������(��"����	�������������	�������	������&�

Agenda Item 10Page 81



� �

�
���
�
��������$%�������+���/-/��������(0���������#�����#.����%�����,�����#.���+1�

���-�����.� 2��%����+���$�����++�++��������/�
7���������������	�"�	��� �"��������������������	������� ���"�� ������������������"�� �
���������������������������������		�������������������������"���������������&��
�
� �
�
��
��������,�����+��3����+��+�������������,�,���������
)������������������������	�����������*�
•� 7��������������������	�������������������������������������������	�
����
�������&��
�
�
�%�������"���$����+����+�,���,���,����+��+�������������,�,���������
8""�	��(���������������������	��������������������������������"����������	���������
���������	����������������������������"������	�����������(�����	�&�9��������
����������������(�����������������������	����&�
�
��
�
4��1-����,�$�$��+��
3� ��������� �����	���
���������������������� �����3���	 �����������
��������	�
����
����������������	���������������������
3��(����������������������������������������������������
�
�
�
�-�������
�
#����
�"�
9���

�:� #����
�"�;���

!�� #����
�"�#
�

� #����
�"����

� #����
�"�%)�

� #����
�"�
������
3��	�

�

<�������������)��������*�����������!���	���$�!���	��	 �����=�(�����	��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 82



� �

��$�����������������������$�������$$���������,��������������
&5����$�������&'('�

�
�����-�����+1���-�+����
��������-�

�
�
�

(/� �����,�������
�
(/(� )���������������������������������������	�
����
����������������������������������

��������������/������	������������������������������(������������� ��"�����
�������������������2��	����	�(����������������������-���������������&�

�
&/� �����-�����+1���-�+����6�
��������-������#�
�
&/(� %�� �		�����	������� ����������� � ��>��������� "��� ���	� ���� �����������$� ����

������� ����������� �2��	���� ���� 	��������� ��� ������� ����� ����� ���� ��������
���	������������������ ���)�������������3������������������������������&��

�
&/&� ����	�����������������������������2��������������� �������������	��������������

�"���	������������� ���(���������������	�����	����������������(����������������
�����������������������2�������� �	�������� ���������� ��������"�����	������&�

�
*/� ���,%�����++��+�
�
*/(� )���������������"���������	���������������	���"����-,����-���������������������"�

-�����������������������������"��&�
�

7�8���+1+�
�

•� ��,���+1�09�:���,���,�����+���,�����������+��-���#����"�+������
�������8������,��%�����+��-���,���-����������$��-�����+�6�;��8�
7�/�&<�
��
�����"���������	��������������������""������������������������7%��,,�
������ ���������	���������������������������������������������"�����&���
;�	��� %�(�������� 3���� ���� ����� ��(������� ��� ����	������ ��������
��(����������>���������$����� ����"���"����������������������	����"���
3� �����&� ������ �������� ����� #��� ��� ��������� ������ 	��"����	�� ���
��(��������������	�� &�
�

•� ��,� ��+1� 00� :� ������� ��,������� ����������� ;���<�  ���-#�
 ��������#�������6�;��8�7�/�=<�
�)����
��	������������"�	����"����	���$������������������������	�������	��
�����&� �7��� ����� � ���4�	��� ����� ��� ��� ������"���� ��� ������� ��������
�	��������"�����	������(�����"������� &�
�

•� ��������+1�='�:��%�����-���%�-�����+�6���$%�������+������8�%�-�%�
�����8��1���,������������������������+�����+�6�;��8�7�/�&><�
�
���	�����(�����"�"���������	�����"�����"������	����������&��3���������
"���������	�����������������������������������������	��������	�������/�

Page 83



� �

����������&����		���"��������������������	�����������������������	��6��
�(����������	 ������������������������&�
�

� �
��%���,���+1+�

�
•� ��+1�?*�:�����++����,��$��+���,�����
��1�������"��#���������%���

���+���+�,�����������"��������$���,�,�"�%�$�����������+��6�;��8�
7�/�*><�
� 9��������� �� 	�������� ��(���� �"� ���� ������ ��� !�(��������� ����

�������������������������������	������������������������������(�������
	������������������������&�
�

•� ��+1�>'�:���������%����,���������$��$�����+����7��������+$���� +�����
6�;��8�7�/�*?<�
� 9��������� �� 	�������� ��(���� �"� ���� ������ ��� !�(��������� ����

�������������������������������	������������������������������(�������
	������������������������&�
�

•� ��+1�5=�:���!��	����+��-����,��-���������6�;��8�7�/�*0<�
�7�� ������� 	������������ ��������	� ���������� �����"���� ��������������
�����"����������������� ����(�	���<�����������
����
�������&�
�

•� ��+1� >*� :� �,�%�� ����%� ����� 6� �$$�����-� ����� $��$%�� ��� %�"��
��,�$��,���%#�6�;��8�7�/�*=<�
�%�	���������������������������+����������	����������������
�

*/&� )���������������������������(���������������������"����$�����������������
�������(������������"����������������������*��

�
�

� ����'9� ��-�'9� ����('� ��-�('�

��,� ,� �� /� .�
������� �+� ��� ��� �+�
@����� ��� ��� .� ?�
����	� -�� -/� -,� -��

�
�
*/*� )��������� �����������2�����(�������������������	�������� ���� ������ �

��������""�	�������	�������������-���������������&�
�
*/5� )����������������������*�
�

*/5/(�����+1�����+�������-�,�
�

•� ��,���+1�&(��:�
����++��+�6�;��8�7�/�(<�
����������	�����	�	����������������	������������"�	���������������������
���������	����������������=�(��������"�������	��"�����&�����������������
���� 	���������� ��� ��(����� ���� ����(�� � ������ ��� �������� ���� "�������

Page 84



� �

�����"���&�)����)9�����������"������ ������������������(������������
����&�
�

•� ��,���+1�>&�:����%�"��#������$���%����-������6�;��8�7�/�5<�
���������=�(�������� ��(�����"��������� "����������	��������&�@.��$����
����	��������)���������	�����������	���������������2�@+����������"��������
��9����������&�)�������������	��������������	������� ������������������
	���������	�����&��9��������"�����	���������(�����������������������"����
	��������� ��� ��� ����� ��������� ���� 	����� � ���������� ����� �	������
	���"��� ���������������������������	����(�������&�
��

•� ��,���+1�59�:�	�+���-������"����������6�;��8�7�/�><�
��(���������"����	���������������"����	���������������������� �������������
����������&� � !�	����������� ��� ������ ��������� ����� ���������� �"� ����
�������������	�����	���������������&�
�

•� ��,���+1�0*�:� �$%�#�����%�����+�6�;��8�7�/�?<�
�7�����������������)�����A�������������&����)0!���	����"�������������
������������������������ &�)�����A������	�����������������������	��������
�������������2��	����=�(�����������������	�����������������������������
�������������������������������������������� ����������=����&�
�

•� ��,���+1�05�:�����%������6��%�����
���-���������#+���+�;�������+�<�
6�;��8�7�/�0<�
� �����"�	���� ��������� ���� ����� ����� ����� ���� ��������������� �"�
��"������	�����������"�������������������������������������������������
	������"�	�����������&��)���"������������"�������"��������(�������������
������ ������������ � � ����������� ��	���� � ���� 	������� �"� ���� � �����
	��"���������&��)��������	��	���������"��	���������������������"�	�����
�����������6����	���������������������������3���������3���&�

�
•� ��,���+1�&=�:�������+�������������������%��1�,����������%,������,�

��+��$��++���+������,�$��,����$%�������+��;��8�7�/�9<�
�)�������������������	������	������"�	��������������������������	����
���������� ��������������	����� ����������������������	�����"�� ���	�������6��
���	�������������(��������(������(������������������(����	��������"����
	���&�

�
•� ��������+1�?'�:�� ��������,�8��������������-�����+��#�����-������

�;��8�7�/�&5<�
�
�(����� %�(�������� ��������������������� � ��������������(���� �
������ ���������&� ����������� ��� ����	�� ���� �����"���� ����
��(�������0���������� ����"����� ���� ������� �����&� � �������� ��� ��	��(��
��(�������� ��������	�����������������%	������	������������&���
�

•� ��������+1�>>� :����%���� ���,�%�"���8�+������������������� ����A�
��"���A�+����������+��$�;�#�&'(5<�6�;��8�7�/�(5<�
� � 3��	�������� 	���������� ��� ���������� ���� ������� ������� �����
���������� "����	���� ���� 	�����	�� 	����� ���� �		��������� ��� ���� �����
���4�	���������	��B������!�"��������(���&�

Page 85



� �

�
•� ��������+1�>9�:���������%���+1��++������,�8���������������,�%��,�6�

;��8�7�/�(=<�
���%�)���"��������������������������������""��������&�%����	�������������&�

�
*/5/&� ��+1�����+�������+�,�

�
•� ��,���+1�**�:�4��%,��-�����%+����������������;4�<����-������6�

������+�,������?����&'�;��8�7�/�*<�
�7���=�(����������������������������9������������������	����������
�������(�����"�����	��������������	���������	�����&�
�

•� ��������+1�0?� :� �7���-�����-�-�"�������� ���,��-� ������%,� ����,�
-#$+#�+����6�������+�,������(&����(?�;��8�7�/�('<�
� 9������� �������� "��� ��������� ���� ����� ���� ������ �2������� ���� ����
	����������&�
�

*/5/*� ��+1�����+�������+�,�
�

•� @�������+1�?&�:���+�������+�����+������8��1�6�������+�,������(&�
���=�;��8�7�/�*(<�
�%������	������"������(�	�������������������"���C9�������""�	���	���&������"�
1���� ����� ���� A�
� "��������� ���� ����� ���������$� ����(��� =�����
)�����������������������	����������������������	��6�����"�����	�����	��
��������������������������������&��C�� �������(�����.0������������	��(���
���	�������������������������������������"��� ������&�:�������A�
�
"���������	���������&�
�

•� @�������+1�0(�:�������+��������������-�������������	�������������,�
�!�+���-�%��+��������%����+�6�������+�,������(>����?�;��8�7�/�**<�
��%�<��D%�(������������������<����������������E����������������������� �-�
�����������1�� ������������������ ��������(�������&�%���������(�����"������
��	��������&�
�

�
5/� �����#���,�����%�+����
�
5/(� )�������	��6����		��������������������������������������"�	���	�����(������4��������

����	����������	���(�������"��� ���������$���4�	��(���������������� $������"���$�
������(����"����(�	�����������������"�3� �����&�

�
5/&� )�����(������ ��� ����� �	��������� ����	����>����� 	������� ��� ��������	��6��

�(��������������	���������"������������������������������(�������(�����������(����	��
�"� ����� ����	���������"� ������������	�
����
����������������������� ��"� ����
����	��6��������	���������������"�	����������������������"���������	�����&�

�
5/*� )�����	��������"�����������������	������������������������� �"��������������

����	��6���� �	������������	������"��������������������������3���������������$��
���� ��������� 3�������� 9��������$� ������� 3�������� ���� ����������� ����
3��"�����	������������&�

Page 86



� �

�
5/5� ���������
�����������������"�����"�(��	���������������	�������	�����������

����	��6����������	 �9����������������������� ������		�����"�������������
�����������������������������"�������������� ����������������������"��������������
���"�����	�����������&�

�
5/>� )�������������������	�������	����������""�	��(������ ���������� �����"�������

��	������$����������������������������"�����������������������������(�� ��"�����
����	��6����������	���4�	��(������������&�

�
5/?� )�����2��"��������(�����"�������������	�
���������������������	�����9������ �����&�
�
�
>/� ��������,������
�
� )������������������������(�������*�
�
>/(���� 7��������������������	�������������������������������������������	�
����
�������&��

�

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

��
�
	

�
�
�


��
	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
	�
��

�	
�	

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�	
�
��
 	
�
�!
�"
#
	

�
$
%
	

�
$
&

�
�
�
	

�
�
'

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�

	�(

�
�
�
�'
��
(



�
�
�
�
�
	

��
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
(
	�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
�
	



�
�
�
�
��
�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)�

�
��

�
��

�
��	
	

�	
�


�

��
�

�
�*

�
�

�*
*

*
�*

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���


�
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��

��
���
�	
��
�


	�
��

�	
��
��
���
��

�� 

�

��
��!
��
		

�
�	
�"
��#
��
��


�
���
��
��
�

�
��

��
�$
�%
�&
���
�

��

��
��
��
��
���

��
'��
��

!�

�

��
��
 (
��
��


�
��

���
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
�!
��
)	
'��
��

�
��
��
�$
��
��

�	
��
��

�
��
��

	

�(
���
&�
	�
�
��

�	
��*
��
��

��
���
��
�#
��
��
��
��
	�
��

���
��
��
�!
��
		

�
�	
��
��
�+
!�

��
��

��
���
��

���
��
��

	�
��

��

�

 �
�	
��
��

$�
�)
��

��
���
��
�#
�$�
��
��
��

��
��
��

��
��
��

�
��

�	
���
��
	�
�&
��
�	
���
��
��


$
�	
��,

#�
$�
�-
�&
��


�
��
�	
�


��
�	
��
��

���

�

���
� 
��

��
��&
�$
(�
�
��

���
��
��
��

��
��
�	
)�
 �

	�
	�
��

��
!�
��
���
�	
��

��
��
��
��
��

$(
���
��
�	

�
��
�#
��
�	
!�

��
��
��
!$
��

	�
�
��
�#
��
�	
�


��
�	
'�

�#
��
���
��

��
�$
�!
��
		

�
�	
���
��
��

��#
��
�
�


��
�$�
��
�
��
��
	�
��

���
��
��
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		


�
��
,"

!	
,-

$
"
$
�
�-
	

-$
"
.
�!
�$
"
�	
-�

�
��
"
#
	�
�#
"
�/
�-
�"

!	
�
�
.
#
,!
	0
�,
��

�
�,
�	
%
�!
1
	�
,.

�
-!
�$
"
	�"

	

,"

!�
�2
	�
$
3,

�"
�
,"

!	
/�
"
.
�"
#
	

-$
"
/�
��

,.
4	-
$
�
0
$
�
"
.
,.

	�
�	
�,
.
�
-,

.
	�"

-$
�
,	
/�
$
�
	-
��
	0
��
 �

4	-
$
�
�
,�
-�
�2
	�
,"

!�
	�
"
.
	!
�,
��

�
��
	

�"
3,

�!
�
,"

!�
&		
�
22	
.
,0

��
!�

,"
!�
	�
�,
	-
$
"
!�
"
�
�"
#
	!
$
	.
,3

,2
$
0
	"
,%

	.
,2
�3
,�
�	
0
2�
"
�	
!$
	�
.
.
�,
��

	!
1
,	
/�
"
.
�"
#
	

�1
$
�!
/�
22&
		�
�
0
�$
3,

�
,"

!	
5
$
��
.
�	
1
�3

,	
�
,,

"
	�"

�!
�#
�!
,.

	!
$
	$
3,

��
,,

	0
�$
#
�,
��

&

�
�$
��
$�
��
��

-
��
#�
$�

.
�

$�
��

�
/0

-
��


�
��

�.
��

�	
��
��

��
��

�

�

���
�	
�1
��

��
(�
2.
�
1
3�
��
&�
	�
�
��

��
��
��
��
�"

��
���
��
� 

$�
�#
�


	�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
!�
��

��
�
�
�	
�

�
,%

*
*

�*


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

��
 	
$
/	
!1
,	


$
�
"
-�
2	"

$
!	
�
,,

!�
"
#
	�!
�	
�/
/$
�.
��

2,
	1
$
�
��
"
#
	!
��
#
,!
�	
�
�	�
**

	�
"
.
	 
,�

	
�!
��
!,
#
�-
	�
�!
,�

	�
"
.
	�
,#

,"
,�
�!
�$
"
	0
��
$
��
!�
,�

	"
$
!	
�
,�
"
#
	/
�
"
.
,.

&	�
	�
$
-�

2	�
"
3,

�!
�
,"

!	
�
2�
"
	1
��

	�
,,

"
	

.
,3

,2
$
0
,.

	!
$
	�
�!
�-
�
2�
!,
	!
1
,	


$
�
"
-�
26�
	1
$
�
��
"
#
	�"

3,
�!
�
,"

!	
�,
7
�
��
,�

,"
!�
4	2
$
�
�
��
"
#
	/
$
�	
/�
"
.
�"
#
	�
"
.
	

�
�

��
��4

�$
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
��#

�
�#

��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

	�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

'
,�

��
�

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�
�#

��
8

'
,�

��
8

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

5

.
,3

,2
$
0
,.

	!
$
	�
�!
�-
�
2�
!,
	!
1
,	


$
�
"
-�
26�
	1
$
�
��
"
#
	�"

3,
�!
�
,"

!	
�,
7
�
��
,�

,"
!�
4	2
$
�
�
��
"
#
	/
$
�	
/�
"
.
�"
#
	�
"
.
	

�
� 

�"
#
	!
1
,	
-�

�,
	/
$
�	
�
2�
�
$
�
!1
&		
�
,,

.
	!
$
	,
"
��

�,
	-
2$
�,

	%
$
� 
�"
#
	%
�!
1
	�


�
	!
$
	�

��
"
!�
�"
	!
1
,�
�	
-$

"
/�
.
,"

-,
	�"

	
�"
3,

�!
�"
#
	�"

	!
1
,	
-�
!�
&

9
66

�

�
$�
��
��
	�
#�

�$
	�
��
��
�#
��
�

�

��
�2
�
�
�
3�
!�
��

��
�
�
��
2�
��
�
��
$(
�

�
�#
��

$	
��
�7
��
��

��
	�
���
��
3

6
6

8
�

6
:

�
6

:
�


��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

�
�
�%
�&
��
��

��
��
�	
��
 $
�	
#�

��
��
�$

�

��
��
��
!�

$��
��
�$
��
��

�
���
��

��
��

��
+�
�

��&
��
��



�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

1
,	
#
$
3,

�"
�
,"

!	
1
��

	%
�!
1
.
��
%
"
	!
1
,	
5

'
	0
�$
#
��
�
�
,	
�"

.
	��
	-
$
"
��

2!
�"
#
	$
"
	�
	

�,
3�
,%

	$
/	
1
$
%
	-
�0

�!
�2
	��
	�
22$

-�
!,
.
	!
$
	�
-1

$
$
2�
&		
�
1
��
	-
$
�
2.
	�

,�
"
	!
1
�!
	!
1
,	
3�

2�
��

2,
	�
$
�
�-
,	
$
/	
-�

0
�!
�2
	

�"
3,

�!
�
,"

!	
!1
�!
	1
��

	�
�
0
0
$
�!
,.

	!
1
,	


$
�
"
-�
26�
	�
,$

�#
�"

��
�!
�$
"
�2
	�
#
,"

.
�	
%
�22
	�
,	
�,
.
��
,-

!,
.
	!
$
	$
!1
,�
	

0
�$
0
,�
!�
,�

&		
�
1
,	
��

!1
$
��
!�
	�
!�
22	
1
$
2.
�	
!1
,	
2��
�
�2�
!�
	/
$
�	
�-

1
$
$
2	�

�
�.
�"
#
�	
%
1
�-
1
	�
,0

�,
�,

"
!�
	�

$
�,
	!
1
�"

	1
�2
/	
$
/	

!1
,	
-$

�
"
-�
2�
	�
��

,!
	�
!$
- 

&

%
��
��
#�
�
��
�
��
	
.
��
��
#�

.
��
��
	

;
��

8
�$
�&
��
(�
��
��
�!

���
$�4

��
��
��

�
�




�:
�

�
�*


�

��
;

*
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��
#�

��
�


��
�$�
#�

	�
��

��
�
 �
���

	
��
��
"
�#
��
��

��
��
�.
�"

�&
��
'��
���
	�
��

���
�!
��
��

��#
��
��
��

��
�$
�

%
�&
���
�
�!

���
$�%

��
��
��

��

��
��
"
�$$
��
��


�
��
"
#�
$	
��-

8
1
��
��

��
�#
��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
�$
	�
��
��


�
��
��
��
#�

��
��	
��
$	
��

��
�	
��
��
� 

$�
�

��
��
��
��
�(
��
��

�

��
!�

��
��
��
$��
�!

���
$��
��
��
!�
	�
��

�

��
��

��
���
#�

��
�!

���
$��
�&
�	
��
��

��!
��
��
��

�
��

�#
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

	�
��
� 
��
��	
)�
�	
	�
		
��

��
��

��
$�
	�
$(
��
��

���
��
��
"
��#
�	
�#
��

�	
��
��
��

$
$(
�!
���
���
�	
��

��
��

��
	�
�

��
	�

�
��
	�
�&
��
$�
 $
��
�-
��

��
�	
��
�#
��
#�
��	
)�
�	
�$�
��

��
	�
�#
��

�

��
��
��
��
(�
�&
��
��

�

��
��

��

��
��
��
��
��

�

	�
��



�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

1
,	


$
�
"
-�
2	1

��
	�
"
	�
�
�
�!
�$
�
�	
#
�$
%
!1
	�
#
,"

.
�&
		�

$
%
,3

,�
4	


,"
!�
�2
	�
$
3!
&	


�0
�!
�2
	

�
��
"
!	
/�
"
.
�"
#
	1
��

	�
,.

�
-,

.
	%
1
�2�
!	
�
(
�
	�
"
.
	$
!1
,�
	#
��
"
!�
	�
�,
	�
2�
$
	�
,.

�
-�
"
#
	,
#
&	<
8�

�4
��

�	
�,
.
�
-,

.
	/
�$
�
	

�
��
"
�0

$
�!
	-
�0

�!
�2
	�
22$

-�
!�
$
"
	�
"
.
	�
0
0
�$
=	
<>

�	
�
�22
�$
"
	/
�$
�
	!
1
,	
5

'
	0
�$
#
��
�
�
,4
	%
1
�-
1
	1
��

	"
$
%
	-
,�

�,
.
	

�2
!$
#
,!
1
,�
&		
�
1
,�
,	
��
	�
2�
$
	-
$
"
��
.
,�
��

2,
	�
"
-,

�!
��
"
!�
	�
�$
�
"
.
	0
$
!,
"
!�
�2
	-
�0

�!
�2
	�
,-

,�
0
!�
&		
'
�
"
.
�"
#
	$
/	
!1
,	

-�
0
�!
�2
	�"

3,
�!
�
,"

!	
0
�$
#
��
�
�
,	
!1
,�
,/
$
�,
	-
$
"
!�
"
�
,�

	!
$
	�
,	
��
� 

	�
��

,�
�,

.
	�
"
.
	-
2$
�,

2�
	�

$
"
�!
$
�,
.
	%
�!
1
	

�-
1
,�

,�
	-
��
,/
�
22�
	0
��
$
��
!�
�,

.
	�
#
��
"
�!
	�
,-

$
�
�-
,�

	�
3�

�2�
�
2,
&		
�
,�

��
"
�	
�	
1
�#
1
	�
��
 	
��

	2$
"
#
	�
�	
!1
,	

�
"
-,

�!
��
"
!�
	$
3,

�	
/�
!�
�,
	/
�
"
.
�"
#
	-
$
"
!�
"
�
,�

&

�
�$
��
$�
��
��

-
��
#�
$�

.
�

$�
��

*
0

9�
	�
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
��

��
�


�

��


�
��


�

��


�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��8

��
���
�
���
���
��

!$
��
��

��
��

���
��
�	
�

		
��
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

3�
"
!�
	�
��
,/
	"
$
%
	

-$
�
0
2,
!,
.
	�
"
.
		/
�"
�"

-�
�2
		�
0
0
��
��
�2
	�
"
.
	�
"
�2
��

��
	�
"
.
,�
!�
 ,

"
&		
�
�,
0
��
�"
#
	.
$
-�

�
,"

!�
!�
$
"
	/
$
�	
�
��
 ,

!�
"
#
	

$
/	
!1
,	
�
�
�2.

�"
#
	!
$
	-
$
�
�
,"

-,
	2�
!,
�	
�"
	�
��

�&

1
��
��
"
�:
��
��
$�

�
��
��
��
�
��#

�
��
��
��
��
�-
�	
)�
-
��
�	
��
��
�
$�
&�
��
7�
�
9�
�#
��7
�;
��
	�
��
�0
�#
��
�!
���
��
�

Page 89



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

��
�
	

�
�
�


��
	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
	�
��

�	
�	

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�	
�
��
 	
�
�!
�"
#
	

�
$
%
	

�
$
&

�
�
�
	

�
�
'

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�

	�(

�
�
�
�'
��
(



�
�
�
�
�
	

��
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
(
	�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
�
	



�
�
�
�
��
�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)��
�#

��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

	�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

'
,�

��
�

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�
�#

��
8

'
,�

��
8

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

:
/6

�
�
!$
�(
��

�-
�$
��
��
�	
�

�
,%


�

��


�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��-

�	
)�
��
�$�
���
��
��
��
��

��
�"

��
�	
��
�$
��
��
��
��
��
�
!$
�(
�
��

��!
��
��
�	
�	
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		

�
��
"
�/
$
��

�!
�$
"
�2
	

1
�"

#
,	
�
�$
#
��
�
�
,	
�
��

	2,
�.

	!
$
	,
�
0
2$
�,

,	
�,
2�
!�
$
"
�	
��
��

,�
&	�

��
.
,	
�
"
�$
"
�	

-$
"
��
.
,�
�"
#
	�"

.
�
�!
��
�2
	�
-!
�$
"
	�"

	�
,�

0
$
"
�,

	!
$
	,
=0

,-
!,
.
	�
$
3,

�"
�
,"

!	
�0

,"
.
�"
#
	-
�
!�
&

�
��
)�
%
���

$�
(

.
�$
��
��
��
)	

>
/

�
��
��
$��

��
��
7�
�
$��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��*
��
�
(	
��
�
	�
2�
��
��
��	
�3

�
,%

�


��
�


��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��1

�6
�(
��

��
!�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

!�
�&
��

��
��#
�	
� 
��


�
���
��
��

��
		
� 
��
#�
�#
��
	(
	�
��

��
��

�
	

!!

��
���
��
 


	�
��

		
�!
��
��
		
�	
���
1
��
��
��

��	
��4

��
<�
��
��
��

��
�#
�	
� 
��

��
�	
��
 $
�	
#�

��
�#
��
��
��
 (
��#
��
1
		
���

#�
��
�

�
+�
�

��&
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
	
�#
"
�/
�-
�"

!	
0
�$
#
�,
��

	1
��

	�
,,

"
	�

�.
,	
$
3,

�	
!1
,	
2�
�!
	�

$
"
!1
	%
�!
1
	!
1
,	

��
0
2,
�
,"

!�
!�
$
"
	$
/	
�"
/�
��

!�
�
-!
�
�,
	�
"
.
	�
$
/!
%
��
,	
!$
	�
�
0
0
$
�!
	�
,!
!,
�	
�
�"

�#
,�

,"
!	
�,
0
$
�!
�"
#
	�
"
.
	-
2�,
"
!	

/�
-�
"
#
	$
�
!0
�
!�
4	�
0
0
�$
3�

2	$
/	
!1
,	
!,
-1

"
�-
�2
		.

,�
�#
"
	�
"
.
	�
-1

,.
�
2�"

#
	$
/	
1
��
.
%
��
,	
�
0
#
��
.
,	
!$
	�
�
0
0
$
�!
	!
1
,	

2�
!,
�!
	�
,2
,�

�,
	$
/	
!1
,	


��
,'

��
�!
	�
$
/!
%
��
,	
�"

.
	!
1
,	
�,
-�
�
�!
�
,"

!	
$
/	
>	
�
,�

�
,�
�	
$
/	
�!
�/
/	
!$
	!
1
,	


��
,'

��
�!
	!
,�

�
	

!$
	�
�
0
0
$
�!
	!
1
,	
�$
22	
$
�
!	
$
/	
!1
,	
"
,%

	/
�
"
-!
�$
"
�2
�!
�&
	�
�$
-,

��
	�
,�
,"

#
�"
,,

��
"
#
	��
	.
,0

,"
.
,"

!	
$
"
	!
1
,	
%
$
� 
	!
� 

�"
#
	

0
2�
-,

	%
�!
1
	

1
��
!,
��
�	
�
�
!	
!1
��
	!
$
$
	��
	�

$
3�
"
#
	/
$
�%

��
.
	%
�!
1
	�

$
�,
	.
,!
��
2,
.
	$
�
!0
�
!�
	!
$
	.
,!
,�
�
�"
,	
!1
,	

.
��
,-

!�
$
"
	$
/	
!1
,	


��
,'

��
�!
	��

0
2,
�
,"

!�
�$
"
	/
$
�	
�



	�
�	
�
-!
$
�
,�
&	�

,�
"
%
1
�2,
4	!
1
,	
/$
�
"
.
�!
�$
"
�	
$
/	
!1
,	

�$
/!
%
��
,	
,"

3�
�$
"
�
,"

!	
��
	�
,�
"
#
	,
�!
��

2��
�,
.
	�
�	
�.

.
�,
��

�"
#
	�
,-

�
��
!�
	�
"
.
	-
$
"
!�
$
2	$

/	
!1
,	
��

�!
,�

	
-$

"
/�
#
�
��
!�
$
"
&	�

$
�,
	-
$
"
-,

"
!�
�!
,.

	/
�
"
-!
�$
"
�2
	%
$
� 
	��
	�
,�
"
#
	/
$
-�

�,
.
	$
"
	

1
�2.

�,
"
6�
	
$
-�
�2
	

��
,	
��

	0
,�
	!
1
,	

�#
�,
,.

	�
�$
#
��
�
�
,	
�
2�
"
&

*�
��
%
�$
$��
�

9(
��
��
$�
�)

?
//

�
��
 �

��
-
��


�
���
��
�
��

�
���

��
��2
�
-
�
3�
�
��

��
(�
�
���
��
��

�(
�

�
�#
��

�
�
,%


�

��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

1
,	


�


	-
��
��
,�

	�
�#
"
�/
�-
�"

!	
/�
"
�"

-�
�2
4	�
,0

�
!�
!�
$
"
�2
	�
"
.
	2,
#
�2
	-
$
�
0
2��
"
-,

	�
��
 �

&		

�
�!
��
"
��

�2�
!�
	1
��

	�
��
,"

	��
�
,"

�,
2�
	$
"
	!
1
,	
0
�
�
2�-
	�
#
,"

.
�	
�"

.
	0
$
$
�	
0
,�
/$
��

�"
-,

	�"
	!
1
,	


�


	2,
�#

�
,	
!�
�
2,
	

%
�22
	�

� 
,	
2$
-�

2	�
"
.
	"
�!
�$
"
�2
	1
,�

.
2�"

,	
"
,%

�&
		�

	%
$
� 
�"
#
	#
�$
�
0
	1
��

	�
,,

"
	,
�!
��

2��
1
,.

	�
"
.
	�
	%
�.
,	
��
"
#
,	
$
/	

,"
,�
#
�	
�,
.
�
-!
�$
"
	�

,�
��

�,
�	
1
�3

,	
�
,,

"
	�
.
$
0
!,
.
	�
-�
$
��

	-
$
�
"
-�
2	0

�$
0
,�
!�
,�

	�
"
.
	�
-1

$
$
2�
&		
�
,%

	,
"
,�
#
�	

0
�$
@,
-!
�	
"
,,

.
	!
$
	�
,	
�.
,"

!�
/�
,.

	!
$
	,
"
��

�,
	$
"
�#
$
�"
#
	

�


	�
-1

,�
,	
0
,�
/$
��

�"
-,

&

�
#�
�	
��
��
&�
��

1
��
��
�

�
��

"
��
��
(

8
�=

*�
��
��

	�
���
��#
��
��
��

�

 �
��
��
�$�
�)
��

��
���
��
�#
�$�
��
��
��

��
��
	�
�

!�
�	
	

��
	�
��

�*�
��

!�
��

��
��4

$�
��
�
��

�	
�

6
6

8
6

6
8


�

��


�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��*
��
��
�	
��
��
��#
��
�


�
 �

��
��
��
#�
$�
��
��
	

 <
��
���
��
�
#�
$�
�4
��
��
��
��
��
4
$�
��
#�

	�
��

��
��
��
��
�	
��

!�
�	
	

��
	�
��
��
	�
��
���
��
��

��
��
	�

�
��
	�
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

1
,	
"
�
�
�
,�
�	
�"

.
	�
��

$
-�
�!
,.

	-
$
�!
�	
$
/	

-1
�2.

�,
"
	�
,�
"
#
	�
.
�
�!
!,
.
	!
$
	-
��
,	
��
,	
�!
�22
	!
$
$
	1
�#
1
	�
"
.
	�
-!
�$
"
	��
	�
,�
"
#
	!
� 

,"
	!
$
	�
,.

�
-,

	.
��
/!
	�"

	-
1
�2.

�,
"
�	

0
2�
-,

�
,"

!�
	�
"
.
	.
,3

,2
$
0
	0
�,
3,

"
!�
!�
3,

	0
�$
#
��
�
�
,�

	!
$
	.
�3
,�
!	
-1

�2.
�,
"
	/
�$
�
	-
��
,&

�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
$
.
��
��
#�

.
��
��
	

��
/>

�
��
��
��
���
��
��

&�
��
�
��

���

�

��
��

���
� 

�
$�
��
���
��
�%
(!
	(
�	
���

�
,%

6


��



�:

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��8

�	
�

		
��
�	
�"
��#
�.
��

�	
�?
��
��

�

�

���
�	
�1
��

��
(�
��

��
!�
�<
��
���
��

�
��
��
��

(�
�

�

��
� 
��
��
��

�
�!

!�
��

�

���
�	
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

0
!�
$
"
�	
/$
�	
/�
"
.
�"
#
	�
�
�2.

�"
#
	!
1
,	
��
!,
	�
�,
	�
,�
"
#
	,
=0

2$
�,
.
	�
�
!	
��
,	

-1
�2
2,
"
#
�"
#
&

4
��
��
�1
$�
(

9(
��
��
$�
�)

��
�/

4
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
	�
�9
��
�$
�1
��
��
1
��
��

�
��

��2
91

1
3�
��

��
��
	




�:



�:




�:
;

;
�:

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

+�
�

��&
��
��
�


!�
"
��
)	
#�

!�
��

���
!�
�&
��
��
!�

��
��
�
��

��
��
��

��
��

��
��"

��#
��
��#
��
9�

��
$�

�
��
��
��

��
�4
��
��
��
	#
�!
��
��
��

��
��
��9
��

��
��
���
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��

�

��
�!
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
���
(�
�#
��

�

#�
��
���
�@
��
��
&�
�(
�

!$
��

	�
���

�7
��

��
��
�
��
!�

��
��
��
�!

��
���
��
��
�

��

��
��
#�
�&
��
��
91

1
���
��
��
	�
��

� 
�7�

��
�#
$(
� 
�	
�	
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	

��
+	
	'
�"
�2
	�
,�

�	
$
�
!�
!�
�"
	/
$
�	
�
�@
$
��
!�
	$
/	
�!
�,
!-
1
	!
��
#
,!
�	
-$

"
/�
��

�	
�"

!�
-�
0
�!
,.

	�
,�

�
2!
�&
		�

%
$
	 
,�

	!
��
#
,!
�	
�,

!	
!$
	�
,0

$
�!
&		
��

�?
��
�	
�
�
�
	!
��
#
,!
�	
!$
	�
,	
��

�,
��

,.
	
�
�
�
,�
	�
��

�&

*�
��
%
�$
$��
�

1
��
�
��
$�
��
�@�

:�
��
�
��
&�
�	

��
>

*�
��
��

��
��
��
%
�&
��
��

��
��
2�
��

!$
��
��
��
"
��#
�	
��
�

��
�(
�

��
A


���
�
��

�	
'��
��
��
�
��
��
��
	#
��
��
�'
���
��
��

��
��
��
	�
�

���
(3




�:



�:




�:



�:

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��1

"
��
��

�	
	�
��
��
��
��

� 
��
��

��
�	
��
��

��
��-

��
��
�	
��
��

��
��

��
�� 
��
��

��
�$
$�
��
�


���
��
��
�(
!�
��

�
�
��

��
(�
	�
��
)	
��
&�
�$�
 $
��
��

��
��

��
(!
��
��
��

��
$� 
��
��

���
	�
��

���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

$
3,

�"
�
,"

!	


$
"
"
,-

!	
�
,�
"
#
	.
,3

,2
$
0
,.

&		
A
$
� 
	1
��

	�
!�
�!
,.

	$
"
	�


�	(

�!
�	

!�
"
.
��
.
�&
		

,-
�
�,
	�

$
�
�2,
	%
$
� 
�"
#
	�
,�
"
#
	2�
�
"
-1

,.
&		

�
1
,	

��
�
	��
	�"

	0
2�
-,

&

�
�&
�$$
��
�
��
��
��

B
�&
��
�4
���
�(

�
��
��
��
��
�-
�	
)�
-
��
�	
��
��
�
$�
&�
��
7�
�
9�
�#
��7
�;
��
	�
��
�0
�#
��
�!
���
��
�

Page 90



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

��
�
	

�
�
�


��
	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
	�
��

�	
�	

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�	
�
��
 	
�
�!
�"
#
	

�
$
%
	

�
$
&

�
�
�
	

�
�
'

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�

	�(

�
�
�
�'
��
(



�
�
�
�
�
	

��
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
(
	�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
�
	



�
�
�
�
��
�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)��
�#

��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

	�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

'
,�

��
�

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�
�#

��
8

'
,�

��
8

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�9
/�

�
��
��
���
��

��!
��
		

�
��
��

�1
�


$��
�
��
��
$��

��
��
 


��
��

�
,%




�:



�:

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��
��
��
!$
��

	�
��
��
��
�


$�
�$(
��
��

���
��
��
��

��
��
&�
�"

��
� 
(�
�#
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
��

��
���



�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

1
,	
�
�$
#
��
�
�
,	
5
$
��
.
	-
$
"
!�
"
�
,�

	!
$
	�
,#

�
2�
�2
�	
�
$
"
�!
$
�	
�
�
.
#
,!
	0
,�
/$
��

�"
-,

	�
"
.
	

.
,2
�3
,�
�	
0
2�
"
�	
B%

1
�-
1
	�
�,
	$
"
	�
-1

,.
�
2,
	,
=-

,0
!	
/$
�	
�
�

C&
		�

�

	�
�2$

!�
	�"

	0
2�
-,

	!
$
	�
,	
�,
3�
,%

,.
	�"

	

,0

!,
�
�
,�
	�
��

�&

4
��

��
��
	�
��

9(
��
��
$�
�)

�;
��

�
��
$

��
���
��
�$
�&
��
�"
�	
��
�4
�
*�4

��
�

��
�
��

���
��
��
,
�8
�&
��

�
,
�	
��
�4
��
��
��
	#
�!
�2
 (
��
��

3
6

�
�*

6
�

�*



�:




�:
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��4

��
�

��
�
��

���
	�
��
��
��

�
��

�"
�$
$��
$�#
�


�#
��
	�
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
���
$�
	�
��	
��
�"

��
�(
��
��

��
�


��
��
��
��

���
��

�$
�*�

8
�
�	
��
��

��
��

�8
��
��
��
!!

��
&�
$��
�A


�
��
�
��

�	
���
8
�$
�&
��
(�
��
��
��

�
�	
�	
��$
$�!
�	
	�
 $
��
�$
�#
�


�#
�

��
!�

��
��

���
��
	

��
�	
	�

$
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
!$
��

��
��

��
!!

��
&�
$��
�-
��
��

���
��
��
��

$�!
$�
��

��
��
��
�$

��
	�
��

��
��

$�
(	
�#
�&
��

��
��
��

	�
��
�#
��
��	
)�
��
�!
$�
��

��
��
��

$�
(�
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
$��
��
��
� 
��
�!

��
��
��
��

$� 
(�
��

�
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		

�
�$
-�

�,
�
,"

!	
-$

"
!�
"
�
�"
#
	!
$
	0
�$
#
��
�
�
,	
%
�!
1
	,
�!
��

�!
,.

	/
�"
�"

-�
�2
	�
"
.
	-
$
"
!�
�-

!	
-2
$
�,

	"
$
%
	�
--

,2
,�
�!
,.

	!
$
	

�
��
	�
��

�	
��

�
@,
-!
	!
$
	

$
�
"
-�
26�
	�
"
.
	(
,/
��
	�
0
0
�$
3�

2�
&		
5
�
.
#
,!
	0
$
��
!�
$
"
�	
�
,�
"
#
	�
,/
�,
�1

,.
&		
�
$
	�"

.
�-
�!
�$
"
	�
!	

0
�,
�,

"
!	
!1
�!
	�
�,
��

�
��
	�
�
.
#
,!
	�
,3

�,
%
	%
�22
	�
//
,-

!	
�
'
�	-
�,
.
�!
	�
22$

-�
!�
$
"
	�
�
!	
�
,�
"
#
	�

$
"
�!
$
�,
.
&		
�
0
,�
�!
�$
"
�2
	

.
,2
�3
,�
�	
.
�
��
"
#
	/
�"
�"

-�
�2
	�
,�

�	
��

�;
D�
*	
�!
�22
	0
$
��

��
2,
	�
2!
1
$
�
#
1
	.
,0

,"
.
�	
$
"
	%
1
�-
1
	-
$
"
!�
�-

!$
�	
��
	

��
--

,�
�/
�
2	�
"
.
	%
1
,"

	0
2�
"
"
�"
#
	�
0
0
�$
3�

2	�
�	
�,

-�
�,
.
	�
	!
1
,	
2�
!!
,�
	�
,�
"
#
	�"

.
,0

,"
.
,"

!	
$
/	
0
��
!"
,�
�1

�0
&

�
��
)�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��#

�*
6

-
�	
)�
��
��
+�
��

��
��

�9
��

��
�$$
�1
$$�
"
��

��
	

;
;

�:
9

;
��

;
;

�:



�:

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��1

$�#
�


�#
��
��
(�
$��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��

���
��
��
�	
���
��
#�

&�
���

!�
�&
��

���
��
��

�0
@�
�'
���
��	
�!
��
<�
��
��

�
�#
��
� 
��
��

��
��

��
 $
��
"
�	
��
���
�$�
��

��$
$�"

�$$
�#
�&
��
��
�


��
��
��
��
��

0@
��

��
�	

�
��
��
�#
��
�4
�
�
�"
�$$
��
��

��
��
"
��#
��
�

:�
(�
��
8
��
�&
��
�@�

�
��
)�
�

�
��
�

9(
��
��
$�
�)

�#
��
� 
��
��

��
��

��
 $
��
"
�	
��
���
�$�
��

��$
$�"

�$$
�#
�&
��
��
�


��
��
��
��
��

0@
��

��
�	

�
��
��
�#
��
�4
�
�
�"
�$$
��
��

��
��
"
��#
��
�

�$
$�
"
��

��
	�
��
��
��

�0
@�
��
��.

�"
�&
��
���
��	
���
��
��
	�
��#
��
�4
�
�
�"
�$$
��
+�
��

��
��	
��
$$�
"
��

��
	�
��
��

��
��

�@
��

��
�"

��
�	
��
��

�
"
�$$
��
��

��
��
�!

�
�#
�	
��
��
��

��	
�

��
�$�
�#
��
��

"
�4
�
*�	
�$

�
��
��
�	
���
�!
$�
��
�"
#�
�#
��
�(
� 
��
��

$�
(�
��
 �

(�
��

��
��

�
	

 <
��
��

��
�!
$�
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

1
,	
!$
"
"
�#

,	
$
/	
�
�$
.
,#

��
.
,�

�
2,
	%
��

!,
	!
$
	2�
"
.
/�
22	
/,
22	
�
�	

��
$
�
"
.
	�
4*
��

	!
$
"
"
,�

	�"
	�
��

8D
��

	-
$
�
0
��
,.

	%
�!
1
	�
��

?D
�8

	�
"
.
	,
"
��

�,
.
	�




	�
,�

��
"
,.

	%
�!
1
�"
	�
3�

�2�
�
2,
	

�2
2$
%
�"

-,
�&
		�
!	
��
	,
�!
��

�!
,.

	!
1
�!
	�




	%
�22
	�
,�

��
"
	%
�!
1
�"
	�
3�

�2�
�
2,
	�
22$

%
�"

-,
�	
/$
�	
��

��
D�
�	
�
�
!	
%
�22
	"
,,

.
	!
$
	

0
�
�-
1
��

,	
�.

.
�!
�$
"
�2
	-
�,
.
�!
�	
/$
�	
��

��
D�
�	
$
"
%
��
.
�	
�
"
!�
2	!
1
,	
"
,%

	�
,�

�.
�
�2
	%
��

!,
	�
$
2�
!�
$
"
	��
	�"

	0
2�
-,

	
B,
=0

,-
!,
.
	.
�
��
"
#
	�
��

;	
��

�
@,
-!
	!
$
	-
$
"
!�
�-

!$
�	
�"

.
	0
2�
"
"
�"
#
C&
		�

�
�

	0
$
��
!�
$
"
	�
,�
"
#
	�

$
"
�!
$
�,
.
	�
"
.
	/
$
�%

��
.
	

0
�
�-
1
��

,	
�!
��
!,
#
�	
!$
	�
,	
�,
3�
,%

,.
	/
$
�	
,�

�2
�	
��

��
	/
$
22$

%
�"
#
	�
$
3,

�"
�
,"

!	
%
��

!,
	0
$
2�-
�	
�,
3�
,%

&

�
��
)�
�

�
��
�

�:
>=

�
��
$

��
���
���

!$
��

��
���
�"

���
���
��
�&
�	
���
���
��
��

	�
��
��
(�
$��
��
��
��
'�

�

��
��
� 

�

��
��!
��
		

�
�	
���
*�
���
��&
�	
��
��
��

��
�	
�!
��
���
��4

�
*�

�

��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�	
�

�
,%

9
;

��
;

;
�:




�:
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��*
��
���
��&
�	
��
��
� 
��
��

�!
��
��
�	
	�
��
�$
�#
�


�#
��
��
��

�
��
��
�"

��

�
��
��
��
��
	�
�	
�"
�$
$��
	�
�
�


��
�$�

�

��

��
��
��
�	
��
��
�	
��
��
�	
$�
"
��
��
�#
��
��
!$
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
�"

�"
�	
��
��
��
(�
$��
��
��

��
�
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
���
��
�&
�	
��
��

��
	�
�

4
�
*��

�
�
�!
��
<�
��
��
�	
�"
#�
�#
���
��

��
��	
�	
$�
"
��
��
�#
��
��
!�
�&
��

��
���
���
��
(�
$��
��
��
��
	�
"
#�
�#
��
��
�$�
)�
$(
���
��
��

��
��
��
�

��
�


��
�6
�C

���
��
��

�0
@�
��
��-

�$
$��

�
��
���
��
��

��
"
�	
��
��
�$
$�
��
��
�	
���
��

��
�(
��
��

��
��
�6
�'
��

��
!�
�!

��
���
	�
��



�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

1
,	
0
2�
"
"
,.

	�"
�!
��
!�
3,

�	
��

-1
	�
�	
#
��
.
,"

	%
��

!,
	-
$
22,
-!
�$
"
	,
=0

�"
��
$
"
	1
��

	1
,2
0
,.

	
!1
,	


$
�
"
-�
2	�

,,
!	
�!
�	
�
5


	�
��

8D
��

	�
,-

�-
2�"

#
	!
��
#
,!
	$
/	
�8

E
	�
�
!	
1
�3

,	
"
$
!	
�-

1
�,
3,

.
	"
,%

,�
	�
�
�
	�
,-

�-
2�"

#
	

!�
�#
,!
�&
		'

�"
�"

-�
�2
	0
�,
��

�
�,
�	
�"

.
	�
�
.
#
,!
	-
$
"
�!
��
�"
!�
	�
�,
	�
2$
%
�"
#
	.
,2
�3
,�
�	
$
/	
�.
,"

!�
/�
,.

	�
'
�	�
,-

�-
2�"

#
	

�"
�!
��
!�
3,

�	
%
1
�-
1
	�

��
	��

0
�-

!	
$
"
	�
-1

�,
3,

�
,"

!	
$
/	
/�
!�
�,
	!
��
#
,!
�&

:�
(�
��
8
��
�&
��
�@�

�
��
)�
�

�
��
�

9(
��
��
$�
�)

�>
�

.
��

$�#
�?
��
��
��
(�
�
��

��
��

��
��	
(	
��
�

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��1


�
���
��

�!
��
��
��

�
��
7�
��
#�

��
��
��

��
	�
���
��

$�#
��

$�#
��
��

�	
��
��
(�
�	
	

�	
���
)�
��

�!
���
���
(�
�&
��
�

��
!$
��

��
��
���
��
��
��

�

���
!�
��

��
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

!1
,�
	$
�#
�"

��
�!
�$
"
�2
	1
,�

2!
1
	F
	�
�/
,!
�	
��
��

,�
	

�,
�
��
"
		0

��
$
��
!�
	�
$
	!
,�

�
	�
�,
	0
�,
0
��
�"
#
	�
�
��
"
,�

�	
-�

�,
	/
$
�	
,=

!,
�"
�2
	�
�
.
�!
	�
,�

$
�
�-
,	
!$
	�
"
.
,�
!�
 ,

	�
�
.
�!
	

0
�$
#
��
�
�
,&

�
��
)�
%
���

$�
(

.
�$
��
��
��
)	

�
��
��
��
��
�-
�	
)�
-
��
�	
��
��
�
$�
&�
��
7�
�
9�
�#
��7
�;
��
	�
��
�0
�#
��
�!
���
��
�

Page 91



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

��
�
	

�
�
�


��
	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
	�
��

�	
�	

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�	
�
��
 	
�
�!
�"
#
	

�
$
%
	

�
$
&

�
�
�
	

�
�
'

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�

	�(

�
�
�
�'
��
(



�
�
�
�
�
	

��
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
(
	�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
�
	



�
�
�
�
��
�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)��
�#

��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

	�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

'
,�

��
�

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�
�#

��
8

'
,�

��
8

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�?
�0

�
��
��

��
�$
�-
�	
)�
�	
	�
��
��
��

�"
��#
��
��

��
�
��
��
��

�$�
��




�:
6

�
�*

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

#�
��
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
�
��
��
��

�$�
��

��	
��
��

��
��

���
�!
��
!�

��
��
��
��
��#
��
	�
�$
��
��
��#
��

!�
��
��
��
$�!
��
 $
��

���
-
�	
)�
��
�	
��
��
��
��

���
��

	�
��
��
��$
��

��
��
�4
�
.
�"
�$$
��
��

��
��

�

��$
�"
��
#�

&�
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��#
��

A

�$
��(
��
���
#�

��$
��

��
��*
�
��
#�

&�
�"
���
��
��
��
��#
��
*�
��
	

!!

$��
��
��
��
��

���
�
��
�$
�&
��
(�
��

��
��
��
��

��
��

�	
���
��
��
	�
�$
$�
���
��
��



�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�


�
	�"

�!
�2
2,
.
	�
$
/!
%
��
,&
		

!�
//
	!
��
�"
,.

	�
"
.
	�
�!
	0
��
$
��
!�
��

!�
$
"
	2�
�!
	0
�$
.
�
-,

.
&		

�"
�0

,-
!�
$
"
�	
$
"
�#
$
�"
#
&

:�
(�
��
8
��
�&
��
�@�

-
� 
��
��
��
��
�

9(
��
��
$�
�)

�8
>/

;
��
$�
��
��
+�
��
�
�	
�

�
,%

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

6
�

�*
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

#�
	�
��
��

�#
�	
� 
��

��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��#
��
 


��
��
�	
��
���
��
!�
��
�	
	�
�	
��
�!
��
		

�
�'
��
��
�$
(�

��
�


��
�	

	
��
��
��
��
��

��
"
��
��

��
��
�

��
��

���
��
�&
��(
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

�
�	
�,
�0

$
"
�,

	!
$
	!
1
,	


$
�
"
!,
�	

�
,�
�$
��
��

	�
$
-�

2	�
�$
/�
2,
	�
"
.
	�
	G
�
�,
3,

"
!G
	�
-!
�$
"
	�
2�
"
	�
�,
	 
,�

	%
$
� 
	�
#
��
"
�!
	!
1
��
	�
��
 &
		�

1
,	
�
2�
"
	��
	�
#
�,
,.

	
�"

.
	�
,�

$
�
�-
,.

	/
$
�	
��

��
D�
�	
�"

.
	�
,�
"
#
	0
,�
/$
��

�"
-,

	�
�"

�#
,.

	%
�!
1
	0
��
!"
,�
�&

4
��
��
�1
$�
(

9(
��
��
$�
�)

6
�

�*
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��4

��
��
�	
	�
#�

	�
 �

��
��
��

��
��
��#
��
��

�!
���
��
��
��
��
�"

�	
�#
��

��
 �

	�
��
��

��#
��
8
��
�-
1
��
��1

�
�


�
 �

��
��
��
&�
�


�	
��
��
� 
��
��

�!

�
	

��

���
��
�	

�
��
�#
��
	�
#�

�
��
��
!$
��

��
��
��
��
!�
�	
��

�	
� 
��
#�
;
�
�
��
��

��
��

���

�

	�
��
��
�$
�&
��
��#
��
 �

��
���
	�
��
��
��
�	
	�
 �
$��
(�
��

��
	

!!

��
�	
���
��
&�
�


�$
��
� 

�$�
�(
���
��#
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

!

���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	

��
+	
	A

$
� 
	1
��

	�
,,

"
	�
"
.
,�
!�
 ,

"
	%
�!
1
	�"

!,
�"
�2
	�
�
.
�!
	!
$
	��

0
�$
3,

	�
��

!,
�
�4
	�
,.

�
-,

	!
1
,	
0
$
!,
"
!�
�2
	/
$
�	
/�
��

.
	

�"
.
	0
$
$
�	
.
�!
�	
�
�"

�#
,�

,"
!	
!1
�!
	-
$
�
2.
	��

0
�-

!	
"
,#

�!
�3
,2
�	
$
"
	!
1
,	


$
�
"
-�
2&	
	�
.
.
�!
�$
"
�2
2�
	!
1
,	


$
�
"
-�
2	�
�,
	

%
$
� 
�"
#
	%
�!
1
	!
1
,	
�
0
,�
�!
�"
#
	

$
�
0
�"

�,
�	
�
$
3,

	!
$
	
�
��
!	
�
�-
 ,

!�
"
#
	%
1
�-
1
	��
	�
	�

$
�,
	�
$
�
�
�!
	�

,�
"
�	
$
/	

.
,2
�3
,�
�"
#
	!
1
,	
-$

"
-,

��
�$
"
��
�	
�-

1
,�

,&
		�
"
�!
��
2	�
"
�2
��

��
	/
$
�	
��

��
D�
�	
��
	�
1
$
%
�"
#
	�
	�
,.

�
-!
�$
"
	�"

	�
-1

,�
,	

/
�
��

��
		
��
��

�(
��
��
�	

�
��
��
��
�
��#

6
�

�*
�
$�&
��
4
��
)�
�

��
6

�
�*

6
�

�*

��
6>

�
��

��
��

��
���
���

�
!$
�(
��

��
��
�	
	

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

��
�	
	�
��	
)�
�	
	�
		
�
��

�	
�

��

��
��
)�
��
��
��
�$
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��
0=

C
��
���
#�

��
�


��
�$D
	�
"
��
)�
��
��
�

2�
+�
$

��
��

�	
�#
��

$	
3�
7�
	�
��
� 

�&
��
��
�
�
��

�	
��
��
�


��
��!
��
��
��

�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

��
 	
��

�,
��

�
,"

!	
0
�$
-,

��
	-
$
�
0
2,
!,
.
4	-
�
��
,"

!2
�	
�
"
.
,�
!�
 �
"
#
	/
�
22	
�,
3�
,%

	$
/	
$
�
!-
$
�
,�

	�"
	$
�.
,�
	!
$
	�.

,"
!�
/�
	%
1
�!
	�
-!
�$
"
	��
	

�,
7
�
��
,.

&

�
��
)�
%
���

$�
(

.
�$
��
��
��
)	

��
�

;
��
$�
��
��
��
�	
��
��@
$�
��

�"
��
)�
��

�
6

�
�*

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

6
�

�*
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��4

;
4
�7
���
���
�$
��
��
���
!�

$��
(�
 �

��
��
��

&�
$�
!�

��
�

��
#�

��
��

��
��
�#
��
��
$�	
�$

�
��
��
��

	�
��

� 
��
��

�
���
�$
�	
��

�7
�	
��

��
 �

&�
��
��

�
��

�	
��
��
�


��
��!
��
��
��

�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

�
�
	0
$
2�-
�	
�
,�
"
#
	.
,3

,2
$
0
,.

	
�"

.
	.
��
-�

��
,.

	%
�!
1
	�
��
.
,	
�
"
�$
"
�&

�
��
)�
%
���

$�
(

.
�$
��
��
��
)	

�9
��

�
��
$

��
���
��
�$
�&
��
�	

	
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
�$
��
��
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
��

�
!�

!

$�
���
��
��
�"

�#
�

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��4

��
��
�	
	�
��
��
��

�

	�
��

�)
�(
��
��

��
�$
��
��

	

��
	�
���

��
��
+�
�
!$
��
�
��(
��
��

��
��
?
�E
��
&�
�	
��(
�

1
1
4
�4

 

$��
��
+�
�
��
��
��
��
#�

$�
�:
��

��
��

�F
�"
��
)�
��

�9
�4

6�
��
�
�
��

��
�F
��
��
)�
��-

��
�&
��
(�
�
�#
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
:�
��

��
��

�7
��
��
�#
��
��

��
��.

�"
�&
��
'��
�&
��

��

�
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��

��
���
�	
��#
��
��	
)�
��
���
��
��
�
��
�	
��#
��
	�
�
��
��



�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

�$
#
��
�
�
,	
5
$
��
.
�	
,�

!�
�
2��
1
,.

4	0
�$
@,
-!
	!
,�

�
�	
�2
2$
-�

!,
.
&		
�
,3

�,
%
	$
/	
�
�@
$
�	

�-
1
,�

,�
	/
$
�	
��

�!
��
"
��

2,
	!
��
"
�0

$
�!
	#
�$
%
!1
&

8
�&
��
�8
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
��#

-$
�!
�4
	%
1
�-
1
	��
	�
,�
"
#
	/
�
�!
1
,�
	�"

3,
�!
�#
�!
,.

	!
$
	3
,�
�/
�	
,"

.
	�
,�

�	
0
$
��
!�
$
"
&

�
��
��
��
��
�-
�	
)�
-
��
�	
��
��
�
$�
&�
��
7�
�
9�
�#
��7
�;
��
	�
��
�0
�#
��
�!
���
��
�

Page 92



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

��
�
	

�
�
�


��
	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
	�
��

�	
�	

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�	
�
��
 	
�
�!
�"
#
	

�
$
%
	

�
$
&

�
�
�
	

�
�
'

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�

	�(

�
�
�
�'
��
(



�
�
�
�
�
	

��
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
(
	�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
�
	



�
�
�
�
��
�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)��
�#

��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

	�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

'
,�

��
�

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�
�#

��
8

'
,�

��
8

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�;
>�

�
��
��

�
��
��
�"

��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

	

�(
��
��

��
��

��
���
�


�

��
6

�
�*

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��
��

��
��

�$�
��
	�
��
"
��#
��
��
�	

�
(�
�
��

��
��

��
���
�&
�	
��
	�
��
�!
��
�


��
��
� 
��
��
"
��
��
��

��
��
&�
	�
�
��

��	
��
��
��

(�
�#
��
� 
�$
��

��
	�
���
��

��
�$
��
��

�
�	
�"
#�
$	
���
$	
��
�
��
��
�	
��
��
���
��

��
�$
��
�	
)�
�-
�&
�	
��

��
��
�	

�
(�

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��
��

(�
�
��
��
�
��

���
��

�*�
&�
	�
�
��

���
��
��
��

(�
��

��
@�
��
�!

!�
�&
��

� 
(�
�
� 

��
��
�0
��
��
��
�8
�
9%

�
�!

!�
�&
�$
���
��
��
�
�!

���
$�	
��
��
��
8
���
��
��
��
��
��
��

 $
��
��

(�
$�
		
�	
���
��

�*�
�$
��

��
��
�
��

)�
��
&�
	�
�
��

�	
���
� 
��
	!
��
��

��
&�
��

��
�7
��
��
(�
��
	�
��
��
�	

�
(�
�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��
��
��

���

�

	�
��
��
��

��"
��

)$
(�
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

,3
��
,.

	$
�
�	

5
$
��
$
%
�"
#
	�
"
.
	�"

3,
�!
�
,"

!	

!�
�!
,#

�4
	%
1
�-
1
	1
��

	�
,,

"
	�
0
0
�$
3,

.
	�
�	
�
�
.
�!
	

$
�
�
�!
!,
,&
		

!�
�!
,.

	!
$
	�

� 
,	

�,
3,

"
�
,	
��

3�
"
#
�	
�,
&	�
,-

,�
3,

.
	�
�-

 	
<9

;	
�
�22
�$
"
	.
,�

!	
/�
$
�
	(
,3

$
"
	

$
�
"
!�
	

$
�
"
-�
2&	
	(


�
�
	�
0
0
�$
3�

2	/
$
�	
�	



�0

�!
�2
��
�!
�$
"
	(
��
,-

!�
$
"
	!
$
	,
"
��

2,
	�
"
�	
2$
��

,�
	/
�$
�
	�-
,2
�"

.
�-
	5
�"

 	
�"
3,

�!
�
,"

!�
	!
$
	�
,	
�0

�,
�.

	$
3,

�	
��

��
�	

�,
��
�&

�
�$
��
$�
��
��

-
��
#�
$�

.
�

$�
��

�*
=�

4
$�
��

��
��
�
 $
��
��
��
�	
�7
���

!$
��
��
��
�	
��
���
�"

�$�
��

$��
��
�
�"

��
)�
��

��
�

��
��

���
��
��

�
��
��
���

�

	�
��

��
	�

�
,%

6


��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

,.
�
-,

.
	2,
3,

2�
	$
/	
/�
"
.
�"
#
	�
,-

�
�,
.
	/
$
�	
�"
/�
��

!�
�
-!
�
�,
	"
,,

.
�&
		�

�,
�!
,�
	�
��
 	
/$
�	

�"
.
�3
�.
�
�2
	0
�$
@,
-!
�	
%
1
�-
1
	1
�3

,	
1
�#
1
	.
,#

�,
,	
$
/	
�,
2��
"
-,

	$
"
	0
2�
"
"
�"
#
	$
�
2�#

�!
�$
"
	�

$
"
�,
�&
		�

$
!,
"
!�
�2
	/
$
�	

2,
#
�2
	-
1
�2
2,
"
#
,	
!$
	0
2�
"
"
�"
#
	0
,�
�
��
��
$
"
�&
		�

2�
"
"
�"
#
	�
�
2�#

�!
�$
"
�	
'
$
��
�
	,
�!
��

2��
1
,.

	�
"
.
	#
$
3,

�"
�"

-,
	

��
��
"
#
,�

,"
!�
	�
"
.
,�
	.
,3

,2
$
0
�
,"

!&

4
�

$��

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
��#

�:
�

8
��
��
G

�

$��
(�
�
��

��
��

��
�@4

��
&�
��
��

���
��
�

��
��
���
��
��

��
��
�

6
�

�*
6


��

6


��
6


��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��-

��
��

�
��

��
���
�	
���
��

��#
��
��

�0
�8
��
��
G

�

$��
(�
1

�

���
#�

&�
� 
��

��
��

 �
��

��
���
��
��#
��

�
��
!�

��
��
�1
��
��
��
4
$�
��
���

#�
	�
��
��

	�
!�

��
��
���
#�

�E
	�
��
��-

�	
�


��
�	
�1
��
��
��
4
$�
��
��
��
��

�0
@�
��
��1

�$�
	�
��
���
��
�


��
� 

$�
�

��
��
��
���
��
�	
��
��

��

�
��
�
��
$�
��

	�
�	
��

�
��
��
$(
� 
��
��

��
��

!�
$�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

"
	�
-!
�$
"
	0
2�
"
	!
$
	

%
�$�
	�
4
��
���
��

1
��
�
��
$�
��
�@�

�
�#
��

��
�

�

�
��
H�

��
��
��
���
��
�	
��
��

��

�
��
�
��
$�
��

	�
�	
��

�
��
��
$(
� 
��
��

��
��

!�
$�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

"
	�
-!
�$
"
	0
2�
"
	!
$
	

�.
.
�,
��

	�
��

�	
�"
!,
�"
�2
	�
�
.
�!
	�
,0

$
�!
	�
,-

$
�
�
,"

.
�!
�$
"
�	
1
��

	�
,,

"
	.
��
%
"
	�
0
&		
�
	2�
�!
	$
/	
.
�!
�	
�"

.
	.
,2
�3
,�
�	

2,
�.

�	
1
��

	�
,,

"
	-
$
�
0
�2,
.
&		
�
$
2,
	0
�$
/�
2,
�	
!$
	�
,	
��

,"
.
,.

	!
$
	�
,/
2,
-!
	"
,%

	�
--

$
�
"
!�
�
�2�
!�
,�

&

�

�
��
H�

�>
�

�
��

�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��*
1
��
��

���

�

���
�"
��
)�
"
��#
�*�

��
?
�.
-
���
���
&�
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
�	
�"
#�
�#
���
�$

�

�	
���
��

���
(�
��

�
"
��

)�
�	
	�
	�
��

��
�
�)
��
��
��
��
�
�
��

��
���
�	
���
��
��
!�
�&
��

��
�	
���
�"
��
)�
��

�!
��
��
��
�	
��
��

���
��
��
�$
��
��

��
�$
���
*1
��
$	
��

��
��
��

�

���
�"
��
)�
"
��#
��
�!

��
��
��

�	
���
��
+�
��
��
��
��
��
	�
���
��
��#
��
�
��
��
��

$��
��

�

�*�
���
��
�&
��
��,

#�
	�
$�
 $
�"

��
��
��
�

��
	�

��
��
��

�

���
� 
��
��
!�

��
��

���
��#
��
1

�

���
�
��

�
���
��

���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
	A

1
��
!2
,�
�
2$
%
�"
#
	0
$
2�-
�	
�,
3�
,%

,.
4	

�
0
.
�!
,.

	�
"
.
	�
0
0
�$
3,

.
	�
�	
�
�
.
�!
	

$
�
�
�!
!,
,	
�"
	H
�
"
,	
��

��
&	�
"
!,
�"
�2
	�
�
.
�!
	%
$
� 
�"
#
	%
�!
1
	.
,0

��
!�

,"
!�
	!
$
	

�,
3�
,%

	.
�!
�	
-$

�
�"
#
	$
�
!	
$
/	
�
�!
�$
"
�2
	'
��
�
.
	�"

�!
��
!�
3,

	�
"
.
	-
2$
�,

	�
-�
�
!�
"
�	
%
�22
	-
$
"
!�
"
�
,	
�"
	!
1
,	
2�#

1
!	
$
/	
!1
,	

,-
$
"
$
�
�-
	-
2��

�!
,	
�"

.
	,
=0

,-
!,
.
	0
�
�
2�-
	�
,-

!$
�	
-�

!�
	%
1
�-
1
	�

��
	�"

-�
,�

�,
	!
1
,	
0
�$
0
,"

��
!�
	/
$
�	
/�
��

.
&

�
�$
��
$�
��
��

�
�)
��
.
��
)�
��

�?
�=

�

	
��
�	
	�
��
��
��

�
�(
�!
$�
��

��
��
��
�$�
��

�"
��#
��
�&
�$�
�
��

���
��

��
��
	�

1
��
��
��

�
	�
��

�
��
(�
��
	!
��

	�
 �
$��
��
	�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��

	
��
�	
	�
�
��

���

�
�(
��
��
��
��

(�
%
��

!

���
�!
$�
��
���

��
��
��

�	
��
���
��
��
��
��

� 
��
��

��
�$
$�
��
�


���
�
��

	

$��
���
��
"
��#
�	
!�

��
�$
�	
���

�
��
��

	

$��
��
	�
��

��
��
�
�1
		

�
��

��
�4
��
)�
��

���
� 

$�
���
!�
�+
��
��
	�
	�
��
���
	�
��
��
&�
��
	D
�

�
�
�!
$�
�	
���
���
)�
�!
$�
��
� 
(�
�#
��
��

��
��
��
��
�#
��
��

��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		


$
�0
$
��
!,
	�"

-�
.
,"

!	
�
�"

�#
,�

,"
!	

�
2�
"
	��

0
2,
�
,"

!,
.
&		
�
��
"
/�
��

,	
�$

/!
%
��
,	
�"

.
	.
�!
�	
�
�-

 ,
.
	�
0
	�
"
.
	�
!$
�,
.
	$
//
��
�!
,&
		�

22	
-�
�!
�-
�2
	�
�
��
"
,�

�	
�-

!�
3�
!�
,�

	1
�3

,	
(
,0

��
!�

,"
!�
2	�

,-
$
3,

��
	�
2�
"
�	
�"
	0
2�
-,

&

%
�$�
	�
4
��
���
��

1
��
�
��
$�
��
�@�

�
��
���
�
��
��
�

�8


�
��
��

��
�$
�?
�$�
� 

�$�
�(
���

!$
��
��
��
�	
��
���

��
 �

�	
�?
��
���
��
�	
�	
��
&�
��

�
��

��

�
	�
��

��
��

��
	�

9
9

8
9

9
8

9
9

8
9

9
8

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���


�
�#
��
�"
��
)�
��

"
� 
��
��

�

��

��
��
)�
��
"
#�
�#
�#
�	
��
�$
�(
��

��#
��
��
��
���
�!

��
�� 
��
��

�!
��
	�
��
��

�
��
��
�


��
�$�
��
��
�!

!�
�&
�$
���
�
��
�#
��

��
���
��
�	
)�
��
���
��
���

�"
��

�

��
���
��
�
�(
�1
%
�
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		(

��
/!
	

�,
0
$
�!
	1
��

	�
,,

"
	/
�
�!
1
,�
	.
,2
��

,.
	�
�
!	
%
�22
	#
$
	!
$
	

$
�
"
-�
2	�
"
	�
-!
$
�
,�
	�
��

�

�
��
�.
�"

�	
-
�	
��
�

�
$�
#�
��

9�
6�

�
��
$

��
��
��*
�
�

6
6

8
6

6
8

6
6

8
6

6
8

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

���
��
�$
�"
��
)�
��
��
��

�

	�
��
���

!�
�&
��
*�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�

��
��
��

��
�$
�&
��
(�
7�
��

���
#�

��
1
�
�#
�	
�

 �
��

��
�!

$�
��
��
���

�!
���
$��
�&
�	
��
��

��!
$�
��
�

	
�� 
��
�
��
���
��
�#
��
&�
���

!�
�&
��

��
�	
�$�
��

��
��
��

�	

!

!�
��
��
��

��
��
�(
�

��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
!�
��
���
��
	�
���

�!
��
��(
�!
$�
��

��
��
��

��
��
	�

�
��
��
��

��
��

��
���
�A


�
��
�
��

�	
� 
��
��

��
��

��
		
��

���
� 
��
��
��

��
��

���
(�
��	
)	
�	
��
�#
�(
��
�(
� 
��
�	
��
$�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		


$
"
/�
#
�
��
!�
$
"
	-
1
�"

#
,�

	�
�.

,	
!$
	

-�
�
�"
,!
�	
�"
	!
1
,	
-$

�
0
�
!,
�	
�$
$
�
	!
$
	��

0
�$
3,

	�
,-

$
3,

��
	!
��

,	
�/
!,
�	
�	
/�
�2�

�,
&		
'
$
22$

%
�"
#
	

��

�"
,!
	�
0
0
�$
3�

2	
0
2�
"
"
�"
#
	1
��

	�
!�
�!
,.

	/
$
�	
!1
,	
"
,%

	.
�!
�	
-,

"
!�
,&
		�
"
-�
,�

�,
.
	�
,�

�2�
,"

-,
	%
�22
	�
,	
�-

1
�,
3,

.
	%
�!
1
	"
,%

	,
7
�
�0
�
,"

!	
0
2�
"
"
,.

	�
�	
0
��
!	
$
/	
!1
,	
-1

�"
#
,�

	!
$
	!
1
,	
.
�!
�	
-,

"
!�
,&

�
�&
�$$
��
�
��
��
�

B
�&
��
�4
���
�(

�
��
��
��
��
�-
�	
)�
-
��
�	
��
��
�
$�
&�
��
7�
�
9�
�#
��7
�;
��
	�
��
�0
�#
��
�!
���
��
�

Page 93



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

��
�
	

�
�
�


��
	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
	�
��

�	
�	

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�	
�
��
 	
�
�!
�"
#
	

�
$
%
	

�
$
&

�
�
�
	

�
�
'

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�

	�(

�
�
�
�'
��
(



�
�
�
�
�
	

��
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
(
	�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
�
	



�
�
�
�
��
�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)��
�#

��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

	�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

'
,�

��
�

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�
�#

��
8

'
,�

��
8

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

9�
>�

E
	�
��
��-

�	
�


��
�	
��
��
�
�"

��
)

6


��
6


��

6


��
�


?

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��
&�
��
$$�
�
1
1
�	
��
��
��
��6
��
�#
��
&�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�	
��
��
��

$�1
		
�	
	�

��
��"

��#
�	
��
��

��
��
!�
�&
��

��
�	
��
&�
��

��
��

�7
��#
��
�#
�$
$�
��

��
��
�
��
�	
���
��
��

���

�

��#
��
!�
��
�	
	�
��
��
$$�
��
���
��
��
	�

�
��
	�
��
�!
���
���
��
	�

��
��
�#
��
E
	�
��
��-

�	
�


��
�	
�1
��
��
��
4
$�
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

	�
��
� 
��
��
��&
�$
(�
�
��

���
��
��
��

��
��
!�

��
��

���
��#
��
1

�

���
�
��

�
���
��

���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

�	
$
/	
H�

"
,	
��

��
	!
1
,	
�
$
�
	/
��
�
,%

$
� 
	1
�.

	�
,,

"
	�
�
$
2��
1
,.

	�
"
.
	�
22	

�-
$
�,
�	
/$
�	
��

�8
D�
�	
%
,�
,	
"
$
!	
0
�
�
2��
1
,.

&		
�
��
"
!	
�
1
$
�"
!$
"
	1
$
%
,3

,�
	.
�.
	�
#
�,
,	
!$
	0
�$
.
�
-,

	�
	�
,0

$
�!
	$
"
	$
�
�	

0
,�
/$
��

�"
-,

	%
1
�-
1
	%
��

	3
,�
�	
0
$
��
!�
3,

	�
"
.
	.
,�

$
"
�!
��
!,
.
	0
�$
#
�,
��

	�"
	�
	"
�
�
�
,�
	$
/	
 ,

�	
��
,�

�&
		


�
��
,"

!2
�	

�%
��
!�
"
#
	-
$
�
�
�
"
�-
�!
�$
"
�	
/�
$
�
	�
�
.
�!
	

$
�
�
��
��
$
"
	$
"
	�
$
�
	�
,0

2�
-,

�
,"

!&

�
�$
��
$�
��
��

-
��
#�
$�

.
�

$�
��

9�
>0

�
��

��
� 

�
��
��

��
	

!!

��
���
#�

��
�&
�$
�!

�
��

���
���
#�

�9
���
��
��

��
��
��
�

�
��

��
�$
�4
��
)

�
,%

�
*

��
�

9
:

�
6

:
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��-

��
�	
��
��

!

��
��
�'
��
	�
�
�	
���
�	
)	
�!
��
&�
�


	$
(�
#�
�#

$��
#�
��

��
�"

��
���
��

��
��
"
��#
��
"
��
��
��
�

��
�	
��

�
���
��
��
��
��
��
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		


$
"
!�
�-

!	
�%

��
.
,.

	%
�!
1
	#
$
$
.
	0
�$
#
�,
��

	�
,�
"
#
	�

�.
,	
$
"
	�
�!
,&
		


�
�2
2	.

,2
��

	�
,2
�!
,.

	!
$
	�
!�
2�!
�,
�	
.
�3
,�
��
$
"
	%
$
� 
�	
%
�22
	�
,�

�
2!
	�"

	9
D;
	%
,,

 �
	.
,2
��

	!
$
	0
��
-!
�-
�2
	-
$
�
0
2,
!�
$
"
&		



$
�!
�	
�
,�
"
#
	�

�"
�#

,.
	,
//
,-

!�
3,

2�
	�
"
.
	0
�$
@,
-!
,.

	�
�	
�
,�
"
#
	.
,2
�3
,�
,.

	�
"
.
,�
	�
�
.
#
,!
&

:�
�
�	
��
�

$��
��
@�

�
��
(�
.
�!
"
��
�

9(
��
��
$�
�)

99
/�

��
��

�
	�

�
��
��#
��
�
��

��
��

��
���
���
#�

�9
���
��
��

��
��
��

��
�+
�	
���
��

$�
�	

�
��
��
��
$��
��
	

�
,%

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

�
6

:
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��4

��
�

��
�
��

���
���
!�

��
��
��
!�
��
�	
	�
��
�
�
��

��
��
��I
�
��
��

�	
�8
�(
I�
#�

$�
���
8
��

�

��
��
���
��
��
�

 �
��
��

!$
��
��

� 
(�
�
��
�#
��
��

��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

�

	B
�"
3�
!�
!�
$
"
	!
$
	
�
�
�
�!
	�
!2
�"
,	

$
2�
!�
$
"
�C
	

��
�
�
��
��
$
"
�	
�,
!�
�"
,.

	�
�	
9	
�
�.
.
,�
�	
�"
	H
�
2�
	�
"
.
	0
�,
�,

"
!2
�	
�
,�
"
#
	,
3�

2�
�!
,.

&		
�"
�!
��
2	�
,3

�,
%
	$
/	
�
�.
�	
��
	

:�
�
�	
��
�

$��
��
�@�

�
��
(�
.
�!
"
��
�

9(
��
��
$�
�)

��
�
�
��
��
$
"
�	
�,
!�
�"
,.

	�
�	
9	
�
�.
.
,�
�	
�"
	H
�
2�
	�
"
.
	0
�,
�,

"
!2
�	
�
,�
"
#
	,
3�

2�
�!
,.

&		
�"
�!
��
2	�
,3

�,
%
	$
/	
�
�.
�	
��
	

,"
-$

�
��
#
�"
#
&

9;
/�

8
�$
�&
��
��
��
�#
��
��
��

	�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�1
�


$��
�
��
��
$��

��
��
�#
��

�

#�
4

�
���
��
4
��

!$
��
�
��	
���
��
�
�"

��
)

�
,%

�
6

:
�

6
:

�
6

:
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

��
��
��

$��
�$�
	�
��

�	
�#
�&
��
 �

��
��
��
���
�
��

���

�

���
� 
��
��

���
��
)�
"
��#
��

�
���
��

	�
��
�
��
��
��

!�
��

��
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		


$
"
!�
"
�
�"
#
	!
$
	�
,	
$
"
	!
��
#
,!
	!
$
	.
,2
�3
,�
	�
#
��
"
�!
	"
�!
�$
"
�2
	�

�2,
�!
$
"
,�

&		
�
�	

�9
�	
$
�
!	
!�
�"
	/
$
�	
�8

D�
�	
%
��

	�
�
$
3,

	!
��
#
,!
&

4
��

��
��
	�
��
��@
�

:

$��
�4
��
��

�
�

9(
��
��
$�
�)

9*
>6

-
��
�	
	�
��

��
��

!�
�	
��
��

��#
��
�
��
)�
��-

��
�&
��
(�
1
��
��
��
4
$�
��

�
��

	

��
	�
��

��
��
��
�#
��
&�
��
��
��
�!
��
��

��
�&
�$
�!

�
��

���
��
��
�	
�

�
,%

6
�

�*
6

�
�*

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��
��
)�
��-

��
�&
��
(�
1
��
��
��
4
$�
��
��
��
��

�0
�#
�	
�	
��

��
!$
��

��
��

��
!!

��
&�
$	
���
��
6�

�
��
	�
��

��
��
$�

�"
�$
$��
�	
'��
=�

�	
�

��

��
��$
��
	�
��

��
/'
=

�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
�$
��$
��

�	
!�

��
���
�$

�

��
��
��
#�

��
$	
��
��

��
�	

!

��
�
��
)�
���
�>

��
��
	�
��

��
��
$�

��
�	
��
��
��
+!
��
��
��
��
��

��#
��
�

��
��

���
!!

$��
��
��
�	
�"
��#
�/
��

��
#�

��
��
�
�
��
��
�$
�

��
�	
���
�
��
)�
���
��
�&
��
(�

�
��

	

��
	�
#�

&�
� 
��

��
�+
��
��

��
���
�	
��
!�

��
��

���
�
�	
��
$�
���
��
!�

���
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��

��
���

��
��
��
��
��
#�

��
��

��

�

���
�

��
��

�$�
�(
��
���
��
��

�
��
��
��
�&
��
(�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		'

$
22$

%
�"
#
	�
	-
$
�
0
2,
!,
	�
,3

�,
%
	$
/	
�2
2	�
��
 �

	�"
	

(
,3

,2
$
0
�
,"

!	
�"

.
	�
,#

,"
,�
�!
�$
"
	!
1
��
	�
��
 	
1
��

	�
,,

"
	-
$
"
��
.
,�
,.

	!
$
	�
,	
"
$
	2$

"
#
,�
	�
,2
,3

�"
!	
�"
	�
,2
�!
�$
"
	!
$
	

-�
��
,"

!	
�
�
��
"
,�

�	
0
2�
"
"
�"
#
&

8
�&
��
�8
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
��#

9:
��

�
��

�
�

��
$��
��

��
���
��
��
�!
��
!�

��
��
	�
��

��
��
�#
�4
��
	!
��
���

	�
��
�

�
�

�*



�:

�


?
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��.

�
1
�$�
��

��
��
	�
�!

��
��
��

��
�
��
���

�	
��
��
!$
��

��
��

��
+�
��
�	
��
��
��
�
��
�#
�4
��
	!
��
���
�*�
��

���
��
��

�	
��
�<
��
�!
���
���
(�
"
��#
�.
�
1
��
	�
!�

��
��
��	
��
�$
��
��
&�
	�
�
��

��!
$�
��
��1

��

��

��
��
��

��
��

��
��#
�	
� 
��

��
��

��
��

��
	�
!�

��
��
��

	�
��
)�
��
��

	�
��
� 

�
�

��
��
��
��
�(
��
&�
��
�

�

��
�	
!�

��
��
��
��
&�
�"

�!
$�
�	
��
��
�#
��
��

��
��

�J


�
��
&�
��
��

�(
��

�	
�$�
�&
�	
��
�

��
	�
�


�$
��
�	
)�
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		'

$
22$

%
�"
#
	�
	-
$
�
0
2,
!,
	�
,3

�,
%
	$
/	
�2
2	�
��
 �

	�"
	(
,3

,2
$
0
�
,"

!	
�"

.
	

�
,#

,"
,�
�!
�$
"
	!
1
��
	�
��
 	
1
��

	�
,,

"
	-
$
"
��
.
,�
,.

	!
$
	�
,	
"
$
	2$

"
#
,�
	�
,2
,3

�"
!	
�"
	�
,2
�!
�$
"
	!
$
	-
�
��
,"

!	
�
�
��
"
,�

�	
0
2�
"
"
�"
#
&

�
�

��
��4

�$
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
��#

9>
=

��
+�
�9
��
��

	�
��

��
��
��
��

�1
��
�


��
6

6
8

6
6

8
6

6
8

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
���

#�
���
�	
��
�!

��
���
	�
	�
#�

�

$�
��
��
��
�!

!�
�&
�$
� 
(�
�#
��
��

��
��
�1
!�
�$�
��

��
���


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	

��
+	
	�
��
"
�/
,�
�,
.
	!
$
	�
0
,�
�!
�$
"
�2
	�
��
 	
�
,#

��
!,
�	
�	
"
$
	2$

"
#
,�
	-
$
"
��
.
,�
,.

	�
	�
!�
�!
,#

�-
	��
��

,&

-
� 
��
��
��
��
�

9(
��
��
$�
�)

9?
�6

1
�


$��
�
��
��
$��

��
��
7�
�

!

!�
��
��
��
�
��
��
!�

�!
$�
���
�$�
&�
�

��
��

!�
��

��
�$(
�2�
��
�
��
$(
�I
��
��
��
	�
��
��

�

 �
��
��
��
$�
��
$(
�!
�!

$
��
��
�I
3�




�:
6


��

6


��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
��
��,

��
��
��
��

�

���
� 
��
��

���
��
)�
��
��
��

���

�
���
��
��
��
	�
��
��
���

��
� 
(�
�


��
�
��

�#
$(
�!
��
��
��

��
��
�

�
��

���
���
��
���

��
��
G

�

$��
(�
�
��

�
�	
	�
��

���
��
��

�=
@0
�<

��

��
�1
�
�
��
	�
!�

��
��
�
��
��
"
�$
$��
��
�$
$�/
��

�
��
�
�	
���
�$

�

��
��

�

��
��

��
�
I*
��
��
�	
��

��
#�

��
��
��

��
�
��

��
�$
I�
��


�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�+
		�

��
 	
��
	"
$
%
	�"

-$
�0
$
��
!,
.
	%
�!
1
	>
�	
�
.
�
2!
	


$
-�
�2
	

��
,	
5
�
.
#
,!
&

4
��

��
��
	�
��

9(
��
��
$�
�)

(
,2
,!
,

(
,2
,!
,

(
,2
,!
,

(
,2
,!
,

>�
��
��
��
��
-
�	
)�
-
��
�	
��
��
�
$�
&�
��
7�
�
9�
�#
��7
�;
��
	�
��
�0
�#
��
�!
���
��
�

Page 94



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

��
�
	

�
�
�


��
	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
	�
��

�	
�	

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�	
�
��
 	
�
�!
�"
#
	

�
$
%
	

�
$
&

�
�
�
	

�
�
'

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�

	�(

�
�
�
�'
��
(



�
�
�
�
�
	

��
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
(
	�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
�
	



�
�
�
�
��
�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)�

)�
)��
�#

��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

	�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

'
,�

��
�

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

�
�#

��
8

'
,�

��
8

�
�

�(
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�

)
�
	I
	�
�$
�
��

�2�
!�
	�
�!
�"
#
		B
�	
I	
�
$
%
4	*
	I
	�
�#
1C

)
�	I
		�
�
0
�-
!	
�
�!
�"
#
		B
�	
I	
�
$
%
4	*
	I
	�
�#
1C

�
�=
��

��
	
-$

�,
	*
	=
	*
	I
	�
*

�
5
&
�
��
 �
	�
-$

�,
.
	�
�	
$
�	
��

$
3,
	%
�22
	�
,	
!1
,	
��

�
@,
-!
	$
/	
0
��
$
��
!�
	�

$
"�
!$
��
"#

/�
��
��
��
��
-
�	
)�
-
��
�	
��
��
�
$�
&�
��
7�
�
9�
�#
��7
�;
��
	�
��
�0
�#
��
�!
���
��
�

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



�

��������	
���	
�����	

Review of Arrangements for Complying with Age-related Equalities 
Legislation 

�

�

�
�

Agenda Item 11Page 97



Plymouth City Council- Report on Compliance with Equalities Legislation 

�

�

�

�


�������	 ����	

� �����������	���	���������	 �

� ���	��������	 �	

�

���������	

�	 �����	����	

�

Page 98



Plymouth City Council- Report on Compliance with Equalities Legislation 

�

� ������	
����������
����	���

���� ����������
���������������������������	������� ��!�"��	����������������
	���#$	��������
�����������������#������%����������%�&�����������������������
�
�	����$�������������'����������������
�������������(���������������������������
���
���������������������	�����$���(%���
�%����������%��������������������%���(	���
��������������������������������$����

���� )�#�*��%�����+�*��������������
�������������
������*������������������*�����������
�$��,���
������������#�-��$�	�����������������-��$��,�$���������������#�������
'�������������������������������-������������������������-���������*�����������$�
�,����

��.� ������
��
������������������������������
���
������������������������������������
�$�����,�����
�����$	��������
�	�����������*������������$��,�����������#$	��$���
�������������$��
�����������������,������*�����������������������������$����#�����

����
�����
��	�����)�#�*��%�������������*������������������	�������
�����	��
#����������������������#�����������������#��������������������	���������������

������������������$	����������	��������������#�������������	��������������*����
�������$����������
�������

��/� '�	�%����������������������#�����$����������������������������	�������������
���$�
������
�	����������������������$����$$����������������	������������������
��������
���
��	��������	���������%�����������������������������������

��,� �	����*��#�������	����������������#������
������������������*�������������
0����	���1����1�	�
���������#����������	�������������������������%����#���������#����
���	������������������������������
������������������������������
���

�

�

Page 99



Plymouth City Council- Report on Compliance with Equalities Legislation 

�

�� 2���$��������

�������	���	���������	

���� '����������������	������ ���"��	��������������-�������	�������-!�$�����
����
�������������
�������������������3�������������	���#$	��������
�����������������
#������%����������%�&������������������������
�	����$��������������

���� '���1�	�
���������	
�����-4�������5������"���������� ��-�����
��������,%�
	���������������
���������0������6�������%�#��
����	�����������������������
1�	�
��7��
������������������������������������'���0���
����$����������
����
��������
�������
��#�����������	�������%����#�����������1�	�
��7��
�������������
��	������������*������%���
�	�������*��������*�����#���$��
�����������������������$�
���	����������	�%��������
������������������%������������������

��.� '���1�	�
��������������
����������������
���$�������#����	���������������%�����
�����������*�
���������������������	�����%����#�������	����������������������
��
�����#����������
�	�
��7��#������������ �������	��%�����*�����
�������������
��#���
��*�������#��
��#�������������
������#������������#����8�����������	���������
'��������
����������������
�����

��/� '���0���
������������������������#���#���������#����������������$�	���
�����������������������������������1�	�
��7����������������������������#��������
����	�������������������%����	�������������#���#�������
�����	��#�������������
�,��������	��������������������	��������$����#���������	�����-�	������
�������-�
���
��	�����'���0���
��
�������������	����������
��	��%���
�	����������������$�
������������������
�	�������
������
��$��������
���������$����#�����

��,� 4��	�������������������������������$�����0���
�����������	�������������������
$����������������)"���������������*�����%����#����������������
���	��
�������
#�������$$���'���1�	�
������������������	
�����
��������������������������
#��
����
�	���������$���
��������#���������������������������%�����#��
����$����
�������4�������5������"���������� ���0���
���

���� '���0���
��#�������������������
���������%�#����������������*��#���������
�����
�
��������9��)�#�*��%������
������#�����������������*��#�����0���
��	���������
-)�����-���
������#���������'����	�
�����$�����)������
���������#����#�%�
����#��	�������������������1�	�
�������#������������	��
�������$���
���	��������
������������+�*���������$����
�����
����������*��#��$�����0���
�����

���	��������	 ����	

��3� '���4�������5������"���������� ���0���
��������������������������
���������

���������������	������������*������%��(��������������������$���
	�����%�����
��
���	�����������������������1�����������	��������0���
���1�0!���'���1�0������#�
�	�������������
�����������	�������
�����#��
���������$�
	��$�������
���������
��	������#�����'�����	�������
��������	�����������������1�����������	��������
+��	��4���8��������:8�����

Page 100



Plymouth City Council- Report on Compliance with Equalities Legislation 

�

��9� '�����	������6
��������#���8���������������
�������������������
�����%��
��
�	�������
�������������-*��	���%���������������
������������	�����%���*�������
����
���	�����
�������-%���
�	�����$����������	����

����������������������
��	����������
��
�����4������������������
����������������������������
��������������

�������
��#�������8��������������������������*�������
�������$�������#���$��
��
����$���	������������������

��:� '���1�����������	��������+��	���1�+!���������������$���������*�����
���$�����

�����������	�������
��������������������������������	�����������������	����������
�����8��������#�������
������!���'���+��	��
���������������������*���$����
��
������������%�����������	�����%���
�	�
����������������
�����)"�
������������*���'���+��	���������������
���������6�
������
�	�����;��������
��
�$$�
����������+��	����������������$���
��
�����������������������	���	���������
��������������%����#����������
�$�
�����
����$�����#���8�������'��� 
�����0����
#������������	������6
�������������	&�
���$�������	�����*��#��

����� '���
�����������	������������*������������������	��������������1�	�
��7��6�
����
��
�	�����;���%�#��
�������������8����������*��*��������������
�����������������
���$�����$���	������������*����������	�������	���	������1�	�
����'������������
��
�������������������*����������<�*��������� ���
����<� !��������<�*�������
0����1�����������������=�*����9!%����#��
�����������$����
�����	�����������������
�������1�	�
����'���1�	�
����������*��	�����
���*�����*���.��$�������	������
6��������$���>�
���+�*�����������%�	�����������*�������	�����������#���������
��#���������������-�
���*���-��

����� '�����	������6
�����������������
�������������������������$����������%����������
��������1���������?����������'���%����#��������������$����
����������%����
��������������	����������
��������*��#������������
��$���
�����	�	������*��
����'���
1�	�
�������������������
�	�
�������������$������������#���������������������

����������	����������#��������(��
��������$���*������*������
����
�����#����
��*�����
���	��������
�����������
�������'���1�	�
������������������������

�	�
�������������$������������$���)"����	������

��������	�����	����������	

�����  ��������$������������������$������	�������	������������*������%�����1�	�
����������
���
�������
����$���	�������������	����������
����������������� 7�!%�#��
����������
��������#��
������1�	�
���
�����*��#�#���������������%�������	������������
����
�����
������������

�	����$���	������������*����������	�����'�������	���������������
����*�������	�
�����$�������*��	��������
���	����������#������������������	������
�	������������	�����������������������
�����

���.� '���1�	�
������
�������������������������$��� �%��	���������������� �
+�*�����
��+��	���#��
������������������*���$������
������������!�����#��
��
����*�������������1�+�� ���� ���������	������������������
���$����8��������
������������

���/� '���1�+������������������	��������#���8�������*������������$�#������%�#��������

����������
�����������������%����#��������	��	��@�������%�$�������*����������

�����������	������������������'���1�+�#���8����%�
�*��������������������:8��%�
��
�	�������	�����$������������%��
�����������	�
�����������������$�*������
�������#������������	�����������#����$���>�
���+�*�������%�#��
�����A�

Page 101



Plymouth City Council- Report on Compliance with Equalities Legislation 

�

• 2��#������	��
���	�������������	�������������B�
• 0��
���������%�����������%��������������������������������
���������B�
• 1���	�������������������������$�
����B�
• "�������*�����*�
�������
	�������
���B������
•  ��������������*�����#���$��
����

�

���,� '���1�	�
��������������*�������������������)�����������������3!�#��
�������
������*��������������#������$�����������	��
�����������$����*�
������
���������
����
���%���
�	�������$����
�����#���������������������������%�#���������1�	�
���
�����������������������������������	���������������������$��,�$����������������%�
���	���-������������*������������������	�������#���������������������������
���	����#�����������	����
���������-��'���1�	�
�������������������������������
�������������)��������	���������%��������������������
��������������������
����
�����������$�������������

����� 4��������
������������������1�	�
�������	���������������	������������
��
�������������������
���$����8������������������%�#��������������������
1�	�
���	����������$	��������	����������
��������������������������
��������$�
��������������������������������������*��
��������
����
������

���������	����������	

���3� '���1�	�
���������*���������#�
�����������	������������*��������������%�
�*������
��������
����$���	������������*������%�������
�	������������	
������������
��������$�
#���������������������������	
��������������������$������������*���,�����������
��������4��	������������������	�����$��������������������������*��#����	�����
����%�����#����������

�	����$����������������
��������

���9� �	�������*��#����*��������$�������������1�	�
������������

�������������	��������
#��������������������������������%��������������$������������%�����1�	�
������%����
��
�����������	��������#����������	
��%�#�����������:������������	�������������	�����
-��	������
�������-����
��������������.�����$$�����
	�����������������#�������
������,�����*����'�����������������9C��$�����������#���$��
����'���1�	�
��������

	�����������������3��������������#�������������$���������,%�#��
�������������
��,�C��$�����#���$��
�%�����#���#������#����������	�������������	�����-��	������

�������-����
�����

!���	����������	

���:�  ��������$��	����*��#%��#����*���������	���������������������(��������#��
������
1�	�
�������
������������������������
������#�����������8����������	�����������	���
������#��	
��������������������������

����� "�����������������������	��
���
�����������������$�
	��������#������������8�
��������
�������������������������������6�������
���������������������������$$�
������
1�	�
����
���������������������$�����
������������������������%������������������
��
�	��%�$����(�����%���������������
������#������������������������������
������#����
��������$����
���������������������%���#�*��%������������������
������#��������������
#����������*��	���������������������*�
��%��	
��������$$����������8��8�������	������

Page 102



Plymouth City Council- Report on Compliance with Equalities Legislation 

�

�����  ��������$��	�����:�;����$�"���	�
�����*��#�#���%�����1�	�
������*�������
��������
������������������������$������*����
����������#����*��	��������������$����
�	����*��#���4����*��������$��������%���������
	���%�������	�����.������������#����
��������!���
�	����������������������$�-$���	������
������#���������������-%����	���
#����	����������
�$�
���	��#��
�������
	���������������������$���������������
������������$��������������%����	�����$�
�����������������%����	��%����$������#��

�����������%������������
�$�
�����
��
������#�������8��������������������

����� �	����*��#�����������$���������������������
�������$����8����������������������	���

	��������$��������
�$�
�����#����������1��������������*������0���������1�0!��.�
�6	���������1�	�
������$$�������$���������!��� ��������$�����#���$��
��
��*�������������1�	�
���������#���$��
������%�#��
��������������
���������
���������������'���1�	�
����������������*��#�$	�������������$�����$�����#���$��
��
���
�	��������$$��	����������������	��!%�������������	����������$������������
��
������������������������������#���������#����������#������������������>�
���
#���$��
����*���������#���������*������$�	��
�����
����������
����
�����
�

���������%���
��������������������������	
�	�������������*������������������*�
��
���������

���.� 4��	�������������������������
�����*�������������������������$���������������������
����������	������%�#����,C��������������*������������$�,��������������������
�*�����%����#����������������������
��������$���������$�#������������������
6�	��#������4������������#����������$$�
������������$	���$������	�����$�
	������
������������������������,��������	�%������������������
����������$���������
�������
�������������*���������$	�	�����������������$�����$�����1�	�
��%��������	�������
����������

���/� 4�������$����������������������1�	�
���	�������������
�$�
������������������
��������
���$����8����������������������	�������*��������������������������������
�������������*��
��������

"#�����	��������	

���,� �	���*������
��
�	�����������������1�	�
�����������
��������������	����������
��*��������
���������#������������$��������*�
�����������������������#���������	��
�
��������������	�����$�����
�����������
������������
��#��
�����������������	������
������*����������#������������$�����	
�	���������������
��������������$���	����������
��*����������	������

����� �	����*��#�����
��$����������%����������%�������������	����������������������
��
���%����	���#����*����������$�
������
�������������������������������	���$�����
1�	�
��7��
�������
��#�������8����������	�������������������%�#��
���������������
��*��#��$���������
�������������������������������������8�������������������

�������#�	��������$�
����

Page 103



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l-
 R

ep
o

rt
 o

n
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 E

q
u

al
it

ie
s 

L
eg

is
la

ti
o

n
 

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es

� 
 

�
��
��
0�
��
�

!
�
��

�
��

��
���

�	
�
��
��
���

	
$
��

��
��

��
�	

��
�
��
�	

"
���
�
�	�
��
��

��
��
��
	

��
��
��

��
��
�	
��

%	

'�
��
1
�	
�

���
��
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
��
�$	
��
��
���
�	
��
���
�

��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
�

��
��
��
��
$�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
���
��
���
��*
��


�
��
��
��
�

��
��

�
��
���

)
��
��

)
"
���
�

��
���
��
��
�#
���
���

�
��
�
��

�
��
*�
��
��
�

��
��
��
$��
��
��
��
� 
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
�$	
�	
��
�

<
���

�
��
��
$�1
��
��
��
��
�6
	�
��
��
%�)
"
�

�
��
��
���
���
��
��<
�*
��
��
�
��
���
��
�<
?
'�
��
�


�
��
��
��
���
��
���
	�
���
��
��
��

'�
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
�
��

<
���

�
��
�$�
��1
��
��
��
��
�

6	
��
��
���
�

1
��
��
��
��
�
�6
��
���
��
��
�

��
���
��
��
��
��
%��
��
$��
�#
���
�


�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��$
��
���
��

�
�>
+
��
��
��
��
��
���

'�
��
1
�	
�

���
��
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
��
���
�

�$�

�
���
��

��
��
��
�
��
��
���
���
��
�

���
$��
��
8�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
���
��
	�
���
��
�*
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
���
��
���
��*
��

�
��
��
���

)
��
��

)
"
���
�

��
���
��
��
�#
���
���

�
��
�
��

�
��
*�
��
��
�

��
��
��
$��
��
��
��
� 
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
�$	
�	
��
�

<
���

�
��
��
$�1
��
��
��
��
�6
	�
��
��
%�)
"
�

�
��
��
���
���
��
��<
�*
��
��
�
��
���
��
�<
?
'�
��
�


�
��
��
��
���
��
���
	�
���
��
��
��

�
*�
�6
�	
��
��)
"
!�#
���
�

�	
��
��
���
$�?

��
��
)
�

��
��
�

�"
���
�?
��
��
��
��
�!�

'�
�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
$��
��
��
�#
�

��
	�
���
��
��
���
�
�

��
��


�
��
���
�

� �

� � �

Page 104



�

�
�

� ���������	�
������������
� D������+�����'��������;2�>>0�� ���������������*����

 

-+�����'�������-�������+�����'��������;2�>>0%���������������������������������
�

+�����'��������;2�>>0������������$����#������+�����'����������������������>����7+�����'��������
�������������7!��+�����'������������������������������������$���������������#����#������������������
6��*�
�����������*�����������������$��������������������
 

'�����	��
����������������������������������	�����=����������������
������

��������	��$��������
�

�����������������������
����������$��������$�����
�������������	����$�����������������������	��
������

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
	

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��

��
�

��
�
	�

�
��

��

��
	

�

�
�


��

��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��



�
�

��
�
�

�
��

�	
��

�
��
��

��
�

��
�
	�
	

�

�
�


��

��
�
��
�
��
	�

��
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�

�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

��
�
�
��

��

�
��

��
�
�
�
��
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
 �

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

���
��

�
�
�!

�
�"

��
�
�
�
��

"�

�
��
�
�

�

��

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
#
�
�

��

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�$

�
�

�

�
��

��
�
�
�!


�
#
��
#
�
��

��
#

��

�
�
�!


�
#
�

�
�
��

��

�
��

�

�
�

�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�%
�

�

�
�
�

�
�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

�

�

�
�
��

�
��
#
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�

��
��

�
�

�
�

&

��
�
�	
�
��
'
�
�
�
��

��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
(�

�
�
�

�
�
��
	�

��
&
)'

�
�
�

�

��
��

�
�

�
�

)�
���

!
��

�
��

�
��
�
��

�
�

�
��

��

�
��

�

��

�
�
�
�

�
�
��

*�
�

��
�

�"

�$

��

�
�!

�
�"

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�&

)'
�

��
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

��
��

�
�

�
�

)�
���

!
��

�
��

�
�+


��
�
�
��

#

�
�

!
�
�"


�
�
�

��

�
�
�
�

�
�
��

*�
�

��
�

�"

�$

��

�
�!

�
�"

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�&

)'
�

��
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

��
��

�
�

�
�

,
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

�
�
�


��

�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
*�

�
��
�

�"

�$

��

�
�!

�
�"

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�&

)'
�

��
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

��
��

�
�

�
�

-�

�
��
�
��

��

�

�
�.

�
�
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�
��

*�
�

��
�

�"

�$

��

�
�!

�
�"

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�&

)'
�

��
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�

�
�*

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�

�

�

��

�

��

�
�
��

�

�

�
�
�	
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�


��

�
��

�
�
�
��
!
�
�"

�
�

��
��

/
�
�
��

�
�

�
��
,
�
��

	

�

�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�

�
!
�

�
�
��

��
�

�
�
�

��
�
��

	

�

��

��
�
�

�
�
�
�

$
�
��
�
	�
�
��

��
�

$
�
�
��

�
�
��
��


�

��

�
�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

�

��
��

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��  
�
�
��
�
��
!
�
��
�

"
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��

,
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�

�
�+

�
��


�
�
�

-�
�
�
��

�
0
�
�

,
�
�

�
��
��

�
��
)

�

��
��

�
�
��
��

��
��

�
��

�
�


��
�
1
�-
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�,

�
�

�

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
��

��
��
�
2
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

'

�
��

�
�
��

�
$
�
��
�
�
0
�
�

,
�
�

�
��
��

�
��
)

�

��
��

�
�
��
�

��
�#


�
�

�
�
�

�
�,

�
�

�

�
��

�
�

,
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�

�
�+

�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
$
�
��
�
�
0
�
�

)

�

��

�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

��
�#


�
��

�
�

�
�

,
�
�

�

�
��

�
�

�
��
�
��
#
�
�
��

,
�
�

�
��
��

�
��
)

�

��
��

�
�
��
�

��
�#


�
�

�
�
�

�
�,

�
�

�

�
��

�
�

 
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�

,
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�

�
�+

�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
$
�
��
�
�
0
�
�

3
�

	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�%

		

�
�
��

3
�

	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�%

		

�
�
��

'

��

�
�
0
�
�

3
�

	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�%

		

�
�
��

3
�

	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�%

		

�
�
��

�
�!
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

,
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�

�
�+

�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
$
�
��
�
�
0
�
�

.
4�

�
��


�
�
�

��

�
�
�
��

�	
�
��
�#

�
�

�
�
�

�
�,

�
�

�

�
�

�
�

3
�
��

�
$
�
��
�
�
0
�
�

)

�
��
!
�
�"

��
�

��
�
�
�5
�!

�
�"

��
�
�
�

�
�
�

,
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�

�
�+

�
��


�
�

,
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�

�
�+

�
��


�
�

,
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�

�
�+

�
��


�
�

,
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�

�
�+

�
��


�
�

-�
��
��

�
0
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
$
�
��
�
�
0
�
�

-�
��
��

�
0
�
�

Agenda Item 12Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
���	
�����	

VFM conclusion 2009-10 
�

������

�
�

Agenda Item 13Page 109



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10  

� �����������	 �

� ��������	��������	 �
�

�

���������	

� �����	����	 ��
�

���	
�	��

Page 110



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

���������	��


�� ��������������	���������	���
����������	���	�	�	�����
����
�
�	�����
������������	�
������
���	��������	�
�����	��������������	����������	�
����
��������	� ���	��
�!	�
����
"�

�# $�
����
��������	� ���	��
�
�������
��	�
��
��
�	��
��
������%���	�
��%
	�

������	
��%���
��
����	�
�������	����$�
�������������
������%�
�������		�����������
�����
��������
�
�	������	�
�
��
����	��������	��������	������
�����
�����	��������������������&������
���	
�������
�
�	��	��
�
���
�
��������
�����
��������
��
�	��
�
������	�
���
�����	���
�����
��'
���
��
����
��	��
�������������������	�
��������(��������������������	�	
�
�	��������
	�
��	�
�������������
��
���	
�������
�
�	��	���
���
�
��������
�����
��������
��
�	��
�
������	�
���
�����	��
�
�����
��

�) ���*���#+�+��	�
�,��
���
�	��������
��	��	�	�
������
�
����
���
�����
���
�	�!���"�
������%
��%�����
�������������	����	�
�����	�������������������
��	��	��������&�����	�
�
-�
����.
�����
�����
���
�	�!-�."���������
��
���	�����
���	
�
��
�	�

�/ '����	�	�
�
��������	�%
�������
��-�.����
���
�	�����#++�0�+��	�
����&������
	
������%

��
��
��	�����������������
��������
�������������

�1 ��������	�#+�+�	�
�����	�������������
	���	��	���
�����������	�����
�����������2�����
�����
���
��������
�
�	��������#+�+0�����������
���
�	������%
�%��
����������
�	���
	
��
�������������������������
���������������&����������
�������
�	��	�������	�
��������2��
������
�
�	�������
������������������
����
��
�����������	�������
�����
����	����	���	
��%���
	��

�3 $�
���
����������	�
��������
�
�	���
�	���
����	����	�����
���	����
��	�
�
���
��%

������
��	��
����
���	�
�
���
����

����


�4 '
����
������
	
��	�
����&��������
�	������	����������
��������
�������������������������
�
��	���������

������	��	��	
�������
	���	����������������

�5
		
����
�
�	
��	��	�
�����	�
�����		

����#1�*�����#++���$�
�����
������������	�����������
���
�	����	�
��������2��
������
�
�	�����6�

• ���������������
�
�	7�
• ���������������������
�����
7�����
• *����
�
�	������	������
�����
������
	�������
���
�

� ��	�����	����

Page 111



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

������
�������	���


�	����	��
��������
�
���
����	���
���
��
�����	�
�����
	��
�	�����

��
��	��
����
���
�����


�� '
����
���
�	���
��	��	�	�
������������
�����
�
�	
��������
����������
�
�	����������������
�
��
�����	��
���������������
���	
�����	�
��	�
��	�
��������	�
��������2�����������������
�
�	�
������
�
�	��

�� $�
�������������
�
��������
����
������8�1������������
������
�
��
�%�����
����8��1���
$������������
�
���
���	
�����������	�������������
����
�����������%
����������������
����9
�	��
��������������
����

��+ $�
��������������
����	��	
��������������	�����������
���	�&
����
��������	�	��������
������
#++�0�+���������
�	�%����
����������	�	�����
	���&���	���
��
�
�	�	��
�����������&
��
���
�	���	
��	��
����
�	��	���
�
�	�
�
���
������	���	�
�����������������������	��
����
�
�	�
	�
����
���
�	���
��������	
�������

��� :
������&����������
�	���
��	��	�����
��������
������%

������
�
����������%
������
����
��
������	������������
��������
�	������
����	�
��������
�
�	��;��
�
���	�
�
��������
�����	�
�
��������	�����	�
���
�
����	�
������
��	����������	�
������	���	�
��	������
��
�����
��%
	�

��
&
�� ��	�
���	����<����
�����
��������
������	��
����
�	��	��
�����
����
���
��
��
�	��
���	��
����
�������������
�
�	�	���
	���

��# $�
�=	�	
�
�	����������	������������	�������&�������
������	���
�	��%
���
���
��	���������
�	�����������������������
���	���	�	�	�����
�����
������
���	
������
�������%

�����
�
	�������	�
�����
�
�	�	���������	
���	����������������.
���	����=	��������$��
����
�	��	�	�
�
���������
���������	���&�	���

	�	�
��
����
���
�����
��	�
��������������������������
�	�	����
	�
����������	��
��	��
����
�	��	���������
����
���
�	���
�������
����
��
�����������	�
�����
���

����	��	��	��
���
��������
�
���
���
��
�����	�
�����
	����
���

����	��	��
���	��
����
����	�
����
���
����
���
��	��
 ���

�������
���
�����
�����


��) $�
����������������	���
��	���
�
�����	��������
�
�	��	��
����
�	��	��	�����������������
������
�������	���
����
������������
���	�����
��	���������

���	���
���
������	����%�
���	���
��
��������
��������
��;��
�
��������
�
�	��������%
��	�
��	�
�
�����	�
��	��
����
�	��	�	�
�
����������������������
��	����������	�
�������������&
	���
���	�������������
����	���
��

��/ $�
�������������������
���	��������
�
�	�����������������
�
���	������
���%�
���	������
�������	����	��������	��
���������&�������������
��
��������
�������	���������
����
���	
��
����������	�������
�
�	����	�
������	�������	���
��	����	���
�
��
�����%
�
��	��$��	�������	
��
��������	�����������
������	��
���

��1 ��	
��������	����������
�
�	�����	���
�	��%
��	��������������%
�
�����
�����	�
��	�������	�
�
����	�����������������	�������	�
�2���
���� ���	��
���� ��	�
������2�����%��
��������	��	�	�
�
�
	���
����
�&���	��������
�	�������
����	����	�
����
��������	��
���
������
��	����������
�	�����
�
�����	�
�������

��3 >������	�
��
����	�
�
�����%

��
���
��
�����	��������&������
�
�	�����
��
��;��
�
���
������
�
�	����	�����	�
���������%
��	�
��	�
�
�����	�
��%��
��������	��	�	�
����&�
�����
�
�	�����
�	�� ��	�
����������������
���������������	
��	������&
���	�&
����
�������
	��	����&��
���	
�����
���	��������
���	������&
�����	�
���

Page 112



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

��4 $�
�����	������		

����	���
��	����
��	
�
��
�	��
����������
��
����	��	
�����
���
������
���������	��
������
<����
��	�
�������	������������������
���	��
����	��	����	�
����&�����
%
�
��	�����	�
�����	������		

���
��	�
����	��
���

��������
��
�������
�������!
�����
���
����
�
���
���
���
��

�����	�
�����
	��
�������
�������!
����	���
�����
���
����
��
��

������
���
�����
���
���
��	��
����
���
�����


��� $�
�������������	�����������������
�
�	������	�
������
�
�	�����	�����
	��$�
�
���������	����=	��	
�������
����������������
�%�����	�����
�
��
�	��
���
������������
����
�	�
���

��� $�
�9���	���������������
����
��������0����	�������	
������
���	��
��������
����	�������

<����
�������	�
���������	����	�
�����	�=���������
�	
������	��	�
� �$����&������0
��
��	��
���	��
	�
����

�#+ $�
������������
�
�	�%����
������������
��
���
��	����	�����&����
��������������
�
��	����
������%
�
�����
�����	�
��%����	���������������
���	����
�������
�	����	�
��&��������������
�
�
���������
�
����
�������	������
���	�
�
������

"�
��
��	�
�����


�#� $�����
���	�����%

����
���
��	�������
��������	�
���		
������������������������	����&����
�
��	����	����������
��������
��������������������������	�%
���
�����������	�
��������
����%
�
���
��	��	��������	�
����	���	��������������		
������
�	�

�## ?����
���	�������	���������	��������������
�%
	�

��	�
�����������������
��
���������������	�
%
��
��
�������	���
	
�	�����
����������	
���������	�����
�&�
��
����������	���	�
������
������
�
�	����������
�
�	�������
�
�	��	��	�����	�
<��	��$�
�������������������
���	�
�
���
���������	�����������������������������
����
���	�����%
���
��
���������
	�
��	�����
�	�
�������
�
�	�	�
����

&���������������
������	������
�������������	
�

�#) '
����
�	�����
������%���	�����	�
�
�
�	�	��	�����	��������	�����������������������%���	�
������
���	������������������
��������
���	����	�
�����������
��
��������	��������	���
����	����	����
�
���	�

#�
���
�������


�#/ '
����
��������
��	�
��
����
���	�������	��	�
�>��
�	��������������	
�.
�����
�����������
�
���	�	�
���	����������
�
�	����
�	�&
���	�	�
�����������������������	��������������������	�
5
		
��

$�%����������


�#1 '
���������&
�	���
�������������
���	��������	�
������	���
�������0��
��	����������
��	�����
��������������&�%��	�
��������2���	����

	

	

�����	��������	� 	!!�	

��=
�	
�%
��#+�+�

Page 113



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

�	����	��
��������


#� $����	�
�
������
������������	��	
�����������������������
�
�	��	��	�������
	�
��	�
���������
�������	��������
��	���
���
���	��������	�
���	�
�
<	
�	�	���������	����������������
��	�����������	��
���	�������
��������
��������
	�
���	�������������
���	�������	��
�����
���%�
������

	��	�
�
�

�������	��������	����

�	����	��
�����	��

## $�
��������2��%���
	0�
		��������
������	���
��	��%
���%��	���
���	�������	�
�������������
�����

�������������8�1������������
������
�
��
�%�����
����8��1���!14@����	�
��
	��
�
��
�%���
	�
����#+�+0��"�����	�
������������
���
������)��������#+�+�$��������������
���	��	�
���*
�����
$
�������������=	��	
����$�	��������������81�����
�
�����
�
��������	������%�	�����	���
	����
83#���$������������
�
���
���	
�����������	�������������
����
����������
��%�����	�
���������
�	��&�	�����
����������
��
�����	�=���������
���
�����
�	��������������	�����
��
����	�
����%
��
���������
<�	��������
���������	���
����
����
����������
��=
����
��������
���	��������	������
�
�
���������������������������
����
�����#++�0�+�

#) $�
�*
�����$
�������������=	��	
����
������
��	�
���&
�����������
���
�������������
		�
�
�	��
�����	�
�������
��	�
�������	�
���
��������
�������������	
�$�
��	��	
���������	��	��
�����
��
��
�%
��������	
�������������	��
����
��	������	0���
��
���
���	��
��%�
��
���
���
����
��
�
���	��
%
�����	���
����	���������	�����������
���������
��������
�	���%
�����
�
���
��	��	�
������
����
�	������������	���	�
������	�
����
�
��
�	��
���
����	�
�
<��	����
�	�	
�	��
��%�
�
��������	��%
����
�

#/ $�
��������������
����	��	
��������������	�����������
���	�&
����
��������	�	��������
������
#++�0�+�������	���������	�������
����	
���	��
���	����	
������
���	���
�������		

�������	�	�
�
>��&
����������%����
�
�	�����	�
��
���	�����	�����
�
��
����	�����
��
�	��
�����	��������
�������
	�
�#+�+0����������	
� ��������:���
	��

#1 ���
��������
������
�	�%����
����������	�	�����
	���&���	���
��
�
�	�	��
�����������&
��
���
�	���	
��	���
��������������
��
����
�
�	�����
�����	�
����	
<	����	�
��
�
���	��������	
�
������
�
�	�������	�
��!�� �"�����	����
�	����������
�
�	���
����������	�����	�
�����
	
����
����
���&����	�����
�����#++���������
������
	
���
����
������	���

������
��
�	��
�

����
�
�	���	���	�&
����
����������	�
���

"��������	��
�����

#3 $�
������������	���
��	�����
�������������
�
�	������������������	�������
��������
�	��	�

��	
���	
����������������	��	
��������������%��
������	���/��� ��?����
����
���	�������������
�����	�
�#++�0+���
��
����
�%
��������
��
������������
�������
��������	�	������	��	�
�������
������	��������	�
���
���������������
�������
�	��������	����
���
�	��������9���
�
�
����
�	��$��������%

���
����	��	
��%���	�����&��������	��������
�	�%������������������
	���
��
�����	
������������
�	�&���������	����%���	�������	����
���
�	����	�
�������
��5��
�
�
�	�
�

#4 A�*�������
���	��������	
��	��	�	�
��������2��	�	����
	�����
�	�
<�
���	��
�������	�����
��
���	�
	�
����
���	
�����	��%
������&�����������	�
��������2������
�����������
������
��������
�����

# >
	���
�����������

Page 114



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

�������������	��
������	�����
��
�	����	�
��������2���������	��
�����	�����������&
���
����
�����
���
���
���	�
�������������%

���%�
�	���
���
����	�������	������������
����
��
���
��������

<����
�������	
�����
�	������
�
����	���
���
������������	�������
�����
�����#++�0�+�����
������
�
�	����������
�	�������
�������
�������������������
�
����
�	��
����
��&
��	���
	��
��
�%
��������
�
�������������	���������
����
��	�
���������
����
������	��
������������	��������
%

����������

#� $�
����������
������
��	��	�	�
�
���
����	�
�������	���	�
��	���
���
���
������
����
����	������
����
��������	�
���������������
������	�
�����
��������
�����������������
����
�������
�	��
��	�����
���	�
�	�����
�
��	�������	��%�	
�	����
����%��	��
����
0%��
��������
�
�	����������
�
����
������%
��
���
�
������
�
�	�������#+�+0����	�
�������������������������
�
�����������
�
�������
���
���
����������������
�	���	
����
����������	�
�����
��������	���	������������
���
��
$�
������������
�������	
�����
���������	
�;
������A�*�����B�����
���
��	��
����
�	��	�
����
��������
���
�����������
������	��	������	���	�
������������
�
�	���
������
��

#� $�
��������2��%�0���	�����������	
��
���	��������������
������
��������
�����%

���
�
���
��
���	�
�����	�
��
����	�������
����
��������		
�	����	�������	���	�
���������	�
��������
�
�	��
����
���	����	��
���
�������	�
��

��������
�	
�������	�����	�
����&��%
	�

��������
�����
�
��������
���	���

#�+ $�
����������������
�	�&
�����
����	����������������	�
�����
�	������
��
�����
��%
	�

��
 ��	�
���	����
�	������
	�
��������	
�	����������������%
��
���
�
��$�
����������������
���
�	�&
�	�������������������������������	����	�
�������	����<����
�	�
������	���	�
����������
�
�������
��	��%
��
���
������	��
����
�	��	��
�����
����
���
��
��
�	��
���	������
�������
������
�
�	�	���
	���

�	����	��
�����	��

#��  �����
��%���
	����
�����	��
�����	������	�������
�	���	
������	�
�����	��������
���	
��	��

�*$�������%��
	�	�������	�
�9���	����������������
��������
�%�0���	�����
���	��$�
���	
�����
����	��
��
�����%���
	�������	����������������
��	��	�	�
�%���
	�������	����������
�
�	�����
����
��
�������������	����������	������
�������������	��������
����
��
�
���
�������	��
���
������������	�
�%�0���	�����
���	�����	�����������
�	������	��
�	��
��%�
��
�%
��������
���
�����
���	�����
�����������
��	����������	�
����
�����������
���

#�# $�
����������������	���������
��
�	��
�������	������
���������
�����	���������	����������%�
�
�����	��
���%����������������
���	�����	�������������	
��������	����	��
��%�
��
��������
�	��
%
�����	��
������������	��	��	
�����
���������&�����$�
�
��
���	�������
��%�
�	�
�����	������
���������
������
��������
�������	�&
��	���
	�����&
��	��	�
��/��� ��	��������	�	�
��
���
:���
	�����
������
����
����
���	�����������������
�
�	����	
������	�
��
��������
�
�����
�
�	����	
������������
���	����������	������
���
�
����������
�������	��
���%������
��	��	�
�����
�����&��������
�����������	��������
��%
����������
�����	�
�%�0���	�����
���	������
�*$�������%��
	��
��
��$�
�
��������
��������������
����
��	��%
�	�&
��	������
������
��
�
�������
����	��	�
���
�������&����%�����
�������������%�
���������	��
���	�

#�) $�
���������������	
�	�����
���
��������	����������
�������
�����%��		
��������%����
�����
���������
���	���	�	�	�����
����
�
�	��$�
�
�����������������
�������������������������	
��
�����
�����	�
�=?. ���������
����
�	���
�����	�
�#++�0+���=��#3+�C
���	�������
��		
��
��
����
��������	���������������
�%

�������	��
���������������
�
������������	��������
����	��
����
��
�����	�
�
<	
���������	�����$�
��	�	�	����������	���������&�������
�����
���
���
��	����
������	����������	���������������9��	�
�	��%
�����
����
��	��	�
�#++�0�+�������	���
;��	����������	�
�
����
�%

����������	�
������%	�������	��������	���������	��������	�
�������
������	��%�	�������
�������%

����	�����
��	��������
�	������
�����	�
�����
�	��
����

Page 115



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

#�/ ��
���	
������
�������%

�����
�	�������	�
�����
�
�	�	���������	
���	����������������
.
���	����=	��������!��.="����	��	�
����������
�
�����������%
�����
���
�	�������	�	�
�����	�
����������2�����
���
�	������.=��
����
���$��
����
�	��	�	�
����������
���������	���&�	��
�

	�	�
��
����
���
�����
��	�
��������������������������
�	�	����	�
����������	��
��	��
����
�
	��	���������
����
���
�	���
�������
����
��
�����������	�
�����
����

#�1 $�
������	������������������
�����
������
��
����������������
�������
<����
������	�
�����		

�*
�%
����
�
��
����
������
<	
�����	������������
����������������
��%�
�	�
��	��
���
���%��	�������	����
�	�
�$�
������*����
�
�	��������
�	�
�	� ��������%��
	��
�%
���
������
�
��
����
������	��������������	��	�
�����	�������	�
�#+�+0���%���
	��
���������	�
��	��
������
����
�
��
�	��
������
��
������
���	��
����
�	��	��
�����
���
�
�	���
	
���	�������	��
��
���

#�3 $�
��������������		
��	
��������
�
�����
�����	��
����
�	�
��������������	���������	����
�
�	�
�����������������	�����
	���	����	�
�������	����	���������������
���	��>�
�	�������
�����
��	��
��
�������

�%��&��
��
�	���	�
������������������
��	��������	���������������
���	�������
���������
����������	
�����	����%���	�����������������
��;��
�
�����
�	���
�����
�����	����	��
	����������	�	����������	�%

�������%�
�����#++�0�+���������������������	�	
�
�	�������%
�
������
��������
���	����
�������
�����������
����������
��	����%�
������	���	��
��
�	��
���
����
�����������
��
�
�	�	�������&
�������
����������
�����������
�	����	�
��������2��D �����	��
A���
D��
���
		
��

��������	�	�
���
	��������

#�4 ������
���	���������
��
�����	����	�
�
���
����
���
�	���
��	�
�������������
�������������
�
�	6�

Securing financial resilience 
• $�
����������������
����
�	��	�	�
���#++�0�+��������	��
����
��
�	�	
����������	
���	������

����������.
���	����=	���������	�	�
�
����
�	������	���	���'
�������
����
���	��	�	�
��
�
�
��
�
�������������
�������������	�
���
<	
���������	����	��
����
�	��	��������	
�	�����
����
������%
��
����
��
��������	�
�����
���

�
Prioritising resources within tighter budgets 
• $�
�������������������	�
���
�
����	�
������
��	����������	�
������	���	�
��	������
�

�
�����
��%
	�

��&
�� ��	�
���	����<����
�A�*������	���	�
������	��
����
�	��	�
�
�����
����
���
��
��
�	��
���	������
�������������
�
�	�	���
	��

�
����	��	��	��
���
��������


#�� $����	�
�
������
������	��	
������������������������������
�����
��������	������������
���
	�
������������
�����	�
��������������������
����
��	��	�������
�����
��������
�������
���
��
%
		
����	���
�������������
���
��

����	��	��	��
���
���������

#�� $�
������������	���
��	���
�
�����	��������
�
�	��	��
����
�	��	��	�����������������������
��

�����	���
����
������������
���	�����
��	���������

���	���
���
�����	����%�
���	���
����������
�
�������
��

##+  �����	���������5= ��%����
����� �����	��#+#+����E���	�=	��	
����F

������
���
�	����
=��	����%�
��������	��=	��	
���������=��	����%�
� �����
�
�	�=	��	
�����������
�����
��%��
	�
�5�������
�����

�
�	�����������	�%���	������
�����
������
��������
������
�
�	�
����
���&�����������
���
�	����	�
������	��������
������
���
�	����� �����	���$��
	�
��	�
�
�
�
��
�
�	���������%�����	������
�
�	�
���	�2���������

Page 116



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

##� $�
������������
����
����	�������
�����
�����	�&
����
��������������
���
�	���%����
��
���	�
�
�����	�����
�	��������
����
���
��������	��������
�	����
�
��������	�����
��	����������	�
��������
���&
	�

### $�
�������������

&����	��������
�	�
����	��
��
<�
��
��
�������������
�	�%����
�����
�	����
���	��	��
�	�
���������
�������
�
�	��	���	���
%��	
�������������
�
�	
��������
�
�	��	��
����	0���
��
�&�������
�
�	���	�&
������	0�	��������������
��������	����	�
�D������
�#����D�
�	��	
����	�
�������������
		�����������
��������%��
�����	��	��������	�	�
���������	����	���
���
��	�������
��	��	
���
����
�
�	�������	����������	
�����	�����
��	���
�����	�����	���	
���	
���
�	��������������
�
�	
��
<	������
���������	
���	��
�	���
���
�	�������
���������������
��
���
�	��
��
����
����������	
���	��
�	��	����	�������������
��

##) '��&���������
�%

���
�����	����������������	������������	�����%����
�����	��	�
����������
,������
����������%�
����	�
��
%����
��������������	�������������
������%����������
�
�	����
������%�
���$�
����������������	
��
�
�	������������
����������������
��
��������&�������������
�
���
������
���������	������������������	
�������9
�	������
��	�����&���	��D������������
��D�
$�
��������������������&������	��D5������?�	�����>
���D�	���
�
����	�
�������	�������
�0�
��
��������	������������	��	�
�>
���� �����
�
�	� ��	�
������	������
��
����&
	�&����
��
�
	�������	�
�
<�����
�����������	�������������%���	����;��
�
�����
����
���	��

��
���
��
�
���	�
�
<	
�	����	�
��������2�����
��	����������	�
�����������&
	������	��	�	�
��������������
	�

�	�%����
������
�������������
<�
�	
����	���
��

##/ $�
������������������	����%�
�������
�
�	��	��	
���	��	�����
��
������
�
�
�	�����������
�
�	��
��
�	���
��	�
��

��������D����
����
D���������������
������
��	�
��

��������������	�����	��%
�
������
�
����
�����������������������
����
���$�
����������������	�	
�
�	������������
��	��

�������
�
��
�	��
�	���
���	��������%����
��
��$�
�
���
�
��
�	��
�������
�
�	��������
��������
��������	���������	���	���������
��0�
���
�����	���	������
�
�	�����
�������������
��$�
�
�������	
��
%��	
�����������������
�����������	�������������
�����	���
��

&����	�����	���	�
��	��	�
�����������;��
�
����	������	���
���	�����	�
<	
�	�	�
����������
�����������
��
��	�
�
���	����%�
��
�
����
�	��������	���������	�����������������	��
��������
	�
������
����
�����
���	����%���	��������
��	�������
�������	
�������������������������������������
�
�	��
��������

##1 '����	�	�
�����������������������
�	����
�	��������
��������
������	�������
����
����	������	�
��
���	�
�
<	
�	�	��������	�
������������
�����
�
����	
���	
�����������
������������

�������
�	�����	���
�������	��������	�
�������	��	�	�
�
��������
�������
�����
��	����������	�
�
	�	���	������
�����
���	�	�
����������������	�
���

"�
��
����

##3 $�
�������������������
��	�
���������
�
�	�����������������
�
���	������
���%�
���	������

�������	����	��������	��
���������&�������������
��
��������
�$�
��
�
�������	
���������	�
��	���	�
�����	������
����������
��
��	��
����
���	�������	���	����������
�%
�����
	�	��������	�
	�
�����������	�����	������������������	����������������	����	�
����

##4 >�	����������������	�5= ����	�
���������
�	�&
��������������
���	
�����������
���
��������
�
������	����
����	�
��	�
	���	���
	��$�
��������	
� 
��������
�*����
�
�	�����
���&�����
%

���
���
�������
	����	�������
�
�	����������������
��������
��������	�
�������������	�
�
5= ��������	���������	�������������

�
�	�����%

���
�
���
��%��	�
�5= �	��	������������
�	�
�
�
�
��������������
�	��	�����
����	����������������	���������	�	�
�	��
����	�
���	
���������	�
�
��
����
�	�
�����	�
�
������
�	������%

�����������������
��������������	
��	���	����

##� $�
�.
�
��
�����:
�
��	���
����
����
�����������	���������
��	�
���������
�
�	��������
�&����
��	�������������
����	��	��������
����
��
��
����	�
����%
�����
������!����	�	�	��
�����
�����	�	��
"������4�@�	��/�@�%
	�

������	
���	��

������������	�������������%

��	�&
��	��
����
�������
�����������������	�
� ���
�=���
������
<����
������
��
�	�������	
�����
�	�������

Page 117



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

������
��
����	�%��	�
��
����
�	
���	��������
��
��������
��
���	
�����	�
���
���
����%
�����
%����%
��������
���
�������
��
������������#��!�	��	���
�&"�	����������	
�	�11��

##� $�
����������������������	����������
���	������
�����	������
�������
<����
���
����������
�
�����������
�������������
������
����
���
����������%
��������	����
�	����	����������
��������
����
<����
��	������	������%

����
������
		��������2������	��	
���2���9���	����	��	��
�%
	�

��	�
�
������������5= ����
�
�	�
�������
����	�
�
�	
�������	���
������	��	�
�������	�
�����	�
�
�
���
�	����	����
����������	�
��

#)+ =�����������
�
�	����
��������
�	��
����
���	���
����	������	�
���������������&����	�������
%
���������������������	���	�����������	��
��	�������������
<����
���=?#4++������
,��
���
�	�=
���
���	���
	�

#)� A������
�����
��������
������������	
�����9���	�������
������
��������
�%�0���	�����
���	��	��
�*$�������%��
	�$�
�
��
���	��������
�������%��������&
���
��������
�������	�������&
��	��
	�
��������2���� =�$�
�����������
�����
�	����
��
�����	�
������	����	�
�
��
���	��	��
����
�
	��	�	�
���
�����2��	�����������
2�����
���������
���������&
���	�����
��	����������
����
����	�����	�
���
��
�������	�
�
��
���	�����������%
��
���	
�����������	
����%������������
���	��
	�
�5= �

&���
��������

#)# $�
������������	���
��	�����
������������
�
�	��������	
��������	�������	����=��
�
����

>
�
��	��������������.
����	�������������	�	�	����$�
����������������
�	�&
�����
	������
���
�����
�����
��������������
�
�	
�������	���������	������
������������

#)) ���
�%
���
�
����
�	������		

���
��

���
�
����
�	������	���	�
�������
�%
���������
�&���������
���&���	����������������
�
����
�	���������
����
�
�	������%

���
���
������
������
�������%�
�	���
�%
���	�������	�
���	���
	����	

��	�������������������������������
%

�����
�������%�
�	��
����
��>
��������	��	��	�����
�	�&
���
�	����
���	
���
�����	��
�
�%
���	��������	�	
�	�
����	������
����	������� > ��
��������#+�+0���$�
������		

����
�

&����	������
�
�	�
�=��	��'
�	��������������	
��*��&��	�	��������
�%
���
�
����
�	�����
���
������������	����������������
�	�����&�	�������	�
����
���
�	������	����#+�+�

#)/ $�
����������������
�	�&
�����
<
����
�	����
�	�����	�����	�
���������������������	�
������
���

�
�	����
��������
�����&
�����	�
�����������������	�������������	
������	
��
����	����
����
���
���	����&������
�����	��&
��5= ����	�
������
�	�����������
���%9
�	��
����������	�
�
�
��
�	��%
��
���
�
��$�
�������������������	����	��	�
�#++���
���
��5= ����
�����
��	���	��
�
$�������������	
�����
��$�����=
�	����	��	
�����	���
���
���
��
�
�	�	����������������	��������
	������
�	����������
����%9
�	��
�������������������������	�����5= ����	�
�����
��
����
��	�������
���	��	�
�5= ����
����������	�����	�
�5= �:�����G�B<
��	��
�����	�����
��������
����
���	�
���������&����	�������5= ��%9
�	��
�����	����%�	��	��������
���
���������
���
�
�
�
�
������

#)1 $�
�>
�
����
�	�����.
�
�
��	�������
�	���	
������
��
�
�������
���
��	�
����
�����
����
���
����	�
���&
�����	�
�����������������������
��	�
�����
���	���	��
�������
�����
�����
�
���
������	�
�����	����
������� �����	����
����������	��	�	�
�
����������������
����%
�����
���	�
�������������
����	��	������
����	��	��	�������%
���
����%�
��	���

#)3 ?����
��
��������
�	���
��	��	�	�
�
��������
�	�����	�
��������
�	�
�������
�
�	���������
�
	�������
��������	��	�	�
��������2���2���
���� ���	��
���� ��	�
������2�����������
���������
��
�������������	
��	�������	�&
����
�������	��	�	�
��
	���
����
�&���	��������
�	�������
����	����
	�
����
��������	��
���
������
��	����������
�	������
�����	�
�������	��
����
�	��	����������	
�
���
�����
�������
�
�	����
��������
�

Page 118



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

�������
�������

#)4 $�
������������	���
��	�������
��	�����&����������	���������������	
�������	
��������	����$�
�

��������������	
������
�����
�	���������������&�����	�
�����
�	�
�������������	
�	����
�	����	�
�
�
����	���
0�������
�����
�������%��&0�����
�����	�����	������	0���
��
����
��	����	���	
�	�
�
�����	�����
����
��
���
���

#)� =	��������&������
�
�	�����
��
����
��������
�����	�
�
��
�	��
�
������	�
�
�����%

��
�
����	��	
��%���	�
��	��&�	�����
�����9
�	��	�
����
���� �����	����	�%�������	�
�������������
	�
�5��
�
�	�
����	���	�

#)� ��
�����	���
�����
��
�	��
����	�
���������&������
�
�	����
�%

���
����	��	
�������

<����
��	�
�����
�
�	�	�������	�
�=;B�5>���������
�	���
����	
��
���������
��
�����	��
�
�����������%���	�
��%��&���	��	�
��������	���������	0��0��
����
������	�	�
�	�
�	��
�	�
��
>
����	��%�
����	���������	�
����&��������
���
�
�����
�
�����	
�	��;��
�?����
��������������
	�
��
����	��������	�
������������&
����	��	�
� �$�������
������	�
���	���
����	��	
�	����

#/+ �������&����
��
����
�����	�
� 
��������
�*����
�
�	�=��	
��! *="��������&
����	��
�������	
������
����
��%9
�	��
������&
���
��������
�������	����������������	
��;��
�
�����
�
�
�	���	
���������	��
��
��������
�	���
��	��	�	�
� *=����	
�������	����	����	
���	���
�����	��
&
�� ��	�
���������&������	��	�����	������	�
����	�
�������	�
���
��
�
������
	����	�
�
��
�
����
���&��
���	
����������
�

#/� ,������
��������&������
�
�	�������	�
�����������%

���
�
���
��%�	��	�������	�%

�����������
������
��������������	
��	��&
���	�&
����
���

#/# $�
�����	������		

���
��	
��
��
�	��
����������	��������	
��������	�������������
����	��	
��

��
�	��
�����������
������	������������%
�������
��������
<����
�����&������
�
�	��������9
�	�
�����
�
�	�$�
�����	������		

����������
	
�����
������
���
�	�������	�	�
��� ���
�������
�������������
�
�	
�����������
�
�	������$�
���
���������������	�
�����	�
�����		

�������
�������������
���	��
����	��	����	�
����&�����	�
��������	
��%
�
��	������
��	���
�����	�
�����	������		

���
��	�
�#++�0�+����������
���

��������	�	�
���
	��������

#/) ������
���	���������
��
�����	����	�
�
���
����
���
�	���
��	�
�������������
�������������
�
�	6�

Securing financial resilience 

• $�
����������������
����
�	��	�	�
�����
�����������
��	����������	�
�����������&
	�����
�
�
��������
�������������	�
���
<�
�	
����	���
�������	�
���������
���

• $�
�����������������
�����������
��
��	�
����	����%�
��
�
����
�	��������	���������	��
������
�
�	����������������	��
�����
����
�	��	�����
����
��������	����%���	��������
��	�����
��
�������	
�������������������������������������
�
�	��
��������

Prioritising resources within tighter budget 

• '����	�	�
�����������������������
�	����
�	��������
��������
������	�������
����
���	�
�
���������������
����
��	���������
����������������
�������	
���	
�����������
������������

�������
�	�����	���
�������	��������	�
������	��	�	�
�
��������
�������
�����
��	����������
	�
�	�	���	������
�����
���	�	�
����������������	�
���

• $�
����������������
����
�	��	�	�
�2���
���� ���	��
���� ��	�
������2�����������
���������
��
�������������	
��	�������	�&
����
�������	��	�	�
��
	���
����
�&���	��������
�	�������
��
��	����	�
����
��������	��
���
������
��	����������
�	������
�����	�
�������	��
����
�	��	�
���������	
����
�����
�������
�
�	����
��������
�

Page 119



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

• $�
����������������
����
�	��	�	�
����
��������
������
�
�	����	
��������	����	
���	��
�
�����	���������&������
�
�	�������
�
�	���������	��������	���
�����������&
�����	�
��������

�
��������
��
�������
�������!
�����
���
����


#// ?������
���
�	����	����	�
�
�����%
��������
�������
����	��

0�
����
���������#++�0�+�����
���&�������
�������
	�
��	�
��������������
���	�����
	��
��
�	��
���	���
����
���
���	���	��	
����
������	�
�������
����
��

���������
	�
���	���������������
�������
�
������	�����&����
�

��
�	��
���	��������	�	�
�����
�
�
�	�����	���	��	
����������	�
��

$���
��������

#/1 $�
�������������	�����������������
�
�	������	�
������
�
�	�����	�����
	������	�
��������	
�

���
	���������&��	���� ������	�
�����	����	��	
���$�
�����������������	��������	�
����
	��	��	
���
�����&
��������
�	����	�
������������	��	
���	������	��������	0���
��
����
��
���
����	���	��
����
	���	
�������������
		�
�
�	�������
���
�������
��	�
����$�
����������	����=	��	
����
������
�����#++�������
����������������
������������	�����
�
��
�	��
���
������������
����
�	�
�������
<����
������
�
��
�	��
���
�����%

������
�
�����	����������2������
�	�
���
	�������	�
�����
�
�	�	���������
�0��������������	�����������	0�
�&������������������	���	
���

��%�
��
����	��������	�
�������������	�
��������2���
���
�����
�	�����
�	�
��$�
����������
���������	���	
���
��%�
�	�
����������	������������������������
�	�
��

#/3 E���	�����������������0����	������
���	��
��������
�������	�
��������������	��
����
��
�����
�
����
��
���
�������	�����������	�	���
�������	�
�����������	�
� �$����� ����
�$�
�������������
������
����������	�
���	��	
�����
�
��������
����
����������������%
��
���
�
�������<��
�����������
������	�
����	����	�
���	���

#/4 $�
���������������	��
��������
����0����	�����������	�=���������
�	
������	��	�
������� �$��
���&��������
��	��
���	���
����
��$�%����
�������
�	�%��������#)���0����	
��	
����	����	
��	�
�
����
�	��������������	�	�
�:
���������
�	�
��	�*���	�,�����;����	���$�
��
����
�
�	����	�
�
�
������
�� ����	���5�%�������	����9���	���%����������
��	���
�	�
�������	��������	�
��������	��
��
���������	�	����

#/� $�
�������������%���	������
�������	���
�������	�
�����
�
�	�	�������	�
����
	����������
�
��
���#++�0+�����������	�
�:.BB�*�
<�
��
��
����������
��	��	�
�:���&�,�

���
�	�
�����
5
�������'�	������
��������
����
�����
�����
��	�
�����������������	
�������������������
��������������	������
�
�������������������������
������������
�	���
��!������������
��0	�0���
"�
$�
�����������	��
���
����
����	����%
������&�������%����������������������������
	�����
����	���	�����������	����

#/� $�
�
���������	����������������
�	������
���%��&��������	
����
�%�	������
����
�������������
�
	�����
��	�
�������
�����
	��������������

���	��������
��	��������
���	����	�
��
	
�����	�������	�
�
����
�	�����&
	�����	�
��
�
����
�������������	�����=���������	����
	��
�����������������	�
�
�
����	���������
%��������	�
�*������
���
�	�
�����
�%

��%��
�������	����������	����
��������������
������������	��������
����
����	����

#1+ ��	������������
��������
�	��������	��	��	
��������
�	������	�
�
���
�����	��
�������������
	��
	�
����	���
��������
�������	�������

���
	����������	�����=���������	�������
�
�	�����
�
%

������
�
�������
<����
���
���	�����������
��������	
����
��������
���	����������	
�
������
���	�	�
��������
�	�
��

#1� ;��
�
���	�
���������������	���
	���
	�%��	�
����������
��	
�	��	�
��������
�	�
����	�
��	����
�������	�
�
�	�	
�����	�
�
��������
��������	�
����������	��%
����
�%��������
������
�����
���
�
����	�
����������%��������������
<����
��������������	�������	�������	�
���������
�
�	����	����
��
��������������
����
��	��	�
���%�������������
���	��
����
�������	�
���%�	�	�
�����
�	��
����
�

Page 120



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

�����
�
�	����	���	���
����	��
����
�	�����������	����	��%
�����
�	
���'
��
������
�	��	�	����
�����
����������%
����������
�����	�
��
�����	���	�	��%
��
	����#+�+0���

'��%����
��������

#1# $�
����������������������	
����������	���	�����&����
��������
�	�
�������
�	�������
��
������


����������������	��
������&���
�����&����
��������
�����
�����
��%����2 
���
�=	��	
��2���
����
�����%
������	��	
��
�����
���������	�
��������	
� ��������	�
�������	�0���
������������#+#+��
�������

&��	��
����
�	��	�	�
�������������D	�
�����	��	�������	�
�����	�����
���	��	�
�����	�
�&����D��

#1) �	����������%
�����������
��	��	�������	�	�
��������	
�;.�����
��
��������������
����	�
�	��
�
�
�	�������������	��������
�������
��������
������
�
�	�$�
����������������������	
�
���������	���	�����&����
������������
�
�	����������
	
���0%��
������
���&��������	
��%����
�&�������	��<���������
	����	�	�
����	�����D%
��������D�
<�
�	
������	���	�����������&
��	��	�
�
��������������
���

#1/ $�
��������������	�����������
�
�	����������	��������������
�	������	��
������
�	�
������
�
�	������������������
�	���������&�
���*
����
��	�������
������
���
��%�
��
�������
������&�
�����
������
	���������	��
��$�
��������������
���
���	�����&�
����
�
�����������
��
���
����������������#++40+�"�	��3�1���������#++�0+�"����#++�0�+��	�
���
���
����/)+�������
$�
�������������	����	�
���
������
�����	��������	�&
����������	
���	����	������
�������
�����
����
���������	��������������
�
��������
�������&�������������
�2��=
����
�����
�%

��
����
��
�����	��������������	�����	��������
�����	����	���
����
�	��	����

#11 ?�����
������
<�
��
��
����	�
�������������
���
��
��	������������
��
�����	�������������
��
�	�
������
��
�����DE�%�B�����	���D������������
��
�
�	��
��
������������	
�.
�	���	�����������
��
�	���
��	��	��	��������	���
����������
���	��
���
����
�����������������
�
�	������	������������
��������������
�$�
������������
���������		
��	��
�����	���������
���	���������	�
�����
�
����
�����	���
����
����������	���
���������	��	�
���%���������	����������%
�����������
������
����
��
���������
�

#13 ;��
�
���	�
�����������%

�����
�	�%������������������
��
���������	�
���������	���������	����
��	��
	���
���	��	�	�
���������������
�������
�	���
���������	�
��&������������������	���
���	�
�	�����
��	�����
�������
�
����
�������	������
���	�
�
������	�
��������������������
�	���
��	��	��	�
�	�����

���	���
�
�������&����
��
�
����
�	�������������������	���
���	�
�	��������������	
�
%����
���������

#14 ���	�
����
�������
��
��������	
��	��	�	�
�����������
����	����
���������	
�	�������������

���������	�������������
���	�������	�
�����
�
�	�	������������
��
����
�����	�
��	���
���
�
���
���	����	��	��	�����	���������������
����	������	�����	�������������
�	�������	�
��
��������
�����
�$����	
��	�
���������������	�����
�
�	
������
�����	
���	�
�%
�
��	������������%
�
����
�
��%������
�
�	������	�	����
��������	
���������������
��
��	���������
�������	���	����

#1� $�
���������������	�%

���%�
�	��������
��������
�	�
���
��
�	���
����	��	
������	����%��������
�����&����
�%��������
��
�
�	�	��
����	�
��������	���	������
�
���������������
�����
�����
�
�	�����	��	�	�
����������
�
��
������	��
��

�%��&�%���
����
���
������	�
�����	�
����
�
	�
�	
��%�����������	����

��������	�	�
���
	��������

#1� ������
���	���������
��
�����	����	�
�
���
����
���
�	���
��	�
�������������
�������������
�
�	6�

Page 121



Plymouth City Council - VFM conclusion 2009-10 

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Prioritising resources within tighter budgets 

• >�	�����	�
���
������	������
�����
���������%
�����
�	
�����������������������	�%���������	��

����
�	��	������������
��	�����	�
������
<	
�	�����	���
�����
���
�

• $�
����������������
����
�	��	�	�
�����
�������
����������
�	����
�������
�	�����������	�
�
�&������������������	���
���	�
�	��������	�����
������
�
����
�������	������
���	�
�
������

• $�
�������������������	���
�	���
�
�������&����
��
�
����
�	�������������������	��
�
���	�
�	��������������	
�%����
���������

• $�
�����������������
�
����������������	��
����
�	��	��	�������������
���	�������	�
�
����
�
�	�	������������
�����
����
���	�
��	���
����
���
���	�

• $�
����������������
�����	
���
	�
��	�
�����
�
�	�	���������	�	����
��������	
��������
�����
�%
�
��	��	��%�	���	��������	�
���������	�������������
�

• $�
����������������
����
�	��	��	�����%�
�	���
����	��	
�	��	��	����%�������������&����
�	��	�
���%��������
��
�
�	�	��
����	�
��������	���	������
�
��������������
����������
�
�	�

• $�
�������������������
�������
����������
�	���
�
��
��

�%��&�������	��
������
��	��
��
������
����
���
������	�
�����	��	�	�
����
�	�
�	
��%�����������	����

�

Page 122



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 2
00

9-
10

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 

#
3+

�

$�

�
��
���
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
��
	��
��
��
���

�
��
��

��
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
��
�%

�
��
��
��

�

�
���
�	�

�
��
�	

<
	��
���
��
��
���
��
	��
��
��

�
��
��
��

��
�	�
��
��
��

��
�	
��
��
��
��

��
��
�

���
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
�

"
�
��

�
��
��
���
��
	

�
��
��
���
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
��
��
	

"
��
��
��
�$
��
	

��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	

��
��
	

%
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�	&
	'
�
��
��
�	
���
��
�
��
	

��
��
���
�
�	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
�	�

�
��#
++
�0
�+
�

��
�
��
��
	��

�
��
�

��

�	
�	

�
��
���
��
��
	

��
�	
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

.

�
��
	��
��
=	
��
��
��
���
	�	
�

�

��
��

�	
��
��
��
	�
��
	�
��
'

�

��
��
��

��
�
�

�
��
	�
�	
�	�

�
��

�

��

�

�
���
��
��
��
��
�

���
��

�
��
���
��	
�

���

<
	

��
��
��
��
�	�
���
	�
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
��
��
�

��
�	

�
	��
��
���
��

�
��
��
�%

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
��
���
�	�

�
��
��

�
��

�

*

�
��
�
�

�
��



�
��$
�

���

.
=�
��
�9

�
	��
��
��
��
��&

�
�

�
��

�	
��

�
�%
��
�	�
��
���
��
��

�
�	�
��

��
��
	�

�

��

�
��
���
%9

�
	��

�
��
��
��

��
���

	��
�.

=�
��
��
��
	�
�%
��
)+
�E�
�

�#
+�
�
��'

��
&�
���

��
��

�
	��
�%

�
��
��
��

�
	�
&

��
	�
��

�	
�	

�
%�
	�
�

	�

�
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
%�
���

�

���
��
�

#+
+�
G�
+�
��
�	�
�	
��
��

��
��
	��

�
��
	�
���
�

��

�
��

�
��
�	�
��
��
��

�	
��

�
��
	

��
��)
��

>

�

�

%

��#
+�
+
��$
�

��
��
��
���
�
���
�

��
��

�

	�
�	
�	�

�

<
	

��
��
��
��
�	�
���
���
��
�

��
���
��
��

�
�

��
��
�

��
��
	��
��
��
�	�

�

�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
�

��
�

�	
�&

�
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
&�
��
�	�

�

�

%�
��
��

�
��
��

�
���
��
��

��
��
��
��

�
�	�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
	�

���
��
	�

�
��
��
��
�	�

�
��
��

�
��

=�
��
��
�'

���
��
�G
�

>
��
��
�F
��
	�

�
�

>

�
�#
+�
+�

%
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�	&
	�
��
��
���
��
��
	��
��
��
�
�	

(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
�	�


�
��

�

�
��
�	�

�
���
��

�
�	
��
��
��
�

��
�	�

�
��
��
�	�
��
	�

��	
��
��
��

�
�

��
��
�

��%


	
�



��
&

��

 �
�	
�

��
�	�
��
�<
��
��

�A
�*

��
��
��
	�
��
	�

���
��
�	�
�

��
��

�

	�
�	
��

��
��
�

���
�

��
�

��

�
�

�	
��

�
��
	�
��
���

�
��
��
��

��
��
��

�


�
	�	
��
�

	�
�

�

*

�
��
�
�

$�

�
��
��
��
��

��
��
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�	
���
�
�

�

�

��
��
��
���
	

���
��
���
��
	�

�
��
��
��

�


�
	�

��
��
	��
��
�
�	�
��
	�

�
��	
��
�

���

�
�

��
��
�

��
�

���

�
��
	�

��

�
	��

�
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
��

��
��
�

��
��

�
��
���
�	�

�
��
��
��
���
��
��

���
�	
�9�
��
	�

��
�
�
���
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	�

�
��
���

��
��
�	�
��
�

�
��
�	�
��
��
�
��
��
�

��
��

��
��

�
�!�
��
�

���
�&
��

��
��
�

��
	��
��
��
��
��
�	�
� 
�
$�
� 
��
��

�
�$
��
��
�

=

�	
��
�?
��
��
���
	��
��
�H
��
	�

�
��
�	
��
��	
�

�"
���

E�
�

�C



�

��
G�
 �
��
�

�
��
��

��
�

��
��

�


�
	

�
�

�
�
�	
��
��
��
��
�

Page 123



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 2
00

9-
10

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 

"
�
��

�
��
��
���
��
	

�
��
��
���
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
��
��
	

"
��
��
��
�$
��
	

��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	

��
��
	

��
��

�


�
	�
	��
��
��
�	�

�
 #
 �
�	
��
	

��
��
���
�

��
�	
�

���
	�

�
�	
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
�	
��
��
�

��
��A

�*
�H
�-
	��
���
��
�

0�
��
��
�

�

�
	�

	

��
��
��

�
���
��
��
���
�0
���

�
��
	�
��
��

�
��


�

�
	�
��
��
�	

��

�
��
��
H
�A

�
��
��*

�	
��
���
�


�
�%
�

�	�

�

�
��
��
�	
��
�	�

�
�	�
�%

�
	�
&

�
��

>
�

�	�
�	�

�

�
��
��

��
��
���

�	

�
��
��

�

�

�

�	
��
���
�&
���

��

�
%


�
��
��

�
�
�	�
��
	�

�
�

��
��
��

�


�
	�%
��
�

���

�	�
��
�	�

�
��
	�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

�
%


�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

	�
��
�

�

���
��
��
�
�

�

��
��

�

�
�

�	
��

�
��

�
��
�

�

��
��
�

���
��
�%

�
��
��

�


�
	

�
�



��

�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
)�
��
��
�
	&	
'�
�
��
��
	

���
��
�
��
	��
��
���
�
�	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
�	�

�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�

��
�

��
	�
��
��
��
��
�	�

�
��
��
��
��
��
&

	��
��
��

�

�
��
��
��
�

��
�

��
���
��
��
�	�

�
��

<�

�
	

��
��
	�
��


�
���
��

�	�

�
���
��
��
�

��
�

*

�
��
�
�

$�

�
��
��
��
���
��

��
��

�
��
	�

�

��
��

�

���

�	�
�

�

��
��
��	
��
��
�

��
	�
��
��
��
	�

�
���

��
&

	�
��
	�

��
��
��
���

�

�
�	�

�

�
��

�
�

��

�

�
	�
	��

�
�	�
�	
�

��
�

�

��
��

�
��
�	�
�	�

�
�=
:�
��
��
�
��
�
%

��

��
��
��

�

�
�

��	
�

�

���
��
���
%�
�	
��

�
��
��

�
��
��

�


�
	��
��
�

��
��
��
�

�	
��
�%

�
��
�

��
��

�


�
	

��
	�
�

��
%�

�
	�

�
��
��
��
��
	��
��
	�
�

��
�

���
���
��
��%
���
	�
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
&

	�	
��
	�

	�

�
��



��
	�
��
	��
��

��
�
��

�
�	�
�	�
�	
�	�

�

�

	�
��
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	�

�
=	
��
	

��
��

 �
��
��

�


�
	�$


�
�
�

��
��

�
�	�
�	
��
�

�

��	
���
�

�

�	�
	�

�
&�
��

�

��

�
���
��
	��

�
��
��
��
��
���
%�

�

�
�	�
��
�	�

�
��
	�
��
�	�
���
	��
��
�%

�
�	
���
�

��
��
��

�
�	
�

���
��
��

�
���
��
�

<�
�
��

�
�=
'
.
�B
 �
�

 �
��
��

�


�
	��
��
��

���
>

�
��
� 
��
��
�

�

�
	�

 �
�	
�

��
��
�
�$
�

� 
��
�
��
	�
� 
��
��
�

�

�
	�

E�
�

�C



�

��
G�
 �
��
�

�
��
��

��
�

��
��

�


�
	

��

Page 124



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 2
00

9-
10

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 

"
�
��

�
��
��
���
��
	

�
��
��
���
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
��
��
	

"
��
��
��
�$
��
	

��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	

��
��
	

��
��
�
��
��
���
�	�
�	

�
���
��

�	�

�
5=
 �
��
��
���
�

�
��

�
��
��
��&

�
� 
�%
���
�=

�
	�
��:

��

�
���
��
�

��
��
���
��
��
�

��
��	
��
���
���
��
��
��
��
��
�
���
��

��
�

�	
��
��
��
�	�

�
��
��
��

���

��
&

	��



��
�

$�

�

�
��

�
��
��

�
�	�
��
��
��

�
	��

�
��
��
��

��
�

��
��
��

�	�
��
��
%�
���

�
���

�	�
�	�

�
��
��
��
���

��
��
��

�
���
��
	��
��
��
���

��
&�
��

�
��

�
���
�

�

���

�
��
�	�
��

�
��
��
%�

�
��
	�
��


�
�	�
�


�
��
�

�	�
�	
�	�

�
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
�

��
��
���

��
	�

���

<
�

�	

�
�	�
�%

�
�

���

�

�
��
?
��
��
��
�

��
�	
��
�	
��
��
��

�


�
	��
��

�
	�

�
��
�	�
��
�

��
��

�


�
	�
	��
��
��
�	�

�
��
�	
��
�	
��
��
�	�
&

��

��
��

�

�
��
�

���
��
���
	

�	
��

�
��

�
�
�



��

�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
)�
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
��

�
�

��	
�

���
�	
��
��
%�

�

�

�

��
��


�
	��
�
��
��
�	
��
��
��
���
	�
��
��
��
�

�

�
	��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	��

�
��
��

�
��
�

�	�
�	
��
��
�

���
�

��
��
���
�	
��
��
%�
��	
��

��
��
��

�
�	
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�	

�
���
���
��
��
���
��

�
���
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��

�


�
	��

�
���
��
��

�

*

�
��
�
�

'
�

��
�

��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��	
�

�>

�
��
	�

�
	�

�	
���
I

��	
�

���

<
�%
�

���
��


�
��
&�
�
��
��
�

��
��
��

�
���
��
	�
��
�%
���
	�
��
���

�

��
��	
�

�


�

�


�
	�
��
=	
��
��
���
�&
���

�	�
�	�

�

��
�	
��
��
%�
��	
��
	

��

��
��

�
%


�
��

�

�
��

�
�

��
��
	�

�
��
��

�
�

���
��
��
��
�

��
�

���
�

�

�

��

�

�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��%
��
���
	�
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
�

�

�

��
�	
��

��
���
	��
��
��
�	
�9�
�	
��
��

��
�	
��
��
%�
��	
��
��
�

���
��
��
��
�	

�
���
	�
�	�

�

��
��

�
���
��
�	
��
��
%�
��	
��
���
��
�
��
���
��
��
��

�
�

�
�	�
��
�	�

�
 J

J
��
��
��


�
	�
	��
��
��
��
��
�

�

�

�

�

��
�	
���
�

��
���
�	
��
��
��
��
	

��

�
�

��
��
�

�
	�
	��
��
��
��
��
��
��	
���
��
��
��
�	

�
��
�

E�
�

�C



�

��
G�
 �
��
�

�
��
��

��
�

��
��

�


�
	

��



��

�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
)�
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

�

�
��
�
�

�
��

�

�
	�F

�	

�
�K
��
�	
��
��
�	�
�%

�
�

��

�

�
�

,
��

�� 


�
��	
	G
 

	

��

�

Page 125



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 2
00

9-
10

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 

"
�
��

�
��
��
���
��
	

�
��
��
���
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
��
��
	

"
��
��
��
�$
��
	

��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	

��
��
	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

'
��
��	
�	�

�
�
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��

�

�
	�
���

�
	��
��
��
��

�

��
���

��

�
��
���
	�
��
�
��
�

��
��

�
��	
�

��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�


�
��
�

��	
��
��
��
��
�

��
���
��
���
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
	

��
�	

�
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
���
��


�
	�
���
�	
��
�

�
���
���
	�
�

��
��
��	
�

���
��
�	�
�	
�	�

�

�
���
��
��

�
���
��
�

��
��
�

��
	�
��
��
��

��
�	�

�
	�
	�
��	
��
��
��

��
��
�

���
	�	
�

��
���
��
��
��
���
��
	�

�
��

�

��
���
��
	��
���


�
	�
��
�,
��

�
��


�
	��

�
���
��
���
��

�

��
	��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�

�
��

�

;
��

�
�

�
��



��

�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
)�
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
�	�

�
�2�
��

�
��
� 
��
�	
��

�

��
� 
��
	�

�
��
��
�2�
���
���
��
��

��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��

��
�
�
��
��
�	

�
�	�
��
���
�	
�&

�
��
�

��
��
��
�	�
�	
�	�

�
�

	�
��

��

��

�
&�
��	
���
��
��
�

�	
��
��
��
�

���

�	�
��
�	�

�
��
�

��
��

��
��
	��

�
��

�
��
��
�

��
	�
��
���
��
��

�
	��
��
��

�
��
��
	�

�
��
��
��

	�
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
��
��
��
��
��
	

��
��

�
��
��

�
��
��
��

�


�
	�
��
�

�

��
��
��
�

�

*

�
��
�
�

�
��

�

�
	�F

�	

�
�K
��
�	
��
��
�	�
�%

�
�

��

�

�
�

��
���
��
	��
���


�
	�
��
�,
��

�
��


�
	��

�
���
��
���
��

�

��
	��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�

�
��

�

,
��

�� 


�
��	
	G
 

	

��

;
��

�
�

�
��

�



��

�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
)�
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

� $�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
�	�

�
���

�
��
��
��
�

�

�
��
��

�


�
	��
��
	

�
���
��
��
	�
��
�	

�
�
�	�
��

��
��
�	�
��
���
���
&�

�
��
��

�


�
	��
��
��
�

�

�
	�
��
��
��
�	�
��
��
���
	�
��

�

��
��
��
��
��
&

��
��
�	
�

��
��
��
��

�

*

�
��
�
�

�
��

�

�
	�F

�	

�
�K
��
�	
��
��
�	�
�%

�
�

��

�

�
�

��
���
��
	��
���


�
	�
��
�,
��

�
��


�
	��

�
���
��
���
��

�

��
	��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
	�

�
��

�

,
��

�� 


�
��	
	G
 

	

��

;
��

�
�

�
���

�

Page 126



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 2
00

9-
10

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 

"
�
��

�
��
��
���
��
	

�
��
��
���
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
��
��
	

"
��
��
��
�$
��
	

��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	

��
��
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	�
�	�
��
��
��
	��
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

>
�	
��
��
�	�

�
��

�
��
��
�	
��
��
��

��
��
�

���
��
��
��
%

��
��
�

�	

�
�

��
��
��
��
���
���
��
���
��
	�%
��
��
��
��
�	�
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
��
��
��
���

��
�

��
	�
��
��	
�

���
���

<
	

�	
��
���
	�
��

��
��
�

��
�

�

*

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
��

�

�
��
���
�	
��
��
	��
��
��
��
�	
��

�	
��
�

�

	

�
��

��

�
���
���
��

�
�
��
���
���
���
��
���
��
�


�

�
	�
��
���
��
��

��	
��
��
��
��
���
��
�

�	
�

��
$�
���

�
���
�

��
%�

�
�

��
�	�
�

�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
	�
�%

�

��
��

�	

�
��
��
��
��
�

<�

�
	��
��
���
�

�

��
�

�	
��
�	

�
��

�
��
��
��
	��
���

�	

�
��
�

��
	��
��
��
���
��
	�

%�
���
��
��
��
��
�%



��
��
�

�	
�&

�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�	

�
���
��
��
���
�	�
�	
��

�
���
�

��
�

��
��
�

� � �

�
��
���
$�

�
�		
�

� � � �
��
���
$�

�
�		
�

�
��
���
#+
��
�

� � � *
��
��
�#
+�
��

#
��
��
��
��
�	�
�	�
��
��
��
	��
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

� $�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
�	�

�
��
��

�
��
��
��

�
���
��

��
��

�
	�
��
�

��
��
���

�
	��
��
��
���
��	
�

��&
���
���
��
���
��
��
���
	�
�

�

��
�	
�

�
	�
��
��
���
	�
��
��

�
��
�
��

�

�
���

�
��
��
��	
��

��
��

�
��	
�

�

��
��
��

*

�
��
�
�

�
��

�
	��

�
��

�

�
��
	��
�
��
���
���

��
�
�

	

��
��
%�
�

��
��
��
��
��
���
��
	

�
��
��
�

%


�
���

��

�


�
	

��
��
���
��
	�

�
�

��
��
��
�

2*
��
��

�
��
�0
���

2�
��
��%




��
��
	�
��
��

�
�


�
�%
���
��
�
��
��

�
��	
��
��
��
	�	
��
��
��
��
�


�
��

��
�

�	
��
���
	�
�	�

�
��
�	

�

�

*
��
&�
,
���

�

�G
B
�

�

=&
��

�

��
��

�


�
	

��

#
��
��
��
��
�	�
�	�
��
��
��
	��
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
	��
�

�	�
��

�

�
��
��
��
&�
��
�

�

�
*
��
��
��

�
���
��	
�

��
��
��
���
���

�
��
��
��

�

�
��
&�
��
�

��

�

�
��
�

�
	��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��

	�
��

�
��
	�

�
	�
���
��
��
��
��
��
	

��
��
��
���
�

*
��
&�
,
���

�

�G
B
�

�

=&
��

�

��
0�
��
��
�

Page 127



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 2
00

9-
10

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 

"
�
��

�
��
��
���
��
	

�
��
��
���
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
��
��
	

"
��
��
��
�$
��
	

��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	

��
��
	

�

�

��
��


�
	��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
	�
��

�
��
	�

�
	�
���
��
�

��
��
��
�	

�
%�
���

�
���
��
��
�

��
��

�


�
��
��
�	�
=�
��
��
��
��


�

$�

�
��
��
��
���
���

��
&�
��
�	�
�
��
��
��

�

�
��
��
��

��
�	

�

���
��
�	�
��
��	
��

�
��
�

�	�

�
��
��
��	

�
��
�

��
��
��
��
�	�
��
��'

��
&�
��
�

�>

�

�
��
�

�
	�

��
��
���
��
��
��	
�

��
��
��
��
���

#
��
��
��
��
�	�
�	�
��
��
��
	��
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

�

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	�
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
�

�	�
��
���
���
��
��

�
��	
��
���
��
	�

�
��
��

�


�
	�
	��
��
��
��
��
��

�

��
��

�

��
�

�
��	
�

�
�	�
��

�
��
�

���

�
��	
	

�
�
��

�
	��

�
��

�

�
��
	��
�
�'

��
��	
��

�
��
�

�


�
	�
%�
���

�
��
��
��
��

�
�
��
��

�


�
	�

��
��
��
��
���
��
	�

�
��
��
&�
���
��
��
��
��
	�
�


�
��
�

�	�
�	
�	�
���
���
��
��
��	

�
	��
�

�
%

��

�
�

��
��
��
�	�

�
�
��
��
��
��'


�
��
�

��	
��
	

��
	�
���

��
��
�

��
�	�
��
��
��
$

��

� 
��
�
��
	�
��
�

�

�

�

�
��
�

��
���
��
�

��
	�

�
*
$�

=�
��
��
�

��
�	
��
��

��
��

��
��
�

��
�

*
��
&�
,
���

�

�G
B
�

�

=&
��

�

��
0�
��
��
�

#
��
��
��
��
�	�
�	�
��
��
��
	��
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��
�	

�
�
�

	�

�
�	�

�

��
��

�


�
	�
	��
��
��
��
�	�
	�
���

�
��
��
��
�	

�

��
��
��
��
��
��

�

%

�

��	
��	
��
%�
	�
��	
��
���
��
�	�

�
��
��
��
��
	��
��
��
��
��
��
�

	

�
�
��

�
	��

�
��

�

�
��
	��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��

��
��

�
��
��
���

��

�


�
	�
	��
��
��
�9�
%�


�
��
��
	��
��
��

�
��
�

��
��

���
��

�


�
	

��
��

��
���
��
�
�

	

��
��
%�
�

��
��
��
���
��
���
�	

�

�
	�
�	
���
��
��

��
��

�	
��
���
�&

�
�	�
��
��
�

*
��
&�
,
���

�

�G
B
�

�

=&
��

�

��
��

�


�
	

��

#
��
��
��
��
�	�
�	�
��
��
��
	��
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��

�
	�
�	
��	
���
��
%�

�
	�
��

�

��
�	
��
	

�

	�
�	
��	
���
�%
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
&�
��
�

�	�
�	
���
�%
��
��
��
�

�

��

�

�
	�
	��

�
��
�	�

�
��
�
�
��
�	�
��
	��
���
�

�

���
��
��
��
��
��

�

��
��
��
��
��

�


�
	�

�
.

�
��

�

�
��
	��
��
��
�

�	

�
�$
�

��
��
��
��
	

�

B
��
��
�	�

�
�,
��
��
��
�

���
�	�

�
��
��

�
���

��
��
��
��

�
��
��
	�

�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��	
�

��

�

�	
��
�

��
	�
��
��

�
�B
��
��
�	�

�
��
�	
��
��
��
��



��
��
�

�
�

	�
��

	
���
��

�
��
	�%
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
&�
��
�

�	�
�	
�

���
%�
��
��
��
�

��

�

�
	�
	��

�
��
�	�

�
��
�
�
��
�	�
�

�	
��
���
�

�

���
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��

�


�
	�

*
��
&�
,
���

�

�G
B
�

�

=&
��

�

>

�

�

%

��#
+�
+�

Page 128



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 2
00

9-
10

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 

"
�
��

�
��
��
���
��
	

�
��
��
���
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
��
��
	

"
��
��
��
�$
��
	

��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	

��
��
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	�
�	�
��
��
��
	��
��
��
�
	&	
��
��
��
���
��
�	

��
��
��
�
�	
(
���
��
	��
��
��
�	$
��
��
��
	

$�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��

�
���
��
��
��

�
	�
��

�

��

�

�


�
%�
�&
���
��
��	
��

�
��
��
�

��
	��

�
���
��

��

��
��

�
��

�
���

��
	�

�
�
��
�	�
�	
�	�

�
��
�

�	�

�
	

��
%�
��
��
��
���
�	
��
�	

;
��
��

 �
�
��
��
��
��
��
��


�
	

��
L;

��

�
M
��
��=
��
N�

��
���
��
�
��
��
��
���
�
���

�
��
�

��
�

��
�	�
�

�


�
%�
�&
�	�

�
��

<�

�
�

��

�
�	�
��
��
��
��
�

�	�
�

��
�

��	

�

�
��
�

��
��
��

%
G

��
��
���
��
��

�
��
�

��
��
��
�	�
��
��
��
	�
�

�
�=

�
��
�

���
	��
��

�

,
��
�

	
���
�=
�	
���
��
	��
��
��
�	�

��

�
��
��	
�

�

�
��
��
�

��
��

�
�	�

�
��
��
�

�	
��
��
�

��

��
��
��%
�

�

��
��
�
��
�

�	
��
�	�
���
���
��
�

��
�%
�

��
��
���
�

�	�
�

��
�

��
��
�	

�

��
��
��
��

�
�	
��
��
���
��
��
�	�
��
�

	�
��
���
�

%
��
��

�
��
��
	�

�
 �

��
�

%
��	


��

 

��
��
�
��
�

��
�	
��
��
��

�,
��
�

	
���
���
��
���
�

��
%�
���

�
���
��
��
���
�

�	�
���
�

��

�

�	
��
��

��
��
	�
��
��
��
���
��
��
	�

�
 �

�
��

%
��	


��

$�
���
��
��

�
���
���
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��
�

��
��

��
	��

�
��
�


�
��
��
%�
�&
�	�
��
>
���

�

��
�

�
�

	�

��
��
�


�
%�
�&
�0�
��
��	
��

�
��
��

�
�	
��


��*

��
	��
�

��
�

�	
���

��
�	�
�

���
��
	��
�

��

��
��

�
��
���

��
	

�

��
��
�

��
�

���
	�


	
���




��
��
��
��
��
��
�	�
��
��
��
�

��
�

�G
�?
$2
��

�� ��
�	

��
���
���
��
�	�
�

��	
��
���



�%
��
&�
0��
���
�

%�
���
��
��
	�
���
0��
��
�
��
��
&�
��
��
�	�
�*
��
&�

,
���

�

��
��
>
�;
.
���
%�
�	
���
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
�	
��
��

�

��
��
�	�
��
���
�

�

�
��
��	
��
�

��	
��
���

��
�

�


<
�

�	
��
��
���

�
��
��
��
�

���
��

��
��
��

��
%�
�

	�

�
��
%�
��
��
$�

���
���
��
��
���
��
���
��
�	
��

�
�
�	�
�

*

�

%

��
��
	�	
�

��
��


�
	��
��
��

�
��
�

�	�
�

E 
�=
��
��

�
��

>

�
�#
+�
+�

Page 129



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l -
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 2
00

9-
10

 

©
 2

01
0 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 

"
�
��

�
��
��
���
��
	

�
��
��
���
	

#
��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
��
��
	

"
��
��
��
�$
��
	

��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
���
�	

��
��
	

��
	�
��
��

�
��
�

	
��
��
�

��
��
���
�#
+�
�
�

�

� �

Page 130



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�


 ���(��������������(��(�%

� O�#+�+�,���	�$����	���-C�55 ���������	���
�
��
��

 

D,���	�$����	��D��
����,���	�$����	���-C�55 ��������	
�����%���	�����	�
������
�

,���	�$����	���-C�55 �������
�%
���������	����,���	�$����	�����	
���	������5	��!2,���	�$����	���
��	
���	�����2"�,���	�$����	�����	
���	����������	�
��
�%
����������
���	�����������
����	�
�������
=
����
����
��
���
�
��%��	�
��
�%
�����������
�
��
�	���
 

F���
������%���	������%
����
�	
��%����������������������
��	�������
�������	��������
��������������
��	����������
���	����������	
��������	������%����	����

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 
September 2010 – June 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 133



 
Work Plan 2010/11 

 
              
 2010 2011 
 
Item 

 
Cabinet Member / Lead 
Officer 
 

 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A* 

 
M 

 
J* 

              
 
Additional Provisional Meetings 
 

         
8 

  

              
Annual Governance 
Report (ISA 260) 

External Auditors   24          

              
2009/10 Annual Audit  
and Inspection 
(Management) Letter 

External Auditors 
    ?        

              
External Audit – 
Progress Report 

External Auditors   24    21  25   28 

              
Internal Audit – 
Annual Plan 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS         25    

              
Internal Audit – 6 
Monthly Progress 
Report 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
      21      

              
Internal Audit Annual 
Report 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS            28 

              

P
age 134



 
 

Work Plan 2010/11 
 

              
 2010 2011 

 
Item 

 
Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer 
 

 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A* 

 
M 

 
J* 

              
Audit Committee 
Forward Plan 

Chief Auditor   24  ?  21  25   28 

              
Annual Review of 
Financial Regulations 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS     ?    25    

              
Operational Risk 
Register Update 
Report 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
    ?       28 

              
Strategic Risk 
Register – Monitoring 
Report  

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
    ?    25    

              
Risk Management 
Annual Report 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS            28 

              
2010/11 Accounts 
Audit – Interim Report 

External Auditors         25    

              
Statement of 
Accounts 2009/10 and 
2010/11 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
  24         28 

              

P
age 135



 
Work Plan 2010/11 

 
              

 2010 2011 
 
Item 

 
Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer 
 

 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A* 

 
M 

 
J* 

              
Annual Governance 
Statement  

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS            28 

              
Draft Audit Plan and 
Fees Letter 2011/12 

External Auditors         25    

              
Value for Money 
Conclusion Report 

External Auditors   24          

              
Treasury 
Management Mid-
Year Report 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
    ?        

              
Treasury 
Management Strategy 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS       21      

              
International Financial 
Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) Transition 
Project – Progress 
Report 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 

      21  25   28 

              
Project Management 
Arrangements 

     ?        

 

P
age 136



 
Work Plan 2010/11 

 
              

 2010 2011 
 
Item 

 
Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer 
 

 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A* 

 
M 

 
J* 

              
External Audit – 
Performance 
Management 
Arrangements  

External Auditors 

  24          

              
External Audit – 
Review of 
Arrangements for 
Complying with Age 
Related Equalities 
Legislation  

External Auditors 

  24          

              
Revenues and 
Benefits Update 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS     ?        

              
Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers 
Act (RIPA) 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
      21      

              
Risk Champion 
Update 

       21      

              
 

P
age 137



P
age 138

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes Public Pack, 23/07/2010 Audit Committee

	5 EXTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT (ISA 260)
	6 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2009/10
	7 EXTERNAL AUDIT - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS
	8 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (RIPA) - ANNUAL REPORT ON COVERT SURVEILLANCE ACTIVITY
	10 STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER - MONITORING REPORT
	Strategic_Risk_Register_Eleven_V2_TLight

	11 EXTERNAL AUDIT - REVIEW OF ARRANGEMENTS FOR COMPLYING WITH AGE RELATED EQUALITIES LEGISLATION
	12 EXTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT
	13 EXTERNAL AUDIT - VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION REPORT
	14 AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

